From: EEIEICI0)

Sent on: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 9:39:49 PM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Kaka evaluations

9(2)(9)(i), 9(2)(ba)(i)

| have spoken with DWH and they know Jimmy isssuppose to be coming. They are
aware of staff concerns. | told the Te Anau would try to arrange a same day
appointment and return home with Jimmy<lalso explained that we intend to
observe his behaviours in an aviary setting so I'm working through a process with Te
Anau. They wanted me to reassure them/that Jimmy could be given a mild sedative
that also provides pain relief priofito his examination.

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlook fon&adroid

From: S1PAl)[{D)

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 8:47:40 AM

LR 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Kaka evaluations

21s9(2)(9)

Thanks for this.

The reaction is better than | thought, but we haven’t got an omelette yet.
Keep on going.

TS (2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 4:20 PM



LA 9(2)(9)(ii)

RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Kaka evaluations

She didn't "reply all" so | was unaware of delay due t.

SI@)] doesn't get involved with the logistics, just oversight of the programme.

SN cmail indicates that we want Jimmy moved to another facility for a period of time for both a physical
and behavioural assessment. He will not be held in hospital long term. Nor will he just have a quick
appointment and return to Te Anau.

Space is available for Jimmy to be held and observed at Dunedin Botanical Gardens. That way we can-wait
for test results and watch his behaviours in an aviary setting. If he needs any additional tests he canimake a
quick trip to the hospital etc.

| have talked to the staff at Dunedin Wildlife Hospital and they are expecting him.

| would also like Charlie to be move to DBG. We discussed that she is slated to be used as‘afoster (and could
be reunited with Bling). She should go at the same time as Jimmy so she is not on her.own:

Again, | cannot make further decisions until Jimmy is assessed so further bird movements are being put on
hold as a result.

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SJAII0)]

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 2:22:32 pm

LL-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)
(@ H59(2)(9)(il)

Subject: RE: Kaka evaluations

Is9(2)(9)
SIPI()N said that she had replied to to say that EIICHOIREIAIEY) so we were hoping to wait

until she was back on deck before we hadl taé chat. Hopefully that will be early next week.

| did talk to briefly on the phone and shesaid that they are still doing the crate training with Jimmy but
they reckon that they could catch himsand transport him to Dunedin. The next thing is to find out how busy
the Wildlife Hospital is and if they could, process him as quickly as possible. Last time he stopped eating and
was highly stressed over there. Fhe hospital staff wanted him out because of his stress levels. | think we
decided that you would havesa chat to them about their past experiences with Jimmy, just so that you had
the full context. | think they.were surprised with how stressed a bird he is when confined in a different
environment.

Anyway, hopefully SIe3IE)) and can get Jimmy across there fairly soon.

Cheers

SO(

zrom: SEAI()

Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 1:20 PM
To: EIAIC)D)
(ofH59(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Kaka evaluations
' would like some assurance that plans are being made to have these birds moved to Dunedin Wildlife
Hospital.

| said back in March | needed Jimmy evaluated. There was no response to email last week.
SRIBICN response yesterday sounds like they haven't made any plans yet.

As | said we can't make plans without the birds' assessments.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)
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From: EEIAE)

Sent on: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 3:57:50 AM

- N

ccC: s9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia ora team,

Just chiming in to say | will be backsat work on Thursday
| will be able to collect

Jimmy late morning if that wetks:? Happy to do contactless.

The plan at this stage is't0 pop him in one of the rehabs aviaries for a few days to
settle in and continue meds if needed based on discharge advice from vets.

The next step will be to move Jimmy next door to Cleo for a few days intro and if
looking-good put him in with her for the upcoming season.

Does this sound like a plan?



SSOIION e you happy for me to email updates on Jimmy to you and RRGACH You
could then update Te Anau as you see fit, it might be the best way moving forward
with them if updates are fed through official DoC channels?

Cheers everyone. Look forward to meeting this very talked about Kaka:)

kaumhera
a-rohe o

Otepoti
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If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify #S iMg&gdiately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or

From: 34#3IE)]

Sent: Tuesday, June 20,:2023 3:20:35 pm

To:El@))
(I Hs9(2)(a) $9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re:Charlie and Jimmy

e =g 2(2)(9)(ii)

Even though he is coping okay being in hospital on a low dose of sedatives and
pain meds, and the stress level is not exacerbating, | would not say handling is
stress-free for him.



Being in hospital is a stressful situation so further assessment at the aviary is
still important. | am sure @I and her team will keep the goal in mind when
Jimmy is more settled in a larger aviary for these assessments to be carried
out.

Regards,

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in_tRe loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

\\‘Dl’@
Py

NNNNNNN

On Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 10:19 AM 4AICID]
wrote:

Thanks team!

That sounds good. Te Anua staff have commented that Jimmy may have been
painful after the Ai'sessions last year. It good to hear that he is coping with being
handled, and that the meds are helping.

My goalis to understand if he is fit to be used for Ai this season. It’s sounding
positive)

'would think if he is coping with being handled for tube feeding 2x day, he could
cope with Ai a couple times in month or two. Do you agree with that assessment at
this stage?

s9(2)(g)(i)



From: 34QIEY
Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 10:06 AM
To: AICND)

=92 @)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia ora koutou,

We have received all the test results back from external labs and Jimmy 1s in
the all clear - Negative for PBFD, Chlamydia, FEC and enteric screens The
enteric bacterial cultures for Salmonella and Campy have come through as an
interim result so far (they will culture for another few days).but-it is highly
unlikely to become positive with a negative interim result.

Jimmy is coping okay and not showing any increasing.level of stress with us
handling him for administering food and meds.

- we will hear from you once you are set'up for Jimmy to be transferred
to DBG for behaviour assessment.

Regards,

If this is a group message - pleasesreply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

\\,Dl,&
Py

nnnnnnn

On Mon{JunA9, 2023 at 3:47 PM 34GIOIQ)
wrote:

Thanks for that.
Good to hear he's coping.

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android




From: 34QICY
Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 1:01:37 PM
s 9(2)(9)(ii)

Cc: AIEY

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia Ora,

Jimmy has been crop tubed since arrival as it is the most efficient.way to
deliver medications. This way we can feed him at the same time-as he doesn't
eat enough in hospital to maintain his weight.

will need time to open up the rehab aviary. I'ni"assuming this involves

staff availability SEIBIE)

will keep us updated as soon as she is.ready for him to be moved.

Jimmy is coping ok and he only gets handled twice per day for
medication/feeding otherwise we are_hands off. But as suggested above
the aviary will be so much better for_his mental health as it's what he's more
used to.

Cheers
If this is a group mesgages- please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

\-Dl/
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On Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 3:58 AM J4AIOIQ)
wrote:

Hi Everyone,

Are you crop tubing Jimmy now?
If it’s come to that, let’s move him now.



I know there are still lab results to come 1n, but as said, 1t’s not 1 his best interest to
hold him 1n a hospital cage.

s9(2)(g)(ii)

From: 2@l
, June 18, 2023 3:22 PM

4s9(2)(a)
q59(2)(9)(i)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

I think one of those rehab aviaries sounds perfect. They're big enough teshouse him so
you can monitor him effectively (hopefully medicate too) and also allow-Iim to socialise
with the rest of your kaka flock which will be wonderful for his méntal*health.

We have asked the lab to please put a rush on the lab resultssowe'll keep you posted.

Cheers

On Sun, Jun 18, 2023 at 3:18 PM RIBIE) > wrote:

That will be fine thanks S

I will sort things closer to this time. There 1s no need as you say to keep Jimmy in hospital
if he 1s fine to be moved‘to DBG for further assessment. We can pop him n one of our
rehab aviaries, whichrare\perfect to accommodate Jimmys disabilities in the interim.

Does this soundlike a plan?

Cheers

GetOutlook for Android
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From: RiGu&)
,June 18, 2023 2:55:46 PM

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy
Kia ora koutou

Just a note, we are hoping to get Jimmy's PCR results back this week. If they don't come
back soon I am still keen to send him to DBG no later than say Thursday-or Friday as he
1s quickly losing patience with us in hospital and he 1s really stubborn and difficult when
it comes to being crop tubed which 1s not fair on him. Plus, 1t is'also in his best interests

to not just stay in a small hospital cage when he doesn't needito-be here. @IS do you
think this is something you could manage, SRIPAIE)

Nga mihi

On Thu, Jun 15, 2023 at 206 PM S2LUC)

wrote:

Hi

Great, thanks
s9(2)(a)

we'll keep him and wait for the lab results but if he gets stressed we'll be in touch
to gethum over to you ASAP. We have some notes from so we will forward that to
youoo.

Fam goimng away from next Tuesday and will not be available for two weeks so if a
prompt behavioural assessment is required I won't be able to give any mput. has a
wealth of experience with this, more so than I do, as she works with captive Kaka on a
daily basis so I would value her opinion on this matter very highly.



Nega mihi

On Thu, Jun 15, 2023 at 2:01 PM S4R4W)

wrote:
Hi.
Thanks for the update.

Unfortunately, Te Anau didn't do disease screening as they wanted Jimmy to have an in
an out assessment (@ hospital.

When said he could bring Jimmy on Wednesday we-HAD to take advantage of that.
I'm sorry that has resulted in a non disease screenéd bird that we would like moved to
DBG.

Te Anau was mdicating that Jimmy was teo‘fragile for Ai. Couldn't be restrained using
the kakapo technique etc. I indicated thatIneeded a health assessment before I could
decide what we do with Jimmy nex¢, Following a phone call on Monday. and I
wanted Jimmy assessed as soon as/pessible so we could make further decisions based on
the findings of a qualified vet:

SOIE ou are now on the ‘email thread. said she was going to pass on Jimmy's
notes.

Part of the assessment is to look at Jimmy's behaviour. SAZJM can monitor. But we are
hoping that you will be able to provide feedback as well. We are concerned as 2
other birds that recently transferred away from Te Anau displayed behavioural issues

upon arfival a DBG.

Yes_previous communication did talk about keeping Jimmy on the hospital for as short a
périod as possible, based on his last visit. I was reassessing the Te Anau team that we
would do the best for Jimmy's welfare. As they were resisting sending him to DWH at all.
So, to hear he's had a good check up so far and coping well. We will just carry on.

If Jimmy 1s coping. We can wait for some preliminary results. If he 1s too stressed he
should be moved to DBG.

s9(2)(g)(ii)



Get Outlook for Android

From: REAIE)
Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 1:22:48 pm

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

I found the chain of emails so just looping you in, SACASY

We can keep Jimmy a bit longer if needed 1f you're worried about disease screening. I am
a bit confused as all the comms was about Jimmy 1deally not staying m hospital more
than say 2, maybe 3 nights?

Hopefully gd@UCUDA can clarify what the actual plan is.

Nga mihi

On Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 11€15-AM S2GAUW)

wrote:

Hi

2

s9(2)(9)(ih) and I would like to have Jimmy and Charlie (kaka currently held in Te
Anau) assessed. We are primarily concerned with behavioural issues, but Jimmy may also
have physieal issues to be addressed.

Fthink having the birds sent to DWH and then DBG 1s the best option. We are currently
working through a process to make this happen. I just wanted to give you a heads up.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,



dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

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
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If yousreceived this
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message.and
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
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies,of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

Caution - This message and accompanying data may_centain information that is confidential or
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

From: S9(2)(g)(i)

Sent on: Friday, June 16, 2023 3:43:10 AM

To:

Subject: Fwd: Jimmy

FYI.

I'll probably respond tomorrow.



| was clear that | wanted Jimmy assessed to be used in the Al program ...since we

| have never said he would return to Te Anau. | have stated that i needed him
assessed in order to make future decisions...

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3G

Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 3:26:46 PM

Lr-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Fwd: Jimmy
Hi, just forwarding you this last communication from ARG

Are we all on the same page? Is she aware that Jimmy is only there for a short stay
for observation as we were concerned he wasn't coping with Al, not that he has
welfare issues. Is dwh also clear thats what they're assessing? | have to reiterate
that | don't know how they are meantto assess his response to Al by observing him
at Dunedin, but if they are clear on that, and certain they can, then we will trust their
professional assessment.

From S4BIEM e mail it seems more like they think the bird Sanctuary has welfare
issues rather than we thatwe're concerned he wasn't coping with Al, at least with
the current method«

SO(

Get QuUNOSOoK for Android

From: A0

Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 12:43:08 pm
Hs9(2)(a)

9@ ]
Cc:AIC) D)

Subject: Re: Jimmy



we haven't had any welfare issues with Taonga or Bling to be improved on.
Taonga went so she could be partnered with a productive male and have
opportunity to breed.

We recommended Bling for release as he's not restricted to captivity by injury and
has contributed plenty of genes already. We're not sure why the decision was made
to keep him at dbg.

Charlie is scheduled to spend the breeding season only with you to allowfar
fostering of eggs, not because theres an issue with her. She's very happy.here, as is
Jimmy.

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3 AIEY

Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 11:44:11 AM

To: AN
oS 9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Re: Jimmy

Thanks for the info, itis much appreciated. That is a lot of information to get
through there.

It certainly has been aprocess to get Jimmy to Dunedin for a proper health
assessment by an Avianwet team and | am relieved this is now underway.

| must say.it-has been amazing to see the improvement in both Bling and Toanga
since arriving in Dunedin and | am hopeful for the same with Jimmy and Charlie.

Wewill update all on Jimmys progress in due course. Have a lovely weekend.

Nga mihi nui



Get Outlook for Android
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d notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, fistnButi®n or

From: @A)

Sent: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 3:44:29 PM

To:EEIAIE)
[@31s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: FW: Jimmy

Forwarding you the email and attached report on behavioural obsérvations made by Te Anau staff over the
years. Sorry | hadn’t included you originally — | didn’t have your email address and needed to get it to DWH
urgently.

Jimmy has just arrived at DWH so I’'m sure they’ll be inh téuch with you when he’s ready to come to you for
them to make their observations.

There should be a small amount of Harrisons pellets left to go with him. Ordinarily he has approx % cup of
them each day plus a tablespoon of chopped fruit/veg, or the equivalent as chunks. He may respond to a
single nut (almond or cashew are favourites) passed by hand once he’s settled in well enough.

Please keep us informed of his progress et us know if there’s anything further that would be helpful.
Thanks,

s9

F.'om:

Sent: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:31 PM
To: SEPAIEY

Subject: Jimmy
Hi all,

Attached are dbservational notes re Jimmy’s behaviour over the years he’s been with us. We keep a daily
diary and the duty ranger will note anything of concern or interest. At times we have engaged volunteers
(from‘inside or outside of DOC to spend extended time observing the birds if we have felt that that level of
observation is required, for example when 2 pairs are mingling and aggressive or bullying behaviour is
observed or suspected. At other times observations are based on what we see during daily activity at/in the
aviaries.

Recently, since becoming involved in the attempts at Al with Jimmy we have noticed that he is particularly
stressed by being caught and handled and it takes a long time to re-gain his trust (as noted in the attached
report). Additionally we are concerned that as an aging bird with a historic wing injury and arthritis that has
flared up in the past (also see referral and attached report) that the Al method currently used, and additional
handling necessary for it could aggravate this.



Note that the current method used for Al with the males and females is the one they use with Kakapo,
where the bird is inserted into a plastic bottle and held within it upside down with bottom end up. This
method is to be reviewed as it seems very unnatural and may be causing addition stress for Kaka.

Also note that Jimmy cannot fly at all due to his injury and a fall off a perch could have extreme
conseguences, meaning extreme care when catching is essential. He can’t be chased around an aviary with a
net for example. Ideally he should be lured into a crate or smaller area where he can be grabbed directly,
however he has a long memory and isn’t easily lured into that situation frequently.

A referral form for the physical exam will be forwarded tomorrow.

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

OnThu, Jun 1, 2023 at 11:15 AM S GICUD)
wrote:

Hi,

s9(2)(g)(ii) and | would like to have Jimmy and Charlie (kaka currently held in Te
Anau) assessed. We areprimarily concerned with behavioural issues, but Jimmy
may also have physical issues to be addressed.

| think having the birds sent to DWH and then DBG is the best option. We are
currently working through a process to make this happen. | just wanted to give you a
heads.up:

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

From: EEIAIC)ID)

Sent on: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 12:36:03 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

s9(2)(a)

Subject: Jimmy

Hi Team,

ThanksS]@)

I've ask Te Anau team to email regarding travel plans.
At this stage only Jimmy is coming.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From:S&GIEY

Sent: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 12:09:31 pm
RS O(2)(0)(il)

9@ ]
(s7e59(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia Ora,



We can admit Jimmy straight to the hospital if that is the preferred option by
the different parties as any of the suggested options will have similar results.
That way we can disease screen prior to going to the Botanic Gardens.

We won't be doing any of his health check on the day of arrival (Wednesday) as
we will allow him to settle from the stress of transport. We will assess if he
needs further intervention regarding the use of sedatives as previously
suggested.

What is the updated plan for Charlie? As previously mentioned we are happy to
admit her at the same time as that would save someone multiple lengthy
journeys.

Is there a rough ETA or time of departure from Te Anau?

Nga mihi,

If this is a group message - please reply/all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

\-Dl/
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From: S4&IEY

Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 10:55:23 AM
To: SAIC)D)
Cc: S AIEY
Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy
Kia Ora

Jimmy went to last week and had been prescribed 3 weeks of metacam and is scheduled
for a follow up blood test (fibrinogen) the week of the 10th of July as he will have been on the
metacam for nearly 4 weeks at that point.

We have done a range of blood tests, radiographs etc on him for his physical exam. | am just
wondering where to direct the invoice once his follow up has been completed?

Thanks, SIAIEN

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

On Wed, Jun 21, 2023 at 2:29 PM SEIBIE)]G) wrote:

Thanks everyone.

From: SEIAAIEY
Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 1:09 PM

To: SEIGIEY
@ Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy
Great thanks SEI@l sounds good.

Get Outlook for Android

If this messagg is\got intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or
reproductiongof this Wiaterial by you is prohibited..

From: SEIAAIEY
Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 12:57:46 PM
To: SEIAIEY
oS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

<o) |



Please see the attached discharge letter for Jimmy. We will send him to you with enough
meloxicam for 3 weeks and be in touch in a few weeks when he is due for a repeat blood test for
fibrinogen.

Cheers

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

\\'Dl,,e

> o
N
& ~

°S|=\‘v

DUNEDIN

On Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 4:41 PM SJAAIEY) wrote:

Welcome back hope you had a fabulous trip.
Great thanks will text you on Thursday first thing with a timegbutiikely around 11am-ish.
Cheers

Get Outlook for Android

If this message is not interfdethfor you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or
reproduction of this matgrial By You is prohibited..

From: SEIAIEY
Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 4:37:11 PM

To: SJAIEY




[@Hs9(2)(9)(ii) s9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia Ora,

Thursday morning sounds good for pick up for Jimmy, contactless would be great if that's ok.

SeIA if you can please text us an ETA when you know what time on Thursday that would be
great.

At this stage we plan to continue with once daily metacam (anti-inflammatory) which can.be put
on a favourite piece of food if he will take it, then repeat his blood tests in a few weeks.

Kind regards,

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the léop:

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

\-Dl,
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On Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 3:58 PM EEIAIE)) wrote:

Kia ora team,

Just chiming in to say | will be backiat work on Thursday SESIAIEY]
_ | will be able to collect Jimmy late morning if that works.? Happy to do

contactless.

The plan at this stagesissto.pop him in one of the rehabs aviaries for a few days to settle in and continue
meds if needed based.on discharge advice from vets.

The next step.will be to move Jimmy next door to Cleo for a few days intro and if looking good put him in
with her for'the upcoming season.

Doés'this'sound like a plan?

SEIAIE)N are you happy for me to email updates on Jimmy to you and I You could then update Te
Anau as you see fit, it might be the best way moving forward with them if updates are fed through official
DoC channels?

Cheers everyone. Look forward to meeting this very talked about Kaka:)

Ma te wa



If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemingtion, @istribution or
reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SEIAIEY
Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 3:20:35 pm

To: SEIAIG) D)
[ HS9(2)(a)
Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Even though he is coping okay_being‘in hospital on a low dose of sedatives and pain meds, and the
stress level is not exacerbating,=l-would not say handling is stress-free for him.

Being in hospital is a stressful situation so further assessment at the aviary is still important. | am
sure @AY and her téam.will keep the goal in mind when Jimmy is more settled in a larger aviary
for these assessments to be carried out.

Regards,

If this'is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

\\'Dl’,\s
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On Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 10:19 AM SEIPAIE)D)] wrote:

Thanks team!

That sounds good. Te Anua staff have commented that Jimmy may have been painful
after the A1 sessions last year. It good to hear that he 1s coping with being handled. and
that the meds are helping.

My goal 1s to understand if he 1s fit to be used for A1 this season. It’s sounding positive.

I would think if he 1s coping with being handled for tube feeding 2x day. he'could cope
with A1 a couple times 1n month or two. Do yvou agree with that assessment at this stage?

s9(2)(g)(ii)

, June 20, 2023 10:06 AM

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia ora koutou,

We have received all the test results back from external labs and Jimmy is in
the all clear - Negative for PBFD, ‘Chlamydia, FEC and enteric screen. The
enteric bacterial cultures for Salmonella and Campy have come through as an
interim result so far (they will culture for another few days) but it is highly
unlikely to become pgsitive with a negative interim result.

Jimmy is coping okay'and not showing any increasing level of stress with us
handling him fer~administering food and meds.

- wé will hear from you once you are set up for Jimmy to be transferred
to DBG{for behaviour assessment.

Regards,

If*this is a sroup message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin
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On Mon. Jun 19. 2023 at 3:47 PM S2GICUD)
wrote:

Thanks for that.

Good to hear he's coping.

s9(2)(g)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android

From: S4AIC)
,June 19, 2023 1:01:37 PM

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimm¥

Kia Ora,

Jimmy has been cropitubed since arrival as it is the most efficient way to
deliver medications. This way we can feed him at the same time as he doesn't
eat enough in haspital to maintain his weight.

willlneed time to open up the rehab aviary. I'm assuming this involves

staff availability SRIVAIE))

will keep us updated as soon as she is ready for him to be moved.

Jimmy is coping ok and he only gets handled twice per day for
medication/feeding otherwise we are hands off. But as suggested above
the aviary will be so much better for his mental health as it's what he's more
used to.

Cheers



If this is a sroup message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin
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On Mon. Jun 19.2023 at 3:58 AM AGNUW)

wrote:

Hi Evervone.

Are you crop tubing Jimmy now?
If 1t’s come to that. let’s move him now.

I know there are still lab results to come 1n, but as said. 1t’s not 1n his best interest to
hold him in a hospital cage.

s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

I think one of those reh@b’ayviaries sounds perfect. They're big enough to house him so
you can monitor him effectively (hopefully medicate too) and also allow him to socialise
with the rest of venr-kaka flock which will be wonderful for his mental health.

We have asked thie lab to please put a rush on the lab results so we'll keep vou posted.

Cheers

On Sun. Jun 18. 2023 at 3:18 PM SEI&IE) wrote:

That will be fine thanlgm




I will sort things closer to this time. There 1s no need as you say to keep Jimmy in hospital
if he 1s fine to be moved to DBG for further assessment. We can pop him 1n one of our
rehab aviaries. which are perfect to accommodate Jimmys disabilities i the interim.

Does this sound like a plan?

Cheers

s9(2)

Get Outlook for Android
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From:
Sent: Sunda

, Jume-b8: 2023 2:55:46 PM

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kiaora koutou

Just a note, we are hoping to get Jimmy's PCR results back this week. If they don't come
back soon I am still keen to send him to DBG no later than say Thursday or Friday as he
1s quickly losing patience with us i hospital and he 1s really stubbom and difficult when
1t comes to being crop tubed which 1s not fair on him. Plus, it 1s also 1n his best interests
to not just stay in a small hospital cage when he doesn't need to be here. do you
think this 1s something vou could manage,




Nga mihi

On Thu. Jun 15,2023 at 2:06 PM S=@IC)

wrote:

Hi

Great. thanks S4ZICUW)

s9(2)(a)

we'll keep him and wait for the lab results but if he getssstressed we'll be in touch
to get him over to vou ASAP. We have some notes from so we will forward that to

you 100. )

I am goimng away from next Tuesday and will not be available for two weeks so if a
prompt behavioural assessment 1s required I won't'b¢ able to give any mput. M
wealth of experience with this. more so tham I'do. as she works with captive Kaka on a
daily basis so I would value her opinion.oen. this matter very highly.

Nega mihi

On Thu, Jdn 15. 2023 at 2:01 PM S4&IEIW)

wrote:

Hi

Thanks for the update.

Unfortunately. Te Anau didn't do disease screening as they wanted Junmy to have an in
an out assessment (@ hospital.




When said he could bring Jimmy on Wednesday we HAD to take advantage of that.
I'm so1ry that has resulted 1n a non disease screened bird that we would like moved to

DBG.

Te Anau was indicating that Jimmy was too fragile for Ai1. Couldn't be restrained using
the kakapo technique etc. I indicated that I needed a health assessment before I could
decide what we do with Jimmy next. Following a phone call on Monday. 59(2_) and [

wanted Jimmy assessed as soon as possible so we could make further decisions based on
the findings of a qualified vet.

s9(2)(a)

yvou are now on the email thread. 4% <aid she was going to pass on Jimmy's
notes.

Part of the assessment is to look at Jimmy's behaviour. SAGAN can ménitor. But we are
hoping that you will be able to provide feedback as well. Weare\concerned as 2

other birds that recently transferred away from Te Anau displaved béhavioural 1ssues
upon arrival a DBG.

Yes. previous communication did talk about keeping Junmy on the hospital for as short a
period as possible. based on his last visit. I was reassessiiig the Te Anau team that we
would do the best for Jimmy's welfare. As they wereyresisting sending him to DWH at all.
So. to hear he's had a good check up so far and coping well. We will just carry on.

If Jimmy 1s coping. We can wait for somepreliminary results. If he 1s too stressed he
should be moved to DBG.

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android

From: S4RIC)
Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 1:22:48 pm

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

I found the chain of emails so just looping vou in. SACUEY




We can keep Jimmy a bit longer if needed if vou're worried about disease screening. I am
a bit confused as all the comms was about Jimmy 1deally not staying in hospital more
than say 2. maybe 3 nights?

Hopefull can clarify what the actual plan is.

Nga mihi
Lisa

wrote:

Hi,

s9(2)(g)(i) and I would like to have Jimmy/and Charlie (kaka currently held in Te
Anau) assessed. We are primarily concerned with behavioural issues. but Jimmy may also

have physical 1ssues to be addressed.

I think having the birds sent to DWH and then DBG 1s the best option. We are currently
working through a process to makedhis happen. I just wanted to give vou a heads up.

Cheers

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Frém: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Wednesday, June 14, 2023 10:33:48 PM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Fwd: Jimmy

Attachments: Behavioural observations Kaka Jimmy.docx (21.47 KB)



i
Forwarding you a report of observations of Jimmy over the years he's been here. It

highlights the reasons we flagged welfare concerns with his involvement in the Al
program.

Sorry you weren't in the original email chain.
Jimmy arrived at DWH yesterday.

Regards,
S9(

Get Outlook for Android

FromSEIAIE)I(D)]
Sent: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:31:00 pm
To: SAIEY s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy

Hi all,

Attached are observational notes re Jimmy’s behaviour over the years he’s been with us. We keep a daily
diary and the duty‘ranger will note anything of concern or interest. At times we have engaged volunteers
(from insider outside of DOC to spend extended time observing the birds if we have felt that that level of
observationsis réquired, for example when 2 pairs are mingling and aggressive or bullying behaviour is
observed-orsuspected. At other times observations are based on what we see during daily activity at/in the
aviaries:

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
consequences, meaning extreme care when catching is essential. He can’t be chased around an aviary with a
net for example. Ideally he should be lured into a crate or smaller area where he can be grabbed directly,
however he has a long memory and isn’t easily lured into that situation frequently.

A referral form for the physical exam will be forwarded tomorrow.

From: SEIAIC)ID)

Sent on: Thursday, June 15, 2023 2:01:39 AM

LCYRS 0 (2) 1) (1)
- ) s
IR 7

CC:

S9(2)(g)(ii) s9(2)(a)
- A~

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check

Yes.

Thanks'sounds good so far.

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android




From: SE(EA(e)[{1)

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 1:07:22 PM
IEHs9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Jimmy Health Check

HeIIo

Thank you for this update.

Look forward to further assessment as it becomes available.
s9(2)

From: SSIPAIE))

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 12:52 PM
To: SEIPAIC)IY

[@H]s9(2)(9)(ii)

s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy Health Check
Kia ora Koutou

An update on handsome Jimmy for you all. He was a superstar under anaesthesia this morning for his health
check.

X-rays showed no obvious progression of arthritis in his left shoulder/elbow/carpus due to the previous
healed crush fracture/injury he sustained to this wing. X-rays are unable to detect degeneration in cartilage
however so we can't rule out arthritis completely at this stage. It is pretty much guaranteed that he will
develop arthritis in this limb at some stage so regulaf health assessments like we did today are essential to
manage his wellbeing.

We took blood for biochemistry to assess his organ function as well as presence of infection/inflammation.
We are also sending some blood to assess forpresence of lead as is our standard protocol for captive
parrots. We have also sent some faeces totheflab to check for parasites and enteric bacteria and we are also
submitting samples for PBFD and Chlamydia tests.

So far he is coping well in hospital.and | am not concerned that he is excessively stressed about being here.
Of course, in a hospital setting We/can't assess his behaviour properly so the plan is to send him to Dunedin
Botanic Gardens for this general behavioural assessment. we will be in touch shortly to arrange this so
he can head over to you.soon once he is fully recovered from his anaesthetic procedure.

Final lab results will probably all only be in mid-next week and we will let you know if we have any concerns.
At this stage | am happy with his health and how he is looking. | am certain will be in touch in due
course once she has assessed Jimmy's behaviour.

Nega mihi

https://www.wildlifehospitaldunedin.org.nz
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From: e
Sent on: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 2:15:29 AM

To:

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Thanks for the updates everyone!

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIPAIE))

Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 1:09:43 PM

To: SEEAEY s9(2)(g)(ii)
s9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Charlie and Jimmy

Hi Team,

Just a little update onJimmy since he arrived. | have popped repeat bloods for the 10"“% in my diary but
will wait for conformation on that from you guys.

Since arriving Jimmy has been a very active, inquisitive and appears a very mobile Kaka despite his wing
injury. He'seems to have settled in well and the intro to Cleo went smoothly. It was not instant love as
first sight.but they seem very comfortable around each other and no aggression from either towards the
other, he‘even started working the new nest box while Cleo looked on with interest.

Jimmy has been caught up a few times now and to me showed no more of a stress response than any
other Kaka I’ve caught and he bounced back very quickly afterward with no long standing stress
response. He has been taking his meds in sugar water so that is going well also.

Over all apart from some hanging upside down from the roof and swinging he doesn’t seem to have any
behavioural issues like Bling and Taonga and | am happy with how things have gone so far. This all
bodes well for the upcoming breeding season and | am excited to see if these two progress to mating.

Cheers



If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that
any further use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: 3{¥3E))

Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 9:17 AM
QRS 9(2)(9)(ii) Lisa Argilla

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy
Kia ora 5_9(2)(9)
So far the costs we have incurred for Jimmy are as follows
Blood tests - $208

Faecal Screening $141

Disease screening (Chlamydia, PBFD) $116

Drugs $88

Total - $553

The above costs do notinclude any of the daily hospital care or in-house radiographs
under general anaesthetic that were.performed which we will not on charge to you,
but for you interest the cost of the prafessional fees/hospital care is approx $950.

Next week there will be the additional cost of $23 for the repeat fibrinogen blood
test.

In terms of timeline. We ean make a further assessment after we get the blood test
results back as that will'hielp us to determine if Jimmy needs long term metacam to
manage his arthritis.

Attached arethe clinical summary notes from his hospital stay, including all email

s9(2)(9)(ii)

coms about him.

Ondue,Jul 4, 2023 at 4:38 PM

wrote:

Hi Team,

m would like to know if you can give us an idea of the current costings for
Jimmy, and if there is any interim reporting you can provide. I’m are working on
timeline for the Te Anau team with regards to Jimmy.

The repeat bloods the week of July 10", noted, and part of the timeline.

One question with regards to the Metacam, do you see Jimmy being on this long
term, or some other anti-inflammatory?

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)




From: SEIBIEY)

Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 10:55 AM
To: AW

(o7 HS9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy
Kia Ora

Jimmy went to Sl last week and had been prescribed 3 weeks of metacam and is scheduled for a
follow up blood test (fibrinogen) the week of the 10th of July as he will have been on the metacam for
nearly 4 weeks at that point.

We have done a range of blood tests, radiographs etc on him for his physical exam. | am justwondering
where to direct the invoice once his follow up has been completed?

Thanks, SEIGIEY

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

s9(2)(a)

On Wed, Jun 21, 2023 at 2:29 PMEIBIC)N) wrote:

Thanks everyone.

From: SEIBIEY)

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 1:09 PM
Hs9(2)(a)

o2 ]59(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy
Great thanks SJ@AN sounds good.

Get Outlook for Android

If this message is notintended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that
any further use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

F1uAs9(2)(a)

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 12:57:46 PM
To:SEIAIEY)
(oo ]59(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

i

Please see the attached discharge letter for Jimmy. We will send him to you with enough meloxicam for
3 weeks and be in touch in a few weeks when he is due for a repeat blood test for fibrinogen.



Cheers
s9(2)
If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

s9(2)(a)

On Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 4:41 PMSIPAIEY > wrote:

Welcome back hope you had a fabulous trip.

Great thanks will text you on Thursday first thing with a time but likely around 11am-ish.
Cheers

S9(2)

Get Outlook for Android

If this message is not intended for you please delete it andunotify us immediately; you are warned that
any further use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: EEIPIE))

Sent: Tuesday, June20, 2023 4:37:11 PM
ILHS9(2)(a)

s9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

KiaOra,
Thursday morning sounds good for pick up for Jimmy, contactless would be great if that's ok.
SEIPAN if you can please text us an ETA when you know what time on Thursday that would be great.

At this stage we plan to continue with once daily metacam (anti-inflammatory) which can be puton a
favourite piece of food if he will take it, then repeat his blood tests in a few weeks.



Kind regards,

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

s9(2)(a)

On Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 3:58 PMEEIAIEY wrote:

Kia ora team,

Just chiming in to say | will be back at work on Thursday SEI¢AIE))
_ I will be able to collect Jimmy late morning if that works.? Happy

to do contactless.

The plan at this stage is to pop him in one of the rehabs aviaries for a few days'te settle in and continue
meds if needed based on discharge advice from vets.

The next step will be to move Jimmy next door to Cleo for a few days intre:and if looking good put him in
with her for the upcoming season.

Does this sound like a plan?

SEIBIC)M are you happy for me to email updates on Jimmy to you and SEIM You could then update Te
Anau as you see fit, it might be the best way moving ferward with them if updates are fed through
official DoC channels?

Cheers everyone. Look forward to meeting this very talked about Kaka:)

Ma te wa

If this message is,notintended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that
any further use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SAIEY

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 3:20:35 pm



To: SEEA))
s9(2)(a)
Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia ora e

Even though he is coping okay being in hospital on a low dose of sedatives and pain meds, and the
stress levelis not exacerbating, | would not say handling is stress-free for him.

Being in hospital is a stressful situation so further assessment at the aviary is stillimportant. | am.sure
SEIPAR and her team will keep the goal in mind when Jimmy is more settled in a larger aviary for thése
assessments to be carried out.

Regards,
s9(2)

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

s9(2)(a)

On Tue, Jun 20, 2023 at 10:19 AM S I()I)} wrote:

Thanks team!

That sounds good. Te Anua staff have commented that Jimimy may have been painful after the Ai
sessions last year. It good to hear that he is coping'with being handled, and that the meds are helping.

My goal is to understand if he is fit to be used for Aj this season. It’s sounding positive.

I would think if he is coping with being handled for tube feeding 2x day, he could cope with Ai a couple
times in month or two. Do you agreewith that assessment at this stage?

s9(2)(9)

FIIRs9(2)(a)

Sent: Tuesday, June 20,2023 10:06 AM

RS 9(2)(g)(ii)
Cc:PE)

Subject: ReCharlie and Jimmy

Kia ora koutowu,

Wethavefeceived all the test results back from external labs and Jimmy is in the all clear - Negative for
PBFD, Chlamydia, FEC and enteric screen. The enteric bacterial cultures for Salmonella and Campy
have come through as an interim result so far (they will culture for another few days) but it is highly
unlikely to become positive with a negative interim result.

Jimmy is coping okay and not showing any increasing level of stress with us handling him for
administering food and meds.

SEIPAN - \we will hear from you once you are set up for Jimmy to be transferred to DBG for behaviour
assessment.



Regards,

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

s9(2)(a)

On Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 3:47 PMEEA){D) wrote:

Thanks for that.
Good to hear he's coping.
s9(2)(9)
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From£¥3E))

Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 1:01:37 PM

To:SEl@))
(o1359(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia Ora,

Jimmy has been crop tubed since arrival as§ it is the most efficient way to deliver medications. This way
we can feed him at the same time as he'doesn't eat enough in hospital to maintain his weight.

ﬁ will need time to open up thé rehab aviary. I'm assuming this involves staff availability SEIPAIE)

SCTPAN will keep us updated.as soon as she is ready for him to be moved.

Jimmy is coping ok and\he only gets handled twice per day for medication/feeding otherwise we are
hands off. But as suggested above the aviary will be so much better for his mental health as it's
what he's more used'to.

Cheers

If thisis.agroup message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

s9(2)(a)

On Mon, Jun 19, 2023 at 3:58 AM SEIPAl(*)I{D) wrote:

Hi Everyone,

Are you crop tubing Jimmy now?
If it’s come to that, let’s move him now.



| know there are still lab results to come in, but as said, it’s not in his best interest to hold himin a
hospital cage.

s9(2)(9)

FIRs9(2)(a)

Sent: Sunday, June 18, 2023 3:22 PM
CHsO(2)(a)
s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

I think one of those rehab aviaries sounds perfect. They're big enough to house him so you can monitor
him effectively (hopefully medicate too) and also allow him to socialise with the rest of yourkaka flock
which will be wonderful for his mental health.

We have asked the lab to please put a rush on the lab results so we'll keep you-pested.

Cheers

s9(

On Sun, Jun 18, 2023 at 3:18 PMSEIPIE)) wrote:

That will be fine thanks

I will sort things closer to this time. There is no'need'as you say to keep Jimmy in hospital if he is fine to
be moved to DBG for further assessment. We can pop him in one of our rehab aviaries, which are
perfect to accommodate Jimmys disabititi€s inh the interim.

Does this sound like a plan?
Cheers

Get Outlook for Android

If thig'message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that
anyfurther use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..



From: I N
Sent: Sunday, June 18, 2023 2:55:46 PM

To: OIOIO N
cc: OGN
|

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia ora koutou

Just a note, we are hoping to get Jimmy's PCR results back this week. If they don't comeiback soon | am
still keen to send him to DBG no later than say Thursday or Friday as he is quickly losing,patience with
us in hospital and he is really stubborn and difficult when it comes to being crop.tubed which is not fair
on him. Plus, itis also in his best interests to not just stay in a small hospital cage when he doesn't

need to be here. SEI¢AM do you think this is something you could manage, SRIEIEN)

Nga mihi
S9O(
s9(2)(a)

On Thu, Jun 15, 2023 at 2:06 PMEEIAIE)) wrote:
Hi
Great, thanks SEIGIE)D)

SCIPM \e'll keep him and wait for the lab results but if he gets stressed we'll be in touch to get him over
to you ASAP. We have some notes from so we will forward that to you too.

| am going away from,fiext Tuesday and will not be available for two weeks so if a prompt behavioural
assessmentis required | won't be able to give any input. has a wealth of experience with this,
more so thanl'do, as she works with captive K&ka on a daily basis so | would value her opinion on this
matter very highly.

Nga mihi
SO(

On Thu, Jun 15, 2023 at 2:01 PMEIABIEIG) wrote:



Hi.
Thanks for the update.

Unfortunately, Te Anau didn't do disease screening as they wanted Jimmy to have an in an out
assessment @ hospital.

When said he could bring Jimmy on Wednesday we HAD to take advantage of that. I'm sorry that
has resulted in a non disease screened bird that we would like moved to DBG.

Te Anau was indicating that Jimmy was too fragile for Ai. Couldn't be restrained using the kakapo
technique etc. | indicated that | needed a health assessment before | could decide what we do with
Jimmy next. Following a phone call on Monday. SPAl(¢)I wanted Jimmy assessed as sodn as
possible so we could make further decisions based on the findings of a qualified vet.

IR vou are now on the email thread. §E] said she was going to pass on Jimmy'shetes.

Part of the assessment is to look at Jimmy's behaviour.SEI¥38 can monitor. Butwe are hoping that
you will be able to provide feedback as well. We are corncerned as 2 otherbirds that recently
transferred away from Te Anau displayed behavioural issues upon arrival a DBG.

Yes, previous communication did talk about keeping Jimmy on the hospital for as short a period as
possible, based on his last visit. | was reassessing the Te Anau team that we would do the best for
Jimmy's welfare. As they were resisting sending him to DWH at all»So, to hear he's had a good check up
so far and coping well. We will just carry on.

If Jimmy is coping. We can wait for some preliminaryftesults. If he is too stressed he should be moved
to DBG.

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: ¥3E))

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 1:22:48 pm

RS 9(2)(9)(ii) s9(2)(a)
SubjectiRBe: Charlie and Jimmy

| found the chain of emails so just looping you in, EI#3)

We can keep Jimmy a bit longer if needed if you're worried about disease screening. | am a bit confused
as all the comms was about Jimmy ideally not staying in hospital more than say 2, maybe 3 nights?

Hopefully S¥AIC)M can clarify what the actual plan is.

Nga mihi



On Thu, Jun 1, 2023 at 11:15 AM SEIAIE)D)] wrote:
Hi,
s9(2)(g)(i) would like to have Jimmy and Charlie (kaka currently held in Te Anau) assessed.

We are primarily concerned with behavioural issues, but Jimmy may also have physical issues to.be
addressed.

I think having the birds sent to DWH and then DBG is the best option. We are currently working through
a process to make this happen. | just wanted to give you a heads up.

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

From: 3{#3EC))

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 4:37:11 PM
1:3s9(2)(a)
oI Hs9(2)(g)(ii) s9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie and Jimmy

Kia Ora,
Thursday morning sounds good for pick up for Jimmy, contactless'would be great if that's ok.

SCIPAN if you can please text us an ETA when you know what time on Thursday that would be great.

At this stage we plan to continue with once daily metacam (anti-inflammatory) which can be puton a
favourite piece of food if he will take it, then repeatthis blood tests in a few weeks.

Kind regards,
s9(2)
If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.

Wildlife Hospital - Dunedin

From: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Thursday, July 6, 2023 4:04:14 AM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy Health Check

Attachments: clinicalSummary_Kaka Jimmy.pdf (567.73 KB),
WHD_Discharge_For_200241_SI_Kaka___Jimmy_440.pdf (232.89 KB)

2l1s9(2



There is no intention to deceive or circumvent Te Anau’s concerns. Jimmy was introduced to Cleo after
they were held side by side. We did talk about that on the phone call, they have been housed together in
the past, and she is recovering from an injury to her stump, so they have similar mobility issues.

LI would like to discuss the plans for Jimmy with me tomorrow before | formally respond.

I’m attaching the clinical notes, and discharge orders in case they didn’t make it to you previously.
There seem to be a couple of different email threads regarding Jimmy.

s9(2)(9)
From: 3ABIC)I0)

Sent: Thursday, July 6, 2023 2:28 PM

RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy Health Check

s9(2)(9)(ii)

is over in Dunedin today and went to the DBG and saw that Jimmy isiin'the same aviary as Chloe.
Would be good to have a chat about Jimmy and the plans for him before the breeding season. I’'ve got to
somehow maintain relations with you guys and the staff at the Bird Sanctuary. So it would be good to
have a plan mapped out for him.

Cheers

S9(

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Tuesday, July 4, 2023 1:18 PM

To: AW

Subject: RE: Jimmy Health Check

ZIS9(2)(9)(ii)

Hey that introduction betweenYimmy and Cleo is just through adjacent aviaries? That’s what | thought
you said the other day. Afterthe’assessment is complete there should be plenty of time to have Jimmy
come back to Te Anaubefore the start of the kaka breeding season. | thought that was still the
intention, even if he‘does take part in the Al this season. Just thinking it could make things more
stressful for Jimmy ifiwe plan to return him to Te Anau but he is establishing a pair bond again. One
thing to be in-adjacent aviaries as opposed to in the same aviary. | think it is important to stick with the
majority of what' was agreed to in that teams call between Te Anau, and yourself. It will certainly
help with the'relationship with the staff here to have Jimmy back even if it is just for a few months. He
was certainly a happy bird over here. Just had a long conversation With about things and | think it
was\good in the long run. | wouldn’t say that she is overly thrilled but having Jimmy back (even
temporarily) would help the situation as that’s showing that what was agreed to actually happened. If
you want to have another chat I’m quite happy to. E-mails aren’t always the best medium for this type
of conversation, so just trying to get the message across but sometimes it can sound grumpy, so I’ll put

a nice emoji at the end @

Cheers

S9O(



From: S®3l()D)}

Sent: Tuesday, July 4, 2023 10:34 AM
To: @A)

oI Hs9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check

Hi gl

Yes, | had a catch up with on Friday and let him know that Jimmy is doing well.

He is active and mobile. He is taking his meds. He has been introduced to Cleo anditwent very well.
The vet team want to recheck his blood levels after he's been on the medicatien for a few weeks.

So happy to report that he is coping well.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIR3IG)I(D)

Sent: Tuesday, July 4, 2023 9:32:50 AM

[s9(2)(a)(ii)

s9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Healthh'Chéck

Hi team,

Any updates on Jimmy? Is he settling in OK at Dunedin?
Cheers,

Get Outlook for Android

FPIHs9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2023 3:00:27 PM

(o73s9(2)(a)




s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check

Thank§#4 Looking forward to your full assessment in a few weeks.

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIPAIE))

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 1:06:11 PM
RS9 (2)(9)(ii)
o7359(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check

Kia ora koutou,

Just to send an update to everyone about the beautiful Jimmy. The rest of his lab tests came back
negative. will pick him up tomorrow for further assessiment at the DBG. We will also see how he
responds to being on a low dose of anti-inflammatory in a,few weeks, this will help us come up with a
plan for his regular health checks in the future.

Nga mihi
s9(2)

If this is a group message - please réplyall to keep all parties in the loop.

s9(2)(a)

On Sat, Jun 17, 2023 at'1 1:24 AMEEIP3IE)G) wrote:

Thanks we'te relieved he is coping well in hospital and hopeful that he'll settle in well enough at
dbg for you to'make your observations.

We've been happy with his demeanour ordinarily, but concerned he didn't cope well with the Al and
unsure.ifthis was a stress response, physical or both.

How often would you recommend we bring Jimmy over for health checks going forward?
Please keep us in the loop while he is at dbg.
Kind regards,

Get Outlook for Android



From:
Sent: Saturday, June 17,2023 10:09
RS O(2)(g)(ii)
oI }s9(2)(9)(ii)

[se(2)(a)

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check
Mérena

Just a quick update on Jimmy. One of the external lab test results is slightly high. This particularlab test
is a sensitive inflammatory marker. We can rule out an infection as the cause of the inflammation
based on other lab results (normal white cell count) so the most likely cause is arthritis,associated with
that old wing injury.

We've started him on a low dose of metacam once daily which will hopefullybe‘enough to manage the
inflammation. This will need to continue once he is at DBG for further asséssment. The plan then would
be to repeat this blood test in a few weeks as well as observing his demeanour of course to see if there
is a response to treatment. If so this would confirm early arthritis andweuld mean he'd benefit from
long term meds.

SEIPAN \e'll be in touch later this week to discuss further and ofganise a plan of attack for handsome
lirnmy.

Nga mihi
s9(

On Fri, Jun 16, 2023 at 11:25AMEEIAIENG) wrote:

Much appreciated everyone. Glad Jimmy was OK in hospital.

Just to be super ¢lear..'we have no welfare issue with him in normal circumstances, we raised the issue
that he was possibly finding the frequent catching, handling and procedure for Al overly stressful.

Get OutlookK for Android

From: SEI@IE)()

Sent: Friday, June 16, 2023 9:05:13 AM
HS9(2)(a)
(oo} 9(2)(9)(ii) s9(2)(g)(ii)

[s9(2)()ii)

s9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Jimmy Health Check



i

Thanks for laying this out and reminding me that physical assessment is only one part of a
comprehensive welfare assessment.

FromS#IE)]

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 2:56 PM
To: )]
oI} 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check

Most likely cartilage degeneration, which | mentioned in my earlier email update'doesn't show up on x-
ray. Or residual nerve damage from the trauma that occurred - similar to what humans call phantom
pain.

If periods of discomfort happen more regularly then he will need ongoing pain medication and a
thorough welfare assessment to determine the extent of the pain and if we are happy medication can
control it.

Nga mihi
S9O(

On Thu, Jun 15, 2023 at 2:43 PM EEIPIG)I) wrote:

Great to hear he's doing well the x-ray results sound positive, | wonder what the cause of his periodic
episodes of discomfortis?

Get Outlook for Android

From: S#3[()ID)}

Sent:Thtyrsday, June 15, 2023 2:01:39 PM
To: SEEA))

[s9)(@)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check
Yes.

Thanks sounds good so far.



s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: ¥3l()I{D)

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 1:07:22 PM

s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy Health Check

HelloGEH

Thank you for this update.

Look forward to further assessment as it becomes available.

FIRs9(2)(a)

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 12:52 PM
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy Health Check
Kia ora Koutou

An update on handsome Jimmy for you all. He was a superstar under anaesthesia this morning for his
health check.

X-rays showed no obvious progression of arthritis in his left shoulder/elbow/carpus due to the previous
healed crush fracture/injury he sustained to this wing. X-rays are unable to detect degeneration in
cartilage however sG:we'can't rule out arthritis completely at this stage. It is pretty much guaranteed
that he will develop arthritis in this limb at some stage so regular health assessments like we did today
are essentialtemanage his wellbeing.

We tookBloodfor biochemistry to assess his organ function as well as presence of
infection/inflammation. We are also sending some blood to assess for presence of lead as is our
standard protocol for captive parrots. We have also sent some faeces to the lab to check for parasites
and enteric bacteria and we are also submitting samples for PBFD and Chlamydia tests.

So far he is coping well in hospital and | am not concerned that he is excessively stressed about being
here. Of course, in a hospital setting we can't assess his behaviour properly so the plan is to send him
to Dunedin Botanic Gardens for this general behavioural assessment. we will be in touch shortly
to arrange this so he can head over to you soon once he is fully recovered from his anaesthetic
procedure.



Final lab results will probably all only be in mid-next week and we will let you know if we have any
concerns. At this stage | am happy with his health and how he is looking. | am certain 3¢l will be in
touch in due course once she has assessed Jimmy's behaviour.

Nga mihi
S9O(

IAIEY

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or subject
to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use, dissemination,
distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. Ifiyotrreceived this emailin error, please
notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message andvattachments. We apologise for the
inconvenience. Thank you.

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or subject
to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recCipient you are notified that any use, dissemination,
distribution or copying of this message or data is‘prohibited. If you received this emailin error, please
notify us immediately and erase all copies©f the message and attachments. We apologise for the
inconvenience. Thank you.

Caution - This message and accempanying data may contain information that is confidential or subject
to legal privilege. If you are not'the intended recipient you are notified that any use, dissemination,
distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this email in error, please
notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and attachments. We apologise for the
inconvenience. Thafikyou.



From: EEIEICI0)

Sent on: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 9:03:54 PM

To: s.9(2)(a)
cc: =EAICHD

Subject: RE: response to email and timeline.

21S9(2)(g)(ii)
So start at the top: the CMP.

Then reflect the Flocking plan and the importance of this bird.

Thenyou and | will set out the gap in observations between Te Anau and.Dunedin and point out the
conclusion from this ....

We can also observe that the Jimmy Charlies relationship is not.healthy and keeping them together in
separate aviaries maybe a major source of the issues observed at Te Anau and lead to less than
minimum aviary sizes.

Once we have this drafted We can send it and seewhat happens...
You’ve done good work on the structure and réason'why we are doing so lets put our best foot forward.

s9(2)

From::SRIPAIE))

Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 11:48'RM

RS 9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: response toEEIll email'and timeline.
Zl159(2)

I’m not in the DOC system, so I’m emailing from this account.

I’'ve been typingout a response to EI¥A email regarding “conditions” that Jimmy be house alone, and
returning/himtoe Te Anau until the start of the breeding season.

I’m really struggling to say that he will be returned at all.

SIVAR sent an assessment of how Jimmy is doing. She has caught him a couple of times, and he
showed no more stress response than any other kaka. He seems well adjusted to the aviary space
which he is able to share with a female. (something he can’t do in Te Anau with Charlie).




suggested to me in our phone conversation on Friday that when | put together an outline of the
time line | should reassure everyone:

Jimmy will be used for 1 Ai attempt, and if found to have adverse reaction -would not be used any
further this season. As well as putting a time frame around it.

I should also state: that Jimmy would not be used as a training bird when demonstrating and explaining
Ai techniques.

| know that Jimmy is not the most robust bird, but Sl and @) found no issues with him handling
the restraint, The vet team seem to think he’s fine, SEI¥3N has been able to catch him, and it hash’t
resulted in him not being able to be caught again for a very long time!

Yet, the Te Anau team wants to place “conditions” on how and when he can be utilised inthe
programme.

That’s where I’'m really struggling.

I’ll log into my DOC account in the morning and send you want I've done so far.

s9(2)(9)



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Monday, July 10, 2023 12:10:44 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re: Al with Jimmy

9(2)(9)(), 9(2)(ba)()
-

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3ABIC)I0)

Sent: Monday, July 10, 2023 12:05:53 PM

To: FIAICID)

Subject: RE: Al with Jimmy

Thanks EEIBICN)]

didn’t like the idea of.me using the bottle at all, she didn’t want me to use it from the start.
So, his modified behaviour maytave been more emotive than actual. Anyhow, | can see if thereis a
slightly larger bottle and have two on hand, depending on individual bird size. But the purpose is to stop
them flapping and biting, so it needs to be firm.

Given the anxiety andopposition about Al in the Te Anau birds, I’d sooner not have any birds at Te Anau
that we want to use for Al in the future. So, another good reason to retain him at DBG.

Cheers,
From:S&IC)(D)

Sent:Monday, July 10,2023 11:28 AM

f-459(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Al with Jimmy
Thanks so much S{¢3]
I’ve shared your email with 3J@)] as well.

Jimmy is at DBG now. My intention is he will remain there. He has had a medical assessment at DWH.
The question from Te Anau is : is the bottle restraint method suitable for Jimmy, as he “wasn’t himself”



following those procedures? They want to set a myriad of conditions around Jimmy’s use in Ai this
coming season.

To me it sounds like there may have been some discomfort in his wing, but they didn’t take him to the
vet at any time so we don’t know if medication would have helped.

His bloodwork indicated a slightly elevated fibrinogen result which is likely associated with
osteoarthritis. He’s been on Metacam for 2 weeks now and they will retest on Wednesday.

I’ll keep you posted.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)
From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Friday, July 7, 2023 5:12 PM

To: FIAICID)

Subject: RE: Al with Jimmy

Zls9(2)(9)(ii)

| have reviewed the Al an semen collection techniques in kakapo and kaka and the methods | used last
year with Jimmy, Charlie and Gimpie are the preferred methods for both species. Both methods are
faster and less stressful on the birds and much more efficient successful in kakapo.

In 2017 Tonga was held in the vertical upside-down pasition involving two holders and the inseminator.
| used a larger more difficult speculum which isswhy | spent a lot more time searching for the oviduct.
That method also is more problematic with urine and faeces getting in the way. In the current method
the female is held on her back in a bottle(which negates the need for a second handler holding the
head). This method prevents urine and faeces covering the oviduct. The new speculum is much better
and worked well on Charlie, it would have been perfect if she was not about to lay an egg.

In 2017 Jimmy was also held with two handlers and not in a bottle. | collected better volume of semen
both times in 2022 comparéed.with 2017. | wasn’t concerned with his stress levels at all. Kakapo have
continued to boom the sameight following semen collection on Whenua Hou and many have mated
following semen collection?

It was interesting,in November last year, wouldn’t allow me to go to Jimmy’s aviary. | too
would prefersthe semen collection and Al to be done as close to the aviary site as possible, which is the
reason we'believe that Jimmy should be on site in Dunedin. | remain convinced that he won’t breed
successfullyin his current situation and most likely need Al to be successful.

| hope-it works out. I’'m more than happy for DWH to provide advice on my methods.

Cheers,

From: SEIGIC)(D)]

Sent: Friday, July 7, 2023 4:21 PM

To: AW

Subject: Al with Jimmy



Hi Team,

| just need to clarify something. Below is a paragraph from Te Anau as they continue to object to Jimmy
being subjected to Al.

We've had Jimmy at DWH and he is now at DBG awaiting a redraw of bloods.

Te Anau claims the first attempt with Al on Jimmy he wasn't held upside down.?

| just want to clarify.

Te Anau wants a review of the Al technique. ( not warranted at allin my opinion or).
Canyou remember the different attempts using Jimmy? Upright vs upside down?

I know you have both stated that Jimmy was a good candidate and handled the proceéedings well.
Sorry to trouble you again with this.

From Team Te Anau:

That a review of the Al technique is carried out before the upcoming season. SEl#)] will need to be
updated on observations made post Al didn’t have the capacity to make any post Al observations
of Jimmy or Toanga), and DWH should be involved in this review; along with all observations of Al with
any birds to date. Note that the very first attempt at Al with Jimmy and Taonga went well for Jimmy being
held normally, upright, and released directly back into the aviary (Al was done in the porch of his
aviary). Doing something very similar to this would’be‘our ideal. It didn’t however go well for Taonga as
there was some difficulty, she was held for a lengthy period upside down (although not in a bottle).

Get Outlook for Android



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Wednesday, July 12,2023 11:14:32 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)
.
ccC: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Assessment and plan for Jimmy and Charlie

Hello EEI4

Like | said to you yesterday once we have the assessment completed wedwill have all the information
available and can discuss this.

In the meantime I’d be grateful if let the vets get on with their work in the right order.
Thanks

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3ABIC)IQ)

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2023 4:22 PM

To: SAIC)W)]
]
Cc:SAIC) D)

Subject: Re: Assessment.and plan for Jimmy and Charlie

Like | said once the assessment is complete we will have a full picture and be able to decide how to
implement the 23/24 flocking plan.

From: S9(2)(9)(ii)

Senton: Wednesday, July 12,2023 3:31:34 AM

To: 59(2)(0) ()
|

cc: s9(2)(g)(ih)

Subject: RE: Assessment and plan for Jimmy and Charlie



Follow up: Follow up

Start date: Sunday, May 5, 2024 12:00:00 AM

Due date: Sunday, May 5, 2024 12:00:00 AM

Thanks for your response SElé3)] is unfortunately unable to continue to address this presently but
will catch up when he’s able.

There are a couple of points necessary to clarify/confirm immediately.

1.

As discussed when we met, Jimmy is to return to Te Anau as soon as DWH,have had time to do
what they need to. Charlie is meanwhile alone, (it’s been a monthshow.in case anyone has lost
track), and the shorter the time they are apart better for the welfare.of both birds.

The introduction of Cleo was not discussed during our meeting,and would seem inhibitive to
making the necessary observations of Jimmy. He is essentially in hospital care until DWH have
given him the all clear. Keeping her in the aviary with.Jimmy now will complicate and affect
plans yet to be made for the coming season and increase stress on both birds. She should be
removed from the aviary now.

As per our discussions during our meeting, we would like assurance that itis DWH making
observations, and that they are clear of the task. We understood from our meeting that
independent observations and asséssment were required by a vet.

To simplify communications we respand to the second email below:

A note on aviary size: The DBGuaviaries where the Kaka are kept range in size from a floor space
of approx. 5x3m to 8x3m«-All significantly smaller than ours, and below recommendations. They
are very tall (approx. 5m,average), which may make up to minimum size in volume of the larger
ones, but not most.\Not sure of the size of the enclosed shelter area at the back of each aviary
but would be.a maximum of 2x3m and wouldn’t count for flight space or habitat for enrichment.

We are aware there are some parties who seem to believe we have ongoing welfare issues at Te
Anay; and were seeking to understand how far this misunderstanding goes, which is why we
offered.the explanations in relation to Toxo and the bent leg chick — to clarify that these events
were’beyond our control.

If you need more information re the Toxo event I’'m sure reportis still available but
in short —no there is no ongoing issue with this, and it is not possible to test for it as every bit of
substrate would need to be microscopically examined. It has a finite life span in substrate and
that time period has passed. We are at no more risk than any other facility. When the manual is
updated, the danger of toxo being introduced with soil, gravel or bark chips should be included.
We have stored gravel, under cover, for 18 months in order to have a safe material to put into
aviaries.



e Thanks for including your report regarding the chick with the bent leg. | note that the x-ray
seemed to be what was used to make the diagnosis along with observations, which may have
been misunderstood as being more frequent than we actually observed. I’m not sure it was
ruled out that it could have been caused by a physical injury that occurred just after hatching,
as confirmed their diet was good. That matter is in the past now, we just wanted to be sure
their2 was no misunderstanding of the circumstances that would lead anyone to believe we
were providing poor care or diet. We have of course taken the advice of the recommendations
regardless.

Regards,

The Te Anau team.

From: EPAIG)(D)

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 1:49 PM

To: SEA))
(o Hs9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: RE: Assessment and plan for Jimmy and Charlie

Hello

Thanks for your note.

Thanks for sharing. | think that once we have the full results of the assessment in and can consider the
whole is the time to address these points.

s9(2)

From: SEIGAIC)I(D)

Sent: Friday, July 7, 2023 1:19 PM

Hs9(2)(9)(ii)
o8 9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Assessment and plan forJimmy and Charlie

1S9(2)(g)(ii)

I thought it would be goodto gét some of Te Anau’s thoughts onto paper. Most of this we have
discussed already. We'would be keen to see the following:

1. Jimmy returned to Te Anau once DWH team have had time to make a full evaluation. They were
allowing two weeks to re-test his blood after starting a course of medication.

2. Confirm that it is/will be DWH team making the actual observations and providing an
assessment based on that, but including observations made by Te Anau team as relevant to
post Al behaviour (no one else has observed Jimmy post Al), and that they are clear that this is
the reason they have been asked to observe. It would be unfair to Jimmy to subject him to the
same procedure in order to make those observations directly.

3. Thatitwas us (the Te Anau team) that flagged concerns with his participation in Al, and not
because anyone had welfare concerns about Jimmy in ordinary circumstances. He is a happy
and content bird in Te Anau.

4. Thata review of the Al technique is carried out before the upcoming season.S# will need to
be updated on observations made post Al didn’t have the capacity to make any post Al



observations of Jimmy or Toanga), and DWH should be involved in this review, along with all
observations of Al with any birds to date. Note that the very first attempt at Al with Jimmy and
Taonga went well for Jimmy being held normally, upright, and released directly back into the
aviary (Al was done in the porch of his aviary). Doing something very similar to this would be our
ideal. It didn’t however go well for Taonga as there was some difficulty, she was held for a
lengthy period upside down (although notin a bottle).

5. If DWH wish to observe and refine the Al process, a more robust bird is to be used. Jimmy’s also
not a suitable training bird (for teaching others the Al techniques), so if he is used for Al the plan
should be to capture and process him as quickly and efficiently as possible.

6. ThatlJimmy shouldn’t be caught by being chased or with a net due to the risk of a fall causing
harm as he doesn’t fly at all and cannot arrest a fall.

We would be interested to hear why Jimmy was put in the same aviary as Cleo. Surely this will inhibit
the ability for anyone to make the necessary observations of Jimmy’s, and he deesn’t'actually need a
partner to participate in Al. We can’t be 100% sure, but it’s very unlikely Jimmy wilbnaturally mate with
any female due to his injury (physically unable to extend the wing and thefefore‘generate enough lift
with it to balance during the act. He had bonded well with Taonga. Jimmyhas been knocked off perches
by other birds in the past and we are just worried about this potentially happening. The good thing is
that Jimmy and Chloe used to be a pair, so do know each other.A bit concerned that there could be
additional stress for him when he comes back to Te Anau if he was'starting to bond with her again.

In the scenario that DWH determine that Jimmy is suitable tojparticipate in Al this season:

1. Jimmy should not be used for training other staff and any Al (reviewed procedure) is kept to
minimum timeframe and stress for him.

2. We would like the opportunity to have ourfown observers present if it is to take place in
Dunedin, and in any case that obServers are available to note any changes in his demeanour
afterward and this may need.te be'several weeks to allow for any adverse effects to become
apparent (we recommend @ maximum of 2 weeks). This should also allow time to determine if
any eggs produced by the recipient female are fertile.

3. |Iffertility is achievedJimmy is to be returned to Te Anau. If fertility is not achieved, additional
time should be allowed before making a second attempt (and assuming he coped well with the
first, with nosadverse reactions observed).

Re Charlie:

and feel that Charlie and Jimmy should have an opportunity to bond as a pair. They
weren’t.aggressive when mingling, just grumpy and that may have been due to nesting and Al activity.
We felt'’keeping them separate would reduce further stress at that time, but they were mingling well
enough’just before he went, and Jimmy even showed some flirtatious behaviour. We might find they
have missed each other while Jimmy’s been away and that when he returns in a week or so it might be
close enough to flirty season that they could form a couple bond then. This would be ideal for keeping
them as a pair here, and even possibly while at Dunedin. She could have the opportunity to foster
chicks, or receive Al.

If itis decided to send her to Dunedin to facilitate fostering then:

1. ltis understood that she would be on loan only, and to be returned to Te Anau post season.



2. That careful consideration should be given to pairing her, and this could be Jimmy if they look
like they might bond (?).

Cheers

7]
(o]
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Tiakina te taiao, kia puawai

www.doc.govt.nz



From: EEIEICI0)

Sent on: Friday, July 21, 2023 1:55:41 AM

To:
s92)(@)

CC:

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check

Glad to read a positive update on handsome Jimmy.

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIPIE))

Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 1:29:56 PM
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy Health'Check

Great thanks for the'report on Jimmy.

If thismessage is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that
any further use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: PIC)ID)

Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 12:53 PM




Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check

Thanks ||}

Looks very compre hensive.

Much appreciated.

Get Outlook for Android

rrorn:

Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 9:40:55 AM

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Check
Kia ora koutou

| have spent this week reviewing all of Jimmy's health notes, collated the laboratory testing and also
noted down my behaviour observations and recommendations from his time in hospital as well as at
Dunedin Botanic Gardens.

Please find attached a comprehensive.ssurnmary with test results, behaviour observations and my
recommendations based on these findings.

s9(2)(g)(ii) please do/letme know if you need clarification on anything but please do note |
am going away on leave nextweek so it may not be a prompt reply.

Nga mihi

s9O(
OnThu, Jul13,2023 at 2:31 PM
wrote:

Kia ora@

We are still awaiting the blood test results, as there is a public holiday tomorrow, these may take longer
than usual to return.



is currently writing a report with her veterinary assessment which will hopefully be completed by
the end of next week. Until then there will be no decisions on a timeline for Jimmy.

If you have any further questions in regards to Jimmy, please direct these to S1#3l(){)] :
Nga mihi
s9(2)(a)

If this is a group email, please reply all to keep everyone in the loop

On Thu, Jul 13, 2023 at 10:19 AMEEIIG)I(D] wrote:

Hi sl and team at DWH,
Thank you for the assessment of Jimmy you are providing.

When you receive the results of yesterday’s blood tests, will you have had sufficient time to make
behavioural observations for full assessment, and (assuming blood tests.come back favourable), will
Jimmy then be ready to come home? An approximate timeframe will help:us plan for collecting him.

Regards,

The Te Anau team.

From: EEIPIE))

Sent: Wednesday, July 12,2023 11:01 AM
RS O(2)(9)(ii)
Cc:SElPAI()()

[s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Jimmy Health Chéck

Mérena

Blood test at midday.today. Results will take a few days.
Nga mihi

S9O(

Qh Wed, Jul 12, 2023 at 10:11 AMEEIPIE)NG) wrote:

Hi team, just wondering if there is a date set to re-test Jimmy’s bloods yet? Also any updates re
observations so far? We are anxious to get him home ASAP for his sake, but also for Charlie as she is
currently by herself.

Regards, the Te Anau team.



From: EJ@IC)0)
Sent on: Thursday, July 27, 2023 8:50:06 AM

To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: visit to DBG, phone calls that followed

9(2)(9)(ii), s.9(2)(a), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(9)(i)

9(2)(9)(), s.9(2)(a), 9(2)(ba)(i)

9(2)(g)(in), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(9)(i)




9(2)(g)(ii), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(g)(i)

Plans:
Jimmy remains at DBG, will be the first bird used as an Ai donor with SSI female.
House Jimmy with Cleo for the season, and look at them likely being a future pairing;

Charlie can remain at Te Anau this season, and Rata will move from Invercargill to be housed
(adjacent/with Charlie).

If Charlie gets broody and lays, we can use her as a foster for SSi eggs.from other pairs.

out of scope

9(2)(9)(ii), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(g)(i)




From: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Saturday, July 29, 2023 4:41:57 AM

To: s9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: Jimmy observations

Attachments: Swinging.mp4 (8.55 MB), Crouch and flap.mp4 (7.01 MB)

Follow up: Flag for follow up

ZlIS9(2)(9)(ii)

Glad you're backin the conversation. It has been a difficult period for all of us with people away on
leave, sick or otherwise unavailable.

This situation over the last 8 weeks has brought to light sethe eritical issues for SIEIC)M and | and we
will address them in due course. The scheduled meeting is.not the right forum to discuss this.

The priority issue that needs immediate resolution is the welfare of both Jimmy and Charlie.

| have had a couple of impromptu opportunities to see Jimmy at DBG SEI#AIEN)

_), most recently Friday (28")'and have observed some atypical, repetitive behaviour. See
videos attached. The first shows Jimmy swinging - not in a happy way as | described briefly in my
summary of observations sent for reference. We have only ever seen him swing for very short
periods, and only in immediate response to enrichment. At DBG on Friday, and on a previous visit in
early July, | observed him swingingfor prolonged periods without any obvious circumstances that he
might be responding to.

The second video shows him doing a crouch and flap motion from side to side. On Friday | observed
him going between'the two behaviours, mostly swinging, for the duration of the time | was there -
approximately 15'mins - pretty much without pause. This is not something we have seen previously and
are interested to learn what interpretation of this marked change in his behaviour is.

We entirely trust @l expertise and judgement, but are now wondering if she has all the
information she needs for making the call on his welfare at DBG. | can't, in good faith to Jimmy,
engage in conversations about him staying on at DBG without consideration given these observations.

We are absolutely willing to help facilitate his participation in Al, but his welfare must be
considered priority and we're obligated to report any observations that affect this, even if it's not
convenient. It would be negligent not to.

Please would you forward this, including the video clips to as she may not have seen this or be
aware that this is something we have not seen before. The picture quality isn’t great by email but I’'m
happy to send these (and more) by drop box link or similar if required.



We’re sure there are ways to further mitigate any undue stress during Al going forward, and that there
will be opportunities throughout the season ahead.

We stand by our original observations. There was a change in his behaviour directly after the second Al
which would indicate there had been stress there, either physical or psychological, that warranted
monitoring. It wasn't continuous, with him some days acting perfectly normally, until it culminated in
him giving the 'sick bird look' (fluffed and tail tucked) for a short-lived period before recovering fully. We
had a second opinion from and communications with DWH at this stage, agreeing that he should
be sent over for a full health check, but since there was no immediate urgency, it would be best to
minimize the stress of more handling by delaying for a period. This also worked better for DWHwith
their work volume at the time.

Charlie has been hanging in there but clearly missing company and the longer she's alone, the higher
the stress for her.

and SEIAIE)]



From: S4AICN0D

Sent on: Thursday, August 3, 2023 4:26:14 AM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Getting gl to let go of Jimmy for the season.

Not sure how to getﬁ to “let it go”. They’'ve come to accept that Jimmy is staying at DBG, for the season
but now they want tc be part of doing observations of him while he is there.

| thought this was stuff we would work through on the Team’s call, but | guess they want to hash'it out'in
the email thread.

Below is my proposed response,

too is tired of the implication that they rest of us can’t look after Jimmy properly:

From: S@AI()I(1)
Sent: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 11:06 AM
LS O(2)(g)(ii)

[ s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy observations
Hi all,

Firstly, | apologise if it seemed | was trying to leave anyone otit of the conversation, | wasn’t, it was just our
understanding that S8l was making the observations for herreport on Jimmy. My own visits to DBGA were
so not appropriate times for catching up with
We would really like to develop better lines 6f communication all round.

W: all have the same goals — to ensure high welfare'for Jimmy, and that he be included in the Al

program. Yes, we do. And through this process hisswelfare has always been at the forefront.

Clearly, as suggested, we need more obsérvations of Jimmy to clarify how frequent these behaviours
are, what thay are in response to, and how leng each lasts. S5Vl observations to date should also help
inform this. We know observations afe time consuming, so SEI¥AN if you could use help just let us know and
we will talk to our manager about-one or the other of us coming up to watch Jimmy.

and | are satisfied with(the level of skill and competence of at DBG with regards
her ability to safely capture, h@ndle, medicate, and provide a good assessment of how Jimmy is doing in the
aviary. | think at this pojft we just let them get on with it.

While this happens, we will'need to provide Charlie with company and are happy to make arrangements for
Rata to stay while Jimmy is away, however we need to consider the implications for when Jimmy comes
home, particularly if.this is sooner than anticipated. Staff at ICC are undergoing disease screening with Rata
so that he cah beymoved to Te Anau as soon as possible.

SEIPAI()B can you please confirm, so that we are all on the same page, that Jimmy is at DBG for nesting
season only. I think, was under the impression that this was a permanent move (?) As it is not
necessary for Jimmy to have a partner to participate in Al, would it not be less stressful for both Cleo and
dJimmy long term, to separate them to prevent bonding? Jimmy has been given the all clear to participate in
thesAi programme for the season, and will remain at DBG for the season.

Cleo is a priority bird for Al, she needs to lay in order to participate in Ai. Housing her with Jimmy will
increase the chances of that happening. | also don’t have any problem if Jimmy and Cleo bond, he’s not
strongly bonded to Charlie, so if he gets on with Cleo that’s a win-win for those birds. For both bird’s welfare
they should be housed together for the season.

Future planning for all the current breeding adults and our necessity to future proof the captive breeding
programme, is a discussion that will take place and centre around what juveniles we plan to retain, and

future pairing options.



A couple of further observations which may help with interpretation of jimmy’s behaviour. Crouch flapping,
when observed here, was always done while running along perches and generally in response to excitement.
We did not observe an increase in crouch flap as the breeding season began, but we did see Jimmy and
Taonga spending time exploring their aviary with exaggerated bouncing moves and peering into corners and
under plants (and into nest boxes) as they prospected for nest sites. Swinging behaviour was short duration
(under a minute) and fairly slow tempo. We interpreted it as happy behaviour as he would be peering
around and taking interest in his upside down world.

Keen to work with to ensure best outcome for Jimmy so will send a document recording three hours
of observations (which intended to send in her original report to but there was an issue with the
link) taken by staff member who trained as a zoo keeper and had experience of recording
obs at Wellington Zoo. These may provide some kind of baseline of behaviour at the recorded times,of day
and be helpful for further obs.

Great to have a baseline. I'm not overly concerned with Jimmy’s swinging behaviour at this time. ['think it is
a happy behaviour, but of course, the team will continue to monitor it.

E and 34¥[(s)
From: S4#E)
Sent on: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 4:07:21 AM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

CC:

Subject: RE: Jimmy observations submittéd by

Kia ora all,
Just chiming in as requested regards Jimmy.

| have had no concerns with Jimmy to date and we continue to consult with our Vet team at the Wildlife
Hospital and captive coordinators as we move though the next few months if the decision is made by
DOC for Jimmy to remain in Dunedin for the purposes of capturing his genes for the benefit of the South
Island Kaka Breeding Programme.

Jimmy swinging upside down is a known behaviour noted by Te Anau staff and is something he is also
doing here. From our observations it does not appear to be a negative response to environment rather a
game or play behaviour and from observations he does this for a while then moves onto something
else. We have provided play chains for Jimmy in response to this behaviour so that he can try different
ways of swinging and to move about freely while up at height as well as play boards for enrichment. We
will continue to monitor this behaviour going forward while he is here and consult with our vet team and
captive coordinators as needed, but as | have indicated previously | do not have any concerns at this
stage with this recorded behaviour.



The postering behaviour could be for a number of reasons and it is hard to speak to the video without
wider context about what else was going on at the time.

| am not a parrot behaviourist and can only comment based on my own observations working with
loads of birds on a daily bases including Kaka and Kea. | see this a lot within the collection particularly
leading into breeding and would not consider it anything to worry about. From observation of Jimmy
doing this which aren’t many to date, this is not concerning and could be breeding behaviour/displaying
to Cleo, drying himself after our misters have been on after his bath, a natural movement mimicking
flying /take-off/play/fun/stretching and so on. Jimmy appears to be stable and in control of his
movements.

Overall from our observations and handling/catching since arriving, Jimmy is an active, robust,'engaged
and mobile Kaka despite his disability. He has settled in well and has adapted to his maodified aviary
with heated off display area. This has been while we have worked through the process efgetting a full
health assessment for Jimmy as requested by DOC. This continues under Vet guidance as we monitor
his response to pain medication management for his arthritis.

Cheers

From: S@AICEI)

Sent on: Monday, July 31, 2023 12:36:28 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy observations submitted by

Thanks everyone, just chiming in*here to contribute that crouch and flap is something Jimmy does daily
throughout the year, though at Te Anau he does it running rather than stationary. Before leaving Te Anau
Jimmy did display to,Charlie, and once | saw him give her food, so it is likely his hormones are stirring.
The most marked pre-breeding season behaviour | have noticed from Jimmy is a very bouncing gait and
careful searching of+his aviary as he assesses potential nesting sites. Taonga used to do this with him,
Charlie appeared not to. Swinging is another of his daily habits but we only ever saw it for short
durations,sSlower tempo and usually with vocalisations.

Keen.towork with to ensure best outcome for Jimmy so tomorrow | will send a document
recording three hours of observations (which intended to send in her original report to SI¢AMbut
there was an issue with the link) taken by staff member who trained as a zoo keeper and
had experience of recording obs at Wellington Zoo. These may provide some kind of baseline of
behaviour at the recorded times of day and be helpful for further obs.

From: B0

Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 10:40 AM
Hs9(2)(a)

@ ]
ce: RIOI0)




s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy observations submitted by
HigIl

Thank you for your time.

Agreed that @R should be involved in this discussion and could have been engaged at the time of
LI visits.

I am in agreement with that Jimmy is likely displaying the behaviour that he shows when provided
enrichment, because he is finding the surroundings at DBG stimulating.

The postural behaviour is also a good sign. Breeding season is quickly approaching.

S9(2) please chime in with your observations of Jimmy over the last few weeks, and the attached
videos.

Thank you,

s9(2)(9)
From: SEIBIEY)

Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 10:06 AM
To: SAICHD
Cc:EAIC)D)

Subject: Re: Jimmy observations submitted by

Morena
I've had an opportunity to review the videosthat you sent through.

I'll start with the crouch and flap; this one is not super concerning to me as | have seen many captive
parrots display this behaviour as breeding season approaches. My interpretation is that it is some sort
of postural behaviour or dominance behaviour that they do in captivity in response to the hormones
that will certainly be rampingup right now as breeding season is on our doorstep. Things to monitor
closely are that breeding harmones can result in frustrated captive parrots however | knowis
very experienced with captive breeding so will be doing all she can to make sure all the birds in her care
are not getting frustrated.

The swinging/behaviour is definitely what | would call a stereotypical behaviour and not something I've
seen him.do whenever I've been up to the aviary. As a memory refresher, here is the definition of this
behaviouralsyndrome:

If the captive environment does not fully cater for the species-specific needs of an animal, or if it
imMposes unnatural stress or frustration, there can be a deterioration in the animal’s physical and
mental health. This may manifest in the development of physical disease or abnormal behaviour.

Abnormal behaviour in captive animals can include stereotypic behaviours — highly repetitive, invariant,
functionless behaviour, such as repetitive pacing, swaying, head-bobbing, bar-biting, over-grooming or
excessive licking. These behaviours result from “the frustration of natural behaviour patterns, impaired
brain function, or repeated attempts to deal with some problem” (Mason, 2005).



However, having said that, reports that she has seen this behaviour in short bursts in response to
enrichmentin Te Anau so each time he displays the behaviour might not necessarily be stereotypical
but learned in response to the enrichment. It would be useful to know from SEI& whether at the time
observed this behaviour at DBG whether it coincided with her having provided any enrichment? It's
also worth bearing in mind that the DBG is a very stimulating environment with lots of views and other
birds and noises to peak interest. If Jimmy has learned this behaviour or developed it as a response to
being provided with enrichment, as has mentioned occurs in Te Anau, it is possible this could be
the cause.

Displaying swinging behaviour for 15 minutes does seem excessive however but what the triggeris,is
unknown without much longer observations, something which might be feasible with cameras or.a
volunteer who can sit somewhere unobtrusive and observe him for hours at a time.

I thinkitis important to engage in these conversations as she has a lot of experience with
managing captive kakéa and will likely have some important input. As Jimmy is currently'in her care it
would be interesting to note whether she has seen this behaviour in him or any.otherkakéa at DBG. Itis
also important for to be part of the discussion as if we are dealing with a stererotypical
behaviour, new or pre-existing, then some different enrichment options,may have to be provided to see
if this makes a difference for Jimmy.

Lastly, | would also just like to put it out there that | am NOT an avian behaviourist, this is a specialty
field with few practitioners and none that | am aware of in NZ.[know about general avian behaviour and
can identify stereotypical and stress related behaviours and am also very experienced with captive
parrots but | do not proclaim to be a behaviour expert,

Nga mihi

S9O(

@
L\

On Mon, Jul 31, 2023 at 8:50 AMSEIAIE)(D)] wrote:
1S9 (2]

I hope you had a relaxing and recuperative week of leave.

Can you please review,the attached videos and provide your feedback.

Much appreciated,

59(2)(9)

Get.Outlook for Android



From: SAIC)D)

Sent on: Sunday, July 9, 2023 10:30:22 AM
To: s9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Friday afternoon emails

Attachments: RE Al with Jimmy.msg (120 KB), Jimmy and Charlie Plans for 23-24 season.docx
(23.29 KB), Jimmy and Charlie Plans for 23-24 season.docx (23.29 KB)

i

I’ve cut and pasted QUGN emails from Friday into word documents.
I have also tried to address each point with background or justification.

Whether we need to go back to them addressing every point,...or whethenthe general email we
discussed last week will suffice??

I also checked with 39(?_) regarding the 2 different techniqués+.I*ve attached the email.

I’'m around all day, Monday.

Cheers,

s9(2)(g)



A short and sweet answer SJ¢3I(e)I0)] rather than trying to address

each of them. (feel free to edit)

The overall goal of the SI Kaka Captive Management Programme is to support South Island ecosystem
restoration projects, by providing captive-bred Sl kaka for release into the wild to establish viable self-
sustaining populations.

Birds are being managed for the objectives of the Captive Breeding programme. They are being handled\by
professionals at DWH and DBG and we will take that advise on board in determining all the birds fitness to
participate in Ai this season.

Te Anau is making an impassioned petition to limit Jimmy’s involvement........ from contributing tovhis full
potential. The desire to keep Jimmy at Te Anau and with a female he is not strongly bonded,with, rather
than having him on site where we intend to focus all our Ai and breeding efforts this season is in direct
opposition/obstruction/conflict to the objectives of the programme.

In all previous Ai procedures with Jimmy, the kakapo team had no concerns about Jimmy being overly
stressed. If the issue is that the handling technique resulted in lingering pain,in the days and weeks
following Al. It does appear that Te Anau failed to seek medical attention forhim.

Hi GIEIEID)

| thought it would be good to get some of Te Anau’sithoughts onto paper. Most of this we have discussed
already. We would be keen to see the following:

RESPONSE

Absolutely no reason for this. He needs to be at
DBG if females start laying (1 Aug last year).

1. Jimmy returned to T&Anau once
DWH team have had.time to make a
full evaluation. They.were allowing
two weeks to re-testhis blood after
starting a colrsejof medication.

2. Confirm that it is/will be DWH
team making the actual observations
and providing an assessment based
on that, but including observations
made by Te Anau team as relevant to
post Al behaviour (no one else has
observed Jimmy post Al), and that
they are clear that this is the reason
they have been asked to observe. It
would be unfair to Jimmy to subject
him to the same procedure in order
to make those observations directly.

Yes, DWH team will be making observations of
Uimmy.

The document “BehaviouralObservationskaka
Jimmy.doc” was provide to DWH by on
13/6/23. As well as a referral form fcr his
appointment with DWH.

** The only issue they have is the handing upside
down in the bottle, yet they do not want him
subjected to this handling for the DWH staff to
observe how he copes with it.

said, “more than happy for DWH to provide
advice on my methods.




*|t also seems that the observations observed
post Ai, were that Jimmy may have been in pain.
Yet, they did not seek medical intervention even
after DWH suggested he be brought in,

3. That it was us (the Te Anau team)
that flagged concerns with his
participation in Al, and not because
anyone had welfare concerns about
Jimmy in ordinary circumstances. He
is a happy and content bird in Te
Anau.

The assessment was requested by SICAIC)N and

to determine Jimmy’s fitness for
part.cipation in Al. DUE TO CONFLICTING
REPORTS FROM KAKAPO TEAM and Te Anau
team

4. That a review of the Al technique
is carried out before the upcoming
season. will need to be updated
on observations made post Al
didn’t have the capacity to make any
post Al observations of Jimmy or
Toanga), and DWH should be
involved in this review, along with all
observations of Al with any birds to
date. Note that the very first attempt
at Al with Jimmy and Taonga went
well for Jimmy being held normally,
upright, and released directly back
into the aviary (Al was done in‘the
porch of his aviary). Doing something

very similar to this would be'our
ErIgout of scope

9 g has reviewed the Al and semen
collection techniques in kakapo and kaka and the
methods he used last yearwith Jimmy, Charlie
and Gimpy are the preferred methods for both
species. Both methods are faster and less
stressful on the'birds and much more efficient

successful-in kakapo. (email attached)

1.Upfight\position: problematic with urine and
faeces\getting in the way

2/0n his back method: collected better volume of
semen from Jimmy both times in 2022 compared
with 2017 (upright)

3. the current method the female is held on her
back in a bottle (which negates the need for a

second handler holding the head). This method
prevents urine and faeces covering the oviduct.

5. If DWH wish to observe and
refine the Al process, a more robust
bird is to be used. Jimmy’s also not a
suitable training bird (for teaching
others the Al techniques), so if he is
used for Al the plan should be to
capture and process him as quickly
and efficiently as possible.

Agreed.

6. That Jimmy shouldn’t be caught
by being chased or with a net due to
the risk of a fall causing harm as he

Should ask S about catching him in and
aviary setting.....




doesn’t fly at all and cannot arrest a
fall.

We would be interested to hear why Jimmy was put in the same aviary as Cleo. Surely this will inhibit the
ability for anyone to make the necessary observations of Jimmy’s, and he doesn’t actually need a partner to
participate in Al. We can’t be 100% sure, but it’s very unlikely Jimmy will naturally mate with any female due
to his injury (physically unable to extend the wing and therefore generate enough lift with it to balance
during the act. He had bonded well with Taonga. Jimmy has been knocked off perches by other birds-in,the
past and we are just worried about this potentially happening. The good thing is that Jimmy and Ghlee used
to be a pair, so do know each other. A bit concerned that there could be additional stress for him when he
comes back to Te Anau if he was starting to bond with her again.

Cleo is a priority bird. The main objective of the 23-24 season is to produce offspring fromthe PRIORITY
BIRDS. Cleo has a leg injury that restricts us from using her in a flocking situation. Jimmy.and Cleo are well
suited due to their physical limitations. Cleo and Jimmy have been housed togethenbefore. Aviary space is
limited...AND in order to use Cleo for Al, she needs to lay an egg. She is more likely to do that if she has the
attention of a male.

It is unlikely that either Cleo or Jimmy will mate naturally, but having them.together means that a) they are
not alone. b) there is a chance that they will get broody and be ready for Ai.

The fact that he had bonded well with Taonga and not as well with Charlie, means there is always the
possibility that he can bond with another female. The point is h&'should be with a female, and it doesn’t
need to be Charlie. He has had an opportunity with her, we don’t need to prolong that relationship.

If you think back to the Team’s call we had with all holders in 2022, about future proofing the captive
population, we discussed flocking and the possibility ofCreating new pairings.

In the scenario that DWH determine that Jimmy jis’suitable to participate in Al this season:

1. Jimmy should not be used for Agreed
training other staff and any, Al
(reviewed procedure) is kept to
minimum timeframe.and stress for
him.

2. We would likethe'opportunity to [NO! No need for this.
have our own observers present if it
is to take placevin Dunedin, and in any|lt’s timing. We need to act quickly when birds are
case that observers are available to  [laying, we don’t have time to wait for Te Anau
note any.changes in his demeanour |staff to drive to Dunedin.

afterward and this may need to be
several weeks to allow for any
adverse effects to become apparent
(we recommend a maximum of 2
weeks). This should also allow time to
determine if any eggs produced by
the recipient female are fertile.

3. If fertility is achieved, Jimmy is to [NO!

be returned to Te Anau. If fertility is limmy is the primary Al male candidate. There is
not achieved, additional time should |no reason for him to be at Te Anau this coming
be allowed before making a second [season.

attempt (and assuming he coped well [If adverse reactions are observed, we regroup
and decide what the next step is for Jimmy.




with the first, with no adverse
reactions observed).

Jimmy will be in close proximity to DWH and if he
appears painful or out of sorts he can visit the vet
straight away.

Re Charlie:

s9(2)(9) and feel that Charlie and Jimmy should have an opportunity to bond as a pair. They weren’t

aggressive whe:r mingling, just grumpy and that may have been due to nesting and Al activity. We felt

keeping them separate would reduce further stress at that time, but they were mingling well enough-just
before he went, and Jimmy even showed some flirtatious behaviour. We might find they have missed each
returns in a week or so it might be close enotgh to flirty
season that they could form a couple bond then. This would be ideal for keeping them as a pair.here, and

other while Jimmy’s been away and that when he

even possibly while at Dunedin. She could have the opportunity to foster chicks, or receive"Al.

If it is decided to send her to Dunedin to facilitate fostering then:

1. Itis understood that she would
be on loan only, and to be returned
to Te Anau post season.

The birds in a captive breeding programme
remain property of THE CROWN. They are not
owned by the facility in.which they are held.
If Te Anau wants to retain Charlie, there is no
guarantee that Jimmy will be paired with her.

2. That careful consideration should
be given to pairing her, and this could
be Jimmy if they look like they might
bond (?).

Yes, We will be considerate in pairing Charlie, but
if we produceoffspring from our PRIORITY birds,
there arelikely to be new males that we can add
intodhe breeding programme.

Cheers
SO(




From:  SIALOI0)

Sent on: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 2:47:04 AM
S ) 3) (i)

Subject: Re: Draft Aviaries and welfare at the Bird Sanctuary

2)(g)(

the appropriateness of their aviary is the issue.
And the behaviour of staff O

All the other stuff was a addressed. It was learnings we passed on to all the holders.

Get Qutlook for Android

Erorm: EIAIEN0
Sent: Tuesday, Jul

To:
Subject: EW;Draft Aviaries and welfare at the Bird Sanctuary

11,2023 2:15:30 pm

Hello SaRAL

Any comment on the attached which is not related to the assessment. Why they are relitigating the
2019 event now is beyond me.



Thaks for this.
Thanks for raising the wider picture.
Some feedback.

Aviary size

Its unfortunate that the published expectations came out after the changes at Te Anau. Which ever
way you look at it the current kaka aviaries at Te Anau are at the lower end of the range of space
requirements. This is exacerbated when because of behaviour issues some space is not available. If
there is any opportunity to increase the base size of available aviaries then it should be taken.

Enrichment is a separate matter and need sot be part of the keeping regime regardless’of aviary
size.

Toxoplasmosis

News to me. But thanks for sharing. Di you think its is still an issue at J& Anau? Should we be
seeking a testing regime to check for it? Not sure whats in place and-what the needs are.

Bent leg
This was reported on in August 2019. So I'm not sure why'its ‘faised now.

https://doccm.doc.govt.nz/cwxv4/wec/faces/wecdog? dweName=DOC-6050419

This was a clinical assessment from DWH. The réceammendations at this time were:

- As circumstances change during the breeding.season reviews of plans and operational procedures
need to be completed so that there is adeQuate coverage and instructions to relieving staff are clear
and supportive.

- Nuts should be eliminated from the diet during the chick rearing phase
s9(2)

From: SIAIEI0)
Sent: Friday, July 7,2023 4:28 PM

Subject:‘Aviaries and welfare at the Bird Sanctuary

WS9(2)(0) i)

We/(the Te Anau Bird Sanctuary team) would like the opportunity to ask if anyone has specific,
current concerns about the welfare of our resident birds. That way we could work towards possible
improvements.

We are aware that our Kaka aviaries, when considered as two separate aviaries, are slightly undersize
by current recommendations. A quick note that when they had major renovations several years ago
the Kaka husbandry manual at the time (2018 version) didn’t specify size or dimensions. The 2021
version (published after alterations were made) specify 120m3 for each pair with a floor area of



40m2 (8x5x3m height). Ours have a floor area of 38m2 and area of just over 110m3 each, not
including the porch area (an additional 4.5m2 floor space and 9m3). We note that both versions are
based on the natural movement of the birds assuming they can fly. If we open the door between the
two aviaries we have approx 220m3.

We do a lot of enrichment with our birds and are confident they are all content and entertained

We recommended Taonga be transferred so she would have an opportunity te-breed, as Jimmy
seems incapable of doing this naturally due to his wing injury. They had bondéd well and courted
frequently but never mated.

You may not be aware that since s9(2)(9)(ii) and have taken:the reins at the Bird Sanctuary,
every aviary has, or is undergoing significant improvements in regard to size and/or environment,
and both in the case of the Kaka aviaries. The grounds and visiter experience have also had
significant improvements, and we haven't finished yet.

Charlie and Bling have successfully raised many chickswovef the years although it is true there have
been some adverse events. We believe these were all outside of our control, and we have raised
concerns and sought advice as appropriate. Ifthére is something we could have been, or should
now been doing differently, or could improve.on we would very much appreciate some constructive
feedback in order to make the appropriate changes. We have had several new versions of nest box
over the years as well as adding the nest'camera which has been a huge benefit for monitoring
chicks.

Toxoplasmosis:

This event was left to u$ toydétermine how it happened. Obviously we don't let cats into the aviary
or the nest box to have\a'Crap, so how would the chicks have directly ingested it? It must have been
fed to them by Charlie, so how did she have access to it? The most likely scenario out of several
possibilities issthatit was present in the gravel that we refreshed the aviary floor with many months
prior, as gats'weuld have had access to the gravel pit and/or quarry site where we purchased it. My
investigations determined that Toxo can live in soil/sand etc for up to 18 months. As far as I'm aware
there were not any warnings, guidelines or alerts about Toxo at the time that we had neglected to
follow. We have good hygiene practices and keep clean aviaries. We felt it was important this event
was shared with other bird holders as a potential environmental hazard similar to Aspergillosis that
could affect anyone at any time.w did an excellent job of the advisory that she sent out.

The chick that had a bent leg:

This was determined to be metabolic bone disease which would be due to poor diet. I'm unsure,
from memory whether this was a clinical diagnosis, or based on circumstantial evidence. We are
confident that their diet at the time was good, and within recommendations. There was one chick



out of four affected and it was therefore determined that it must have been due to preferential
feeding. | made one observation one time (via nest cam) of Charlie feeding the affected chick first. If
we were to fit circumstance to clinical diagnosis, we would assume that the one nut Charlie got daily
was always being fed to the one chick, and no others. If it was not a clinical diagnosis but based on
circumstance, then the possibility that it was a broken (bent/folded) bone from early on should have
been considered. The affected chick was the last to hatch, about a week after its 3 siblings and
managed to escape the shell through the tiniest hole in the shell.

Just thought it would be good to provide you with some context of what has happened here-with
kaka. Very easy for things to be misunderstood and the staff are very keen to make improvements if
they are deemed necessary and can fit within the budget.

Cheers
S9(

Conservation for prosperity Tiakina te taiao, kiapuawai
www.doc.govt.nz




SN <0 (2) (0)((1)

Sent on: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 10:45:22 PM

To: S9(2)(9)(il)

Subject: Re: Decisions about Jimmy and Charlie

I'm available. So, whatever suits your schedule best.

Get Outlook for Android

From: AIOI0

Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2023 10:41:24 AM
To:
Subject: RE: Decisions about Jimmy and Charlie

OK.
When do we want to discuss the outcomes of the assessment with Te Anau?
Monday?

From: SAIOI0

Sent: Monday, July 242023 10:44 AM
To:w

Subject: Decisions about Jimmy and Charlie

Morena 2a%,

We ngW_have the report and can make some decisions about moving forward with the plan:

l.amsatisfied that Jimmy is a good candidate for Ai, and we should include him as per the original
flocking plan.

He is currently housed with Cleo, and the plan would be to keep them together for the season, using
Jimmy as an Ai donor with Cleo and potentially another SSI bird that is a reliable breeder.

The recommendation to investigate the lowest dose possible that will provide good analgesia and
anti-inflammatory effects, supports Jimmy remaining at DBG for this coming season. | trust that

A3l and can work out a plan to trial dosages.



Dealing with Charlie and birds at ICC needs to be reconsidered from the original plan due to
having 1 less chick from last season, and the staff changes at ICC. | decided that holding high
priority birds at ICC wasn’t an option this season as they have been trying to fill the vacant
position of Senior Bird keeper for a number of months.

CHARLIE:

The oriﬁinal flocking plan, had her moved to DBG to participate in the flocking and AI. and

expressed concerns that she was the oldest female and not suitable for flocking with
younger males. | did say that as she was a proven breeder we were likely to use her as a foster
parent for some of the Ai birds that have yet to breed, as they are not proven to be good parénts.

They liked the idea of Bling and Charlie being reunited to be foster parents. (Suggesting-ef course
that it could be done in Te Anau).

out of scope

After all the falava with Te Anau, | do have concerns as to their qualifications to care for birds with
special needs. So, do we now reconsider this option?

out of scope

So, Option 1:

out of scope

Option 2:

In both scenariosyCharlie goes to DBG

out of scope

| have.ednsidered the idea of sending Charlie to be house with Rata at ICC...more of just a place
holdef'situation and so that Charlie isn't lonely. There is always the possibility that Charlie lays and
we ean use her as a foster. (Transferring eggs from DBG to Invercargill would be easy enough).
Again, Te Anau will say that Charlie could foster eggs in Te Anua. | suspect they will put up that
argument if we suggest moving Charlie for that reason. Charlie is proven breeder and good mother,
so having her at DBG is the best for the flocking/ Ai objectives.

Sorry for the lengthy read, but wanted to let you know what I've been mulling over this weekend.

Cheers,






From: SEIAIC)ID)

Sent on: Friday, July 28, 2023 1:51:03 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Fwd: Upcoming Teams Meeting Jimmy Discussion

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 11:29:40 AM
To: SAIC)D]

o7 H59(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Upcoming Teams Meeting Jimmy,Discussion

Zls9(2)(0)(ii)

is busy today taking one of our.antips to DWH so | am responding. please willyou
forward this email to as he may be more likely to read it if it comes via you. is less ready to
engage in a teams meeting than/l anticipated. | can understand her position. She received no helpful
response to the questions shie raised as matters of urgency around the wellbeing of Jimmy and no
feedback from anyone on the detailed history she sent on Jimmy and our experience of Al. People may
be uncomfortable whien-experts are criticized by underlings, but it is essential that we have the right to
raise concerns.

At the closg'of the last teams meeting, very clearly stated that Jimmy would go up to DWH, be
observed at DBGA and return to keep Charlie company until further decisions were made. What were
the cifcumstances that lead to a delay so long that it is no longer practical to return him? The report
prepared needs no discussion, she oks Jimmy for Al and she states that he should only need to be
inthe hand 3 to 4 minutes for the procedure. What do need discussion are our unanswered questions.

As there has been a lot of correspondence or | can resend questions which are still relevant and
these can be answered via email to save time before the teams meeting.

Please understand how deep our concerns are at this point.

Thank you for your time

s9(2)(9)



m: SEIAIC)D)

Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2023 10:59 PM
To: SEIAIC)ID]
oI Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Upcoming Teams Meeting Jimmy Discussion

and SJAIC)]

SIAN and | were hoping to arrange a Team’s meeting this week to discuss the final report on Jimmy:
UnfortunatelySJ@J hasn’t been available so it looks like we are aiming for early next week. |
understand you will both be working on Tuesday so, we’ll arrange for a call then.

Our intention for the Team’s Call is to discuss the outcome of Jimmy’s evaluation and how we proceed
with the Flocking and Ai plan for this coming season.

The original plan looked to move Jimmy so that he was available to be used as apAi donor when the
kakapo team was available.

(Note Jimmy held in Invercargill). mentioned that the Te Anau team was expecting Jimmy to be
returned to Te Anau until he was needed as a donor for Ai. (ie October).

He is now with Cleo at DBG and likely to be used as a donor in the nextfew weeks.
Two resident breeding females at DBG typically lay in early August.

For a number of reasons it makes sense for Jimmy to remainat DBG with Cleo rather than be shuttled
back and forth between facilities.

Jimmy and Cleo are both They seem settled.and getting on well
priority birds. together in same/aviary.

Jimmy will be onsite when Neitherbirdds suitable for flocking. Jimmy is
the first SSI Ai opportunity ideal' male to hold with her, so that she might
presents itself. startllaying and be a candidate for Ai.

Determining if Jimmy should
be on a long term low dose
anti-inflammatory, can‘be
done over the next few
months while he’s at DBG

The timingrhas been much longer than anticipated and of course has left Charlie on her own much
longer than desired.

We'should address this as quickly as we can.

Thesoriginal flocking/Ai plan had Charlie moved to DBG for fostering of priority eggs.

| think at this stage, many of the birds that were earlier flocked at DBG have paired up, and Bling is
currently with another SSI female. It wouldn’t be wise to split them to put Bling and Charlie together
again. Charlie could stay at Te Anau and still potentially foster eggs, if she lays eggs this season.

The easiest solution to provide companionship for Charlie is to move Rata from Invercargill to Te Anau.



out of scope

That is essentially the focus of the call:
Proposed agenda:
e Jimmy’s health evaluation result discussion
o His use as Aidonor
o Longterm medication needs
e Plans for Charlie this season.
o Health check (?)
o Remain at TeAnau
o Rata as potential companion.
o Discussion and concerns
e Moving forward
I’ll send out an invite for Tuesday at 11 am via Teams.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)




From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Friday, August 11, 2023 12:55:18 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Fwd: Zoom call/ Teams meeting

FYI. I haven't responded.

Get Outlook for Android

From: QIO N

Sent: Friday, August 11, 2023 12:15:09 pm

To: I
ce: QIO

Subject: RE: Zoom call/ Teams meeting

Zls9(2)(9)(ii)

| have got the general gist of what has been'going on but | have been quite snowed under because |
came back to a two day training course;so | didn’t get onto things straight away.

| think the main thing to keep and happy is that as soon as we have a plan to return Jimmy
to Te Anau that we let themsknow. | had a good chat to SJB when | was in Dunedin. Sounds like she
may try and use Jimmy twice'for Al and if they are successful then he could be returned soon after that.
If they aren’t successful then we will just have to discuss to where to next.

| just went awayandhad a chat to SJEIE)] and new supervisor G{¢AN We decided that yes it
would be goodto have a teams call between you, me, SEIGIC)] D) . Just to get everyone up

to speed on what has happened and what the plan is moving forward. We could look at next Tuesday as
that is theday that both SEI@ICH and & work. The one issue is that at the moment I’'m meant to be
on anisland next week chasing around after takahe. That is probably only 30% likely to happen though,

5.9(2)(a) Does Tuesday work

for you? Are there good times during the day. | would say that we would probably need around 30
minutes, but it might be good to set aside 60 minutes, justin case.

Cheers

S9O(

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Friday, August 11, 2023 11:10 AM



To: SIAIC)W)]

Subject: Zoom call/ Teams meeting
HigI
Hope you had a nice holiday.

If you've had a chance to catch up on all the emails and chat to and SEIGIC)M you'll know that we
cancelled the Teams call we had scheduled to discuss Jimmy's evaluation.

SIAIEM \vere uncomfortable having a call with me and SEI@ without you there for support.
SIAIC)M said as Jimmy was cleared for Ai there wasn't anything to discuss about the report.

I think they were probably looking for an indication of a time for Jimmy's return. I've said'l'can't give
them that at this point.

is happy to have the call next week if it is still warranted.

| think and SEIBIC)M are now focused on Rata's arrival and making sure Charlie is happy.
So, perhaps we hold off on the call.

Just let me know what the team there wants. If they have things to discuss we can have acall.

There is a pair mating at DBG. There could be eggs in the next 2iweeks..so we will be looking to do Ai
straight away. | will give you guys an update when (if) that happens. It's always a timing issue of course.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 10:41:42 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

CC: S9(2)(g)(i)
e

Subject: Charlie

Zls9(2)(9)(ii)

Just a quick FYI, we are taking bloods from Charlie today to check her medication is still working for her,

as per plan with SEIG3IEN] at SIAICNME vets who saw her back in February.

Get Outlook for Android



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Thursday, August 24, 2023 8:53:39 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: quick question

HiEEIAIEC)

SO SORRY, | thought | had sent an email yesterday.

| was waiting for an email from EEJE] or EEJ@] but they did mention that one of the teasons they went to
DBG last Friday was that they were quite busy for the following 2 weeks. | didh’t'get an email from them.
But heard from S ¢3]

It’s apparently a bit too soon in the season for the males. Hannah (thathad been seen mating) was
ready, but none of the males were producing any sperm. They only gotia very tiny volume from Jimmy,
which was not enough to transfer to Hannah. The tiny amounts fromsthe TOS males also weren’t
enough to properly analyse.

was there from the hospital to take part in some training (using non native macaws) and observe
Jimmy during the procedure. She advised to watch for any changes in Jimmy’s behavior and up
his meds if he was acting ‘off’ in anyway. didsayyesterday that Jimmy is acting the same, and

she has kept the meds the same.

I was emailing with SJEN and SAICHDR yésterday as there is a female with a weepy eye and bloods
show high white count. | did explain that'the TOS males had Ai on Friday etc. Which is why | may have

thought | had emailed you guys asell. SAIAIEY,

_ Since 3@ wasout in the field from 7 am to 6pm, it was an extremely hectic day for
NS 9(2)(a)

Again, sorry for not emailing sooner.

As | was drifting offitoisleep last night thinking about what was on the “to do” list for today. | thought | do
need to email &A1) and to check in on how Rata is settling in, and what Charlie thinks of him so
far.

So curious’toshear how it’s going.

Cheers;

s9(2)(9)
From: SEIBIC)(D)

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:28 AM

RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: quick question

ZIS9(2)(9)(ii)



Have you heard how Jimmy’s Al went? I’'m assuming no so plan to ask to callS3d@N today to find

out. Please let me know if you have any information?

Many thanks

s9(2)(9)



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Sunday, August 27, 2023 7:54:00 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Fwd: Jimmy - follow up questions

o)

Again, so sorry to trouble you with this. Rightfully so, 3] emailed me directly.
I thought we had settled the Jimmy concerns until September 20th.

| received this yesterday...and immediately just wanted to draw a line under it all and say; He is fine at
DBG. They are dealing with his care and welfare. | am not concerned‘at this point. JEIG)0)

l intended to take a closer look tomorrow and possibly address each concern.

5.9(2)(a)
.\ |

I will put on an out of office message.
Can you see if@4#)] can wait for a response (a week)?
Thankyou,

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3ABIC)I0)

Sent: Saturday, August 26, 2023 1:06:30 pm



LHs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy - follow up questions

Téna koe SAPAICHLY

| hope this finds you well - it is starting to feel like Spring here! Hope it is the same for you in Nelson.

I’ve been in contact with and P3¢}l since | shared the minutes of our hui with them, they were
really pleased that we had covered off some critical topics, thanks again for your willingness to tackle
them with us. | knowEI{PABll email was so appreciated.

The purpose of this email is to address questions around Jimmy, his recent Al procedure andplans for
his future Al procedures. There remains concerns about his behaviour assessments and.observations. |
have opted to share these questions and concerns on behalf of and So-that we can
address them in one email thread and you have just the one point of contact! | igpe-this works for you.

Below are the questions put together, | have added a few of my own comments in blue:

e So farthe assessment of Jimmy's behaviour is based on IV interpretation of the behaviour
itself, rather than that it could be a significant CHANGE in behaviour.

e |tappears she was wrong about the crouch and flap being hormonal since Jimmy had no
sperm. Could you please share your thoughts on whether this could imply concerning
behaviour changes?

* She could be wrong about swinging being a’happy response (as pointed out, 15 mins does
seem excessive). Should we be worried.about this?

* There is not enough detail in her obs to determine how frequent either of these behaviours are,
or for how long they last. She has said‘he does it ‘for a while'

¢ How much change in behaviouris considered significant?

e What would a significaht.change mean, particularly if it is stereotypical, prolonged and notin
reaction to enrichment?

* What would be considered a marker for stress or unhappiness in a bird if not a change in
behaviour?

* Canwe getssome further observations done with timing etc to be sure? | support this request,
as it'seems there is still some uncertainty about Jimmy’s welfare.

Ideally; wewould like to request a second behavioural assessment. Thanks in advance for any thoughts
or answers you can offer.

It‘would also be great to set up a phone call with the Rangers late next week — Thursday or Friday? To
talk through any updates and ensure that the Bird Park team feel in the loop with communications.
SCIPAI(s)Il and | would attend - | believe has a lot on next week so wouldn’t be present.

| still need to set up the Teams call with SEIPAI(YID] and the two of us for September, I’ll get onto that
next week.

Take care and feel free to call me to discuss anything in this message — I’m happy to elaborate or add
any detail! Talk soon and have a great weekend.



Nga mihi nui,

s9(2)(g)(ii)



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Monday, September 11, 2023 11:36:55 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Catch up with 34#)

Done, and told them I’m back, so we can let you get back to your work, and out of the weeds,

s9(2)(9)
From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 8:08 AM
To: A0}
Subject: RE: Catch up with SEIé3)]

Good.

If you want to advise EEI#)] to get updates via you thanSEIE&N then fine.

From: SEIBIC)(D)

Sent: Monday, September 11, 2023 4:29 PM

To: FGICND)

Subject: Re: Catch up with
Thanks

I've been thinking about a response-today.

| agree with all your bulletpoints...especially

* 1 would expect Jimmy-te be behaving differently; hes in a different place with different stimuli.
Whether its significant'only time will tell.

| caught up with S{¢3R on Friday.
So | have a.couple of points to pass along.

took note that said Jimmy's behavior didn't change immediately after Al. But in the days
following. made a trip to DBG to check in Jimmy in the week following the Ai. SEI#N has also been
monitoring him. He's gaining weight. Which is a great indicator that he is not stressed or unhappy.
has also added additional chains for him to swing from since he does like being upside down.

So the point is. We are all looking out for his welfare.

Can't say at the moment when the next Ai will be. We are waiting for the experienced breeders to start
laying. We also need a foster pair for Ceasars eggs. So I'll be catching up with SEIE3N regularly.



| can pass on updates about Jimmy EleC);

9(2)(9)(i)
| was planning to write an email today but couldn't get on Amazon Workspace this morning.
Now that | have your summary of the call. | can address those questions for SEi¢3)

Thank you.
s9(2)(g)

FTEs9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Monday, September 11, 2023 4:08:07 pm

To: SAIC) (D)
Subject: Catch up with SEI¥3)
Fl1s9(2)(9)(ii)

Just had a short catch up with EE[#3)

Points from me:
e Be good if everybody took a chill pill
* Once we have had a good shot at Al Jimmy willbe coming home.
* We will make this as short as possible p0ossibly a month but no promises.
¢ Inthis knowledge how much should we spend on more assessments??

¢ | would expect Jimmy to be bghaving differently; hes in a different place with different stimuli.
Whether its significant only time will tell.

asked:

¢ Nextround of ALWheniis it?

e 2orthree rounds,??

e Couldshe approach and ask for updates to share with Rangers.
SeIPA] has.a big job on and wants to keep on top things. We will see how it pans out.

Any Questions let me know.

s9(2)



s9(2)(9)(ii)



Observations of Jimmy at Dunedin

24/09/2023
Weather - cool and sunny

| was at the aviary between 2 and 4 pm. Jimmy was not in view during this time. Other birds were visible
at times, with some vocalizing, perch running and flying. | chatted to one of the keepers, who said
Jimmy was likely busy with huhu grub logs on the aviary floor. Due to barriers put up around the.aviaries
to reduce interaction between the public and birds intended for release, it is not possible to see kaka
unless they are high up in their aviaries. was aware of Jimmy’s swinging but unconcerned as he
sees it as a substitute for flying.

During my time in Dunedin, | visited the aviary on five occasions and saw Jimmy ontwo.
25/09/2023
Weather - fine and frosty

Some of the kaka in adjacent aviaries active, flying, climbing nettingjrunning on perches, vocalizing.
Cleo, Jimmy’s cage mate, similarly busy.

During this period of observation, Jimmy swung for approximately21 out of 27 minutes. He changed
activity three times for between a few seconds and 3 minutes.

Jimmy climbed up into view, hung by toes from aviary netting ceiling and began swinging at 7.20
7.26 am - Paused, ran along perch and back again;resumed swinging

7.32 - Came down to perch, vocalised briefly, crouch and flap, perch run

7.35 -resumed swinging

7. 39 - stopped, climbed out of view, then up again

7.42 —resumed swinging

7.47 — stopped, ran along perch, investigated toy, climbed down out of view

26/09/2023
Weatherfine and frosty
Kaka in adjacent aviaries quiet, but showing interest in their nest boxes (including Cleo)

During this 24 minute period of observation, Jimmy swung with 4 breaks of around six to seven
seconds.

7.32 am - Jimmy swinging when | arrived
7.42 — scampered along perch, there and back (six seconds?), resumed swinging
7.45 - stopped, very quick perch run as before, resumed swinging

7.47 — same pattern repeated



7.52 - same pattern repeated
7.56 - stopped, descended to a perch, did a single crouch flap and climbed down out of view.

SIAN and her team are not concerned by Jimmy’s swinging. Both and | are, and we fear that if the
behaviour becomes too established, he may continue it when returned to Te Anau.

notes for SAIC)IW)

e InTe AnaulJimmy expends his energy running along perches, not with long-duration'swinging.

e Onerecommendation (just a thought from could be extended perches higher up in the
aviary, possibly from one corner to the other to ensure maximum length.

¢ The benefit of longer perches would be that his aviary at DBG is moresinrling/similar to his aviary
in Te Anau, and perhaps this would provide an alternative to extended.swinging from the
ceiling?



From: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Senton: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 2:05:01 AM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: Te Anau - Jimmy concerns followup Sept/October

Attachments: Sept 2023 - Jimmy at Dunedin.docx (15.95 KB), Re Jimmy observations submitted
byl msg (210kB)

Follow up: Follow up
Follow up status: Completed

Completed on: Monday, October 16, 2023 1:54:00 AM

)

_

SEIW] called me last week to discussEEIPAIC) N visit to DBG to observe Jimmy. We just connected
tocay. Below isEEIPAM summary of the call.

The Te Anau staff are still very concernedithat Jimmy has developed a “new” repetitive behaviour that
he didn’t display in Te Anau, and fear that if the behaviour becomes too established, he may continue it
when returned to Te Anau.

SCIPACYI commented on.this behaviour back in July (email attached) and also pointed out that she
was not an animal behaviourist. Which | think is relevant. This behaviour has been associated with him
responding to enrichment in the past. He’s getting plenty of enrichment at DBG.

| still believe from what I’ve been hearing from DBG, DWH and the kakapo team, that Jimmy is fine. He’s
engaged and.gaining weight. | don’t think this is a stress behaviour.

| asked ifEEIENGII had taken any video of this behaviour (for comparison with video Jg] had taken
previousty)'She had not.

AsEEIPA] summarized below, the feeling is that it should be elevated as concerned behaviour, as none
of us are behaviour experts.

| couldn’t think of anyone in the senior advisory group ERIVAIE)] to direct it to. €A

suggestedSEPA){IA due to his connection with the Captive Advisory group and ZAA.

I will look for an email with the previous footage of Jimmy’s “concerning” behaviour, in order to pass it
along.

Kind regards,



s9(2)(9)
From: 3ABIC)I0)

Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2023 1:26 PM

To: FIAICID)

Subject: RE: Jimmy concerns followup
Kia ora SEIAAIE)]D]
Thank you for calling me back this morning, | hope that you are feeling better!

As discussed, | have attached the notes that wrote up during her observations of Jimmy the
kaka last week. | would add that she was not in view of Jimmy at the time, so he did not regognise her
(she deliberately stood out of view of him so that his behaviour was not influenced by hérpresence).
The key points are:

e He was observed swinging from the roof of aviary at DBG for 23 minutes (end September by
s9(2)(9)(ii)

¢ He was previously observed swinging in the same fashion at DBG for 15 minutes (in August by
S9(

e Thisis very different to his usual behaviour

This morning you mentioned that the following actions may help us gain more insight:

o AskingSEI@N to take some video of this behayiour CEIBIE) did not take any during her obs,
although | can send the video that tookdinitially)

o Asking2q@)] to raise these concerns withbehavioural expert to get his opinion
Please feel free to call any time if | have missed anything as | know it may be faster! Thanks so much.
Nga mihi nui,

s9(2)(g)(ii)

From: SElBIC)(D)

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2023 5:48 PM
1e3S9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: RE: Jimmy concerns followup

Kia ora SEIGIC)(D]

| have organised a development trip to Orokonui Ecosanctuary for SEIBIEN@) she will spend the
morning with the Ops team and the Educator on Monday, 25 Sept.



S would like to visit Jimmy at DBG briefly on Sunday when she arrives, and again on Monday
afternoon as we discussed on the phone. Could you please let @R know? EEIBIC)M won’t require
any support as she is very aware that SJ¢3l is busy!

Thanks again for your time on the phone last week.
Nga mihi nui,

s9(2)(9)(ii)

From: 3ABIC)I0)

Sent: Friday, September 15, 2023 1:55 PM
To: SAIC)D)]
Subject: RE: Jimmy concerns followup

Kia ora BICID)

I have let the team know that we do not support an independent assessment by a behavioural expert
(Ryan Cartlidge), and have passed along the otherkey.wpdates in your email.

has just been away for a few weeks} and she asked this week if she could tie in a visit to
Orokonui (for personal development purposes) with a visit to DBG to do some observations of Jimmy. |
support this idea wholeheartedly, as | hope that with some good obs in Dunedin, (and
will have some good records whichwilllhelp us to understand/measure Jimmy’s behaviour as he settles
backinto life in Te Anau in the future. halso have high trust in ability to accept that Jimmy
being in Dunedin is contributing te-great overall conservation outcomes for Sl kéka, and that she will
view this as a chance to bettef support Jimmy when he does make it back to Te Anaul!

Are you happy for me to encourage SCEIPAIC)I \vith this course of action? She specified that she would
like to observe for 4 hour, 3 times over the course of 1 day.

With your blessing;+will let SEIGIC)I know that she can go ahead and book in her trip for next week
(my guess.is'Wednesday, Thursday or Friday). | will wait to hear your thoughts before | give her the go
ahead.

Thankyou and please call me with any questions — probably much faster on the phone @
Nga’mihi nui,

S9(2)(9)(ii)



s9(2)(9)(ii)

From: SP3l()I{D)

Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 11:16 AM

To: GOIC)D)

Subject: Jimmy concerns followup
Zls9(2)

SEIPAN let me know that he had followed up with you with regards to your email that came on the
SawurdaySRIVAIE)]
| know thatfgg] andGJEIEN still have concerns about Jimmy’s behaviours at DBG.

It has been noted that Jimmy is spending time swinging upside down. It was alsofipted that hisis a
known “positive behaviour” of his that he did at Te Anau in response to enrichment. SI¥All has added
additional chain to the aviary to give him more opportunities to move aroundiand swing from chain to
chain.

IngEJ#A] initial response toEJ#Y concerns about Jimmy swinging upside.down at DBG. She did suggest
that more observations could be done, but she also indicated that as it is likely a learned behaviour and
aresponse to enrichment. Jimmy is getting lots of enrichment:l.@m not concerned that thisis a
detrimental or stress induced behaviour. | don’t see much value in sending volunteers to Dunedin to
observe and film Jimmy for Ryan Cartlidge. | am satisfied with what | have heard from

_ SEIPEYI ond SEIPR with how Jimmy responses to being handled, and his

behaviours following medical treatiments etc.

| have heard thatﬁ andSEIAIG)M feel we haver’t listened to their observations and implied that we
aren’t putting Jimray’s welfare at the forefront: | just had a catch up with on Friday and she said
thatEl#4 took note of the observatioripointed out by Sl that Jimmy’s behaviour didn’t change
immediately after Ai, it was in the days afterwards. Sc 34#@l made a special trip to DBG to observe Jimmy
3 days after Ai. She is in keeping in contact with ¥ reports that Jimmy is putting on weight
and there hasn’t be any “change.in this behaviour”. To all of us, that is a positive indication that he has
not been adversely affected by'the handling and Al procedure.

SEIPAN passed on thatyou had the following questions on the phone call
e Nextround.of Al When is it? i
e 2 orthreerounds ??

o (_Gould she approachgEl¥3ll and ask for updates to share with Rangers.

Thesé are difficult questions to answer. Sl e felelel

can provide you with updated on Jimmy via
would rather just give one update, considering how busy she is with all the kaka.

It is still very early in the season, | know thatS3¥30 has been saying we will get Jimmy back as soon as
we can. | have to re-iterate, that this is the one season that we will have access to the kakapo team.



Next year they will be unavailable. | want Jimmy available for any Al opportunities that present. |
wouldn’t want to send him back prematurely and then we have opportunities for additional Al with
proven breeding females. My hope is that there is an opportunity for Ai with a proven SSI female, AND
that the female Cleopatra that is housed with Jimmy will lay so there is an Ai opportunity for her as well.
(that doesn’t need to be Jimmy).

I’m also pleased that Jimmy is housed with a female currently. | think it Was (or maybe SN that
said there is a possibility that Jim might be able to mount Cleo and balance himself. We just don’t
know, and it will be advantageous to let that play out, vs sending him back to Te Anau, where he is.not
going to do anything with Charlie, and we lose any opportunity for breeding this season.

The longer he stays this season, the more likely that we will get a positive outcome, and then the
pressure to breed from him will be reduced significantly.

| hope that and SJAAIC)M can accept that the short term absence of Jimmy hasithe potential for
extremely long term gains for the entire breeding programme, and also for Jimmy.

| asked all the holders to allow us this season to make this full on effort to breed,from the high priority
birds, by bringing all the breeding birds to DBG.

The concerns that Jimmy wasn’t fit to participate fully have been addressed to my satisfaction, so my
intention is to follow the plan for the season. We will prioritise Ahwith Jimmy, Cleo, and Tonga as well as
the TOS males. Jimmy will not be handled excessively. He willbe-handled by the most experienced
team in the country, and I relying on their guidance.

Let me know if you have other questions, I’'m back on'board, and | will handle the technical and day to
day, soSEI# can get back to the big picture stuff:

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Wednesday, October 4,2023 10:14:16 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re: Te Anau - Jimmy concerns followup Sept/October

o)

I have reviewed EEIBIEIDN notes again and spoken with EEI@AN yesterday.

SCIPAIC)M states that she made 5 visits and only saw Jimmy on 2 of those visits. SN stressed that is
because he's not spending all his time at the top of the aviary swinging..He's busy looking for huhu
grubs and actually interacting with Cleo that he shares an aviary with:

SEIAN can see Jimmy's aviary from the office and says they don't see him spending long periods of time
on the ceiling swinging. We spoke for over 30 minutes and SEI#3N said she didn't see Jimmy at all. So
again, he is busy in his aviary.

| also noted that both observations of swingingtook place early morning ...Jimmy may be up there
keeping an eye out for the keeper makingthe food rounds. Swinging in happy anticipation for the food to
come.

| probably shouldn't have indicated to SEI@] that SIBIENMY observations warranted escalation before
taking more time to read’hier notes. * She actually didn't send them through prior to our call as she had
promised.

It really needs to stop. These continual implications that Jimmy is worse off because we moved him
from Te Anau and we aren't addressing his behaviour issues are getting insulting.

There is a note inSJG email that Jimmy spent time running along perches at Te Anau, so there is a
possibility that Jimmy had some repeative behaviour going on..it may have just been redirected to
swinging at DBG.

| haven't pointed out to SE#)] that 2 other birds that were transferred from Te Anau to DBG prior to
Jimmy displayed some serious repetitive behaviours. The birds have showed improvements over time



at DBG. The team at Te Anau didn't note any concerns about these birds while at Te Anau...so this over
concern about Jimmy seems so inappropriate and insulting.

I think | need to tell thatI'vere read observations and I'm still not concerned about
Jimmy’s behaviours and the plan remains that he will stay at DBG for our Al plans this season and that
she needs to explain to both and that further interference on their part will only result in
Jimmy being transferred away from Te Anau permanently.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)



From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Tuesday, October 10,2023 10:39:37 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy concerns followup

Hi,
SIA) and | have a catch up call scheduled this afternoon.
S9(

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023 11:35 AM

To: AW

Subject: RE: Jimmy concerns followup

Kia ora SEIGIC)(D)

Thank you for the update - great to hear that you and 3¢l had a catch up, and that there was no
excessive swinging at that time. And awesome that he is'loving all the huhu grubs.

It would be great to follow up with SI@l and get his’opinion too. Ideally it would also be great to raise
concerns about the behaviour With givenithat we have the expertise available in house! It would be

good to understand his perspective on what,is excessive.

| hear the message about the concerninot'being productive, but | am also following up on behalf of
who is on leave. His perspective wasithat getting another opinion on the longer swinging stints —
especially from —would be beneficial. gets back 24™ October, although I’'m certain he would
respond to a text message ifthere is anything that you would like me to run past him!

Talk soon, I’'m availabletall day today, and tomorrow morning until 10:00am.

Nga mihi nui,

s9(2)(g)(ii)

From: SAIC)I0D

Sent on: Monday, October 9, 2023 5:08:06 AM



To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy concerns followup

| just wanted to let you know that | forwarded your email and SXEENMDR observations to IL¥)
- last week. | haven’t heard back from him. He may be away, although there was no “out of
office message.”

| also reviewed SIPA){DA observations and had a chat with ¢4

| am still not concerned about Jimmy’s behaviour, and | did write to3¥38 to expfess that as well.

Inobservations, she only observed him on 2 of the 5 visits. Which indicates that he’s not up
on the ceiling swinging at all times of day. Both times he was observed was‘in the early morning. This is
an active period for the birds, and also just prior to the work day starting=ltcould potentially be an
anticipatory behaviour, knowing that staff will be coming around with food soon.

Jimmy’s aviary is in direct view of S4¥ANM office. She can see him.tHroughout the day, and has not
observed him swinging excessively. When he’s not visible-at the top of the aviary, he’s busy interacting
with Cleo, exploring the aviary and foraging for huhu grubs.

During our conversation (40 minutes) Jimmy was ot observed at the top of the aviary. There has also
been interest in the nest box in that aviary. Thigiissa'good sign that Jimmy is doing well.

As we discussed previously; a decision has been made that Jimmy will stay at DBG to take partin the Al

programme this season. EVERYONE is ooking out for him, [JVAIEN)
9(2)(ba)(i)

If | don’t hear back from ¥4} tomorrow, | will chase him up.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: EPAIC){D)

Sent on:. hursday, October 26, 2023 4:45:39 AM

To: s9(2)(g)(ii)
cc: EEAICD

Subject: RE: Jimmy at Dunedin



Kia oraSEl@()(D)

My apologies, | was in the field all of last week.

Thank you for your email. | have relayed the key messages in your email to our team, including the
decision for Jimmy to remain at DBG for the breeding season.

Concerns remain around the repetitive swinging behaviour. In order to resolve these ongoing concerns,

| have raised the situation with SIEIEND] . SEIPICHOI - He i give you a call tomorrow to
discuss.

Thankyou,

s9(2)

Ngéa mihi nui,

s9(2)(g)(ii)

From: S®3l()D)}
Sent: Monday, October 16, 2023 2:14 PM

Hs9(2)(9)(ii)
(o] 9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy at Dunedin

Hello 3#3),

SCIP()Ml has forwarded yodr émail with SEIPAIGYN observations and your request to seekSEll

opinion on Jimmy’s behaviours advises me that she hasre read
observations and is not eoncerned about Jimmy’s behaviours and the plan remains that he will stay at
DBG for our ArtificialinSemination plans this season.

As we have stated previously we are happy that Jimmy’s welfare is being looked after and that the staff
at DBG haye'the expertise to deal with any issues. There is nothing in observational notes
that warrant further investigation. Its true that he is behaving differently and this is to be expected as he
has a' neéw context in which to live. He’s engaged and gaining weight. | don’t think this is a stress
behaviour. These continual implications that Jimmy is worse off because we moved him from Te Anau
are insulting and needs to stop.

9(2)(9)(ii), s.9(2)(a), 9(2)(9)(i), 9(2)(ba)(i)




9(2)(9)(i), 9(2)(ba)(i)

Apologies for being abrupt.

7]

(o]
—~

N
~

From: SEIAIC)ID)

Sent on: Sunday, October 29, 2023 8:30:35 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Charlie

ZIS9(2)(9)(ii)

Nothing since Thursday.

Will check later today.

From: SEIBIC)(D)

Sent: Monday, October 30,2028 8:45 AM

To: FGICND)

Subject: Re: Charlié

2ls9(2)
Did you héar from EEI6)]

SR said a staff member from Te Anau is coming to Dunedin on Tues ...so there is an opportunity to

transfer Charlie.

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3ABIC)I0)

Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2023 3:54:43 PM



To: SIAIC)W)]

Subject: RE: Charlie

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Thanks for clarifying.

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2023 2:36 PM
To: SIAIC)ID)

Subject: Charlie

2ls9(2)

| edited the email to take out the Ai stuff. SEIEIE)) and will be very much againstwusing her for Ai —
due to her age.

Fostering is what we need her for. They may argue that she can foster in Te Anau.

I think she needs to be in DBG so she gets broody and lays eggs, so we'can swap eggs etc. If she mates
with the male she’s with, those less valuable eggs would be placed with the female that isn’t a proven
breeder to give her experience raising chicks. That will be a very.significant contribution for
Charlie...versus doing nothing ...alone in an aviary.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)



From:
Sent on: Thursday, October 26, 2023 4:47:30 AM

To:
cc:

Subject: RE: Progressing S| Kaka 23/24 season

Kia oraSl¥d;

Thanks for your email, and | had a quick catch up today and will touch basé with.you tomorrow.
Ngéa mihi nui,

s9(2)(9)(ii)

From: S®3l()I(1)

Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2023 3:56 PM
To: SIAAIE)()

[oTHS9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Progressing Sl Kaka 23/24 season

Hello SEIAIC)N

I’d like to raise with youdhe priority of involving Charlie as part of the 23/24 breeding season for S| Kaka
conservation.

Within the captive population Charlie is an older female with a record as a proven breeder and good
mother. As she'is on her own at the moment at Te Anau, there seems little chance of her contributing to

the prograe this season. K

- That/means that we have fewer options for fostering the eggs of our high priority birds we are
focusing-on this season.

sent to Dunedin to be available for fostering. We see this as good for Charlie’s welfare as she will be
with other birds and will be able to partake in breeding behaviours (chick rearing).

If you wish to discuss this via teams then let me know and I’ll set it up.



From:

59(2)(9)(ii)

Sent on: Sunday, November 5, 2023 10:05:56 PM

To:

S9(2)(9)(il)

Subject: Re: DRAFT FW: Jimmy at Dunedin

| added a couple sentences...re read and see if it's OK with you.

I mentioned we asked for something to happen in Feb and it tookwntil June to make

it happen.. SIIGENORERIIED)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Sunday, November 5, 2023 3:46:51 pm

To: FAICID)

Subject: DRAFT FW: Jimmy at Dunedin

s9(2)(9)

Rather than you do a.summary check this for accuracy

Hello SEI¢4

Thanks for this request.

The approved Captive Management Plan (CMP) has the objective of growing wild kaka populations
in the South Island with captive reared chicks. The kaka at Te Anau are part of that programme. In
particular the male bird Jimmy is an important individual in this work as he has a genetic heritage
which in underrepresented in the Captive Population and consequently released chicks.

As a result of previous Artificial Insemination(Al) Rangers at Te Anau raised a flag with the suitability
of Jimmy to be part of Al activity because of his injuries and age. In response to this, IEIEND] the I
captive Coordinator requested he be assessed by the Wildlife vets at Dunedin Wildlife hospital in
Feb. By mid winter when this request still had not been completed. | advocated for an independent
baseline assessment of Jimmy so we were confident of whether or not he should continue to be a



candidate for Al. It was agreed with the Rangers that Jimmy should come to Dunedin for
Veterinarian assessment. This happened (June 2023) and the assessment was that there were no
impediments to Jimmy continuing to be considered for Al. One point | was not clear with the
Rangers about was the length of time that Jimmy was to stay in Dunedin. | have apologised to the
Rangers for this confusion.

e We have proceeded to plan for Jimmy to be part of the Al Programme, and to remain in Dunedin for
this breeding season. We have been consistent that this is not a permanent shift but that once we
have completed Al Jimmy will come back to Te Anau.

e The welfare of Jimmy is central to this programme, continually implying this is not part of our
programme is affecting external relationships.

o lacknowledge the investment by your Rangers in these birds CIEI(S)IOMIEAI( LN O RERI]E))

From: SEIAIEI0)

Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 9:02 AM

(-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy at Dunedin
Importance: High

Thanks for the chat 33

As discussed if you could briefly summarise via a few bullet\peints the history/assessment that has occurred |
would appreciate that.

| will advise (via email) to encourage SIBICHMRE to follow the speak up process as a way of getting a
resolution.

Nga mihi nui

From: SEI[AIEID)

Sent: Thursday, October 26, 2023 5:46 PM
s 9(2)(9)(i)

[ Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy at Dunedin

Kia ora 4] and SEIGIC))

My apologies, | was in the field all of last week.

Thankgyou for your email. | have relayed the key messages in your email to our team, including the decision
fordimmy/to remain at DBG for the breeding season.

Congerns remain around the repetitive swinging behaviour. In order to resolve these ongoing concerns, |
have raised the situation with SI€IC) D) . He will give you a call tomorrow to
discuss.

Thank you,

Nga mihi nui,



s9(2)(9)

s.9(2)(a)



s9(2)(g)(ii)
|
|

From: SAIC)IWD

Sent on: Tuesday, November 7, 2023 12:19:38 AM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy...and Charlie

FIs9(2)(9)

Thanks for the video and replied.
Yes agreed opportunities for this season arebeing eIiminated.
From: SO N

Sent: Tuesday, November 7, 2023,1:00 PM

Lr-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy...and Chaflie
31Is9(2)
| sent you a video ofdimmy from my ERIEIEY email. Very normal behaviour and he looks in good condition.

I've had aatch.ap with SN We may be getting high priority birds laying eggs soon. As unproven mothers

we need to'move these eggs to a foster.. Just to emphasize that this delay by Te
Anau.is limiting our ability to accomplish the objectives of the season.

Cheers,

59(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android




From: s.9(2)(a)

Sent on: Monday, November 6, 2023 11:52:08 PM
To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Video from SGICHON re: Jimmy

Attachments: VID-20231106-WA0002.mp4 (13.27 MB)
Follow up: Follow up

Start date: Monday, January 29, 2024 12:00:00 AM

Due date: Monday, January 29, 2024 12:00:00 AM

If needed....share with SIGICUOIE.

This bird is happy and healthy and doing very well@ DBG

Get Outlook for Aridroid




From: EEIAIEY

Sent on: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 7:34:29 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)
I

Subject: RE: Kaka movements to and from Te Anau.

Thanks SEl&)]

It is a real shame this continues to escalate. And that you are stuck in this hamster wheel of drama.

Just to clarify are you indicating WE would be in an unsafe environment'going to collect Charlie/dropping off
Matai? | can assure you, we would not be.

The offer still stands for us to collect Charlie if needed at any point!
Hear from you on Friday.

Cheers

If this message is not interfdetyfor you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or
reproduction of this matgrial By you is prohibited..

From: SR

Sent: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 3:51 PM

eH59(2)(@) s9(2)(9)(il)

Subject: Kaka movements to and from Te Anau.
Good afternoon,

Despite previous email exchanges and potential optimism about best utilization of the placement of
breeding birds this will not be ha ppening this week.

| regret this and will only say that the current environment is unsafe for some of the staff involved.

| will check in on Friday and see if things have changed.



Sorry

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

From: SEI@IEY

Sent on: Friday, November 10, 2023 8:43:44 PM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)
I

Subject: Re: Update on movementiof Charlie from Te Anau

Hi and SM&ICNW)
Thank you for the update, please see my response below.

It's"disappointing but obviously not a surprise given the unprofessional behaviour
and unwillingness to participate with the program to date.

It does indicate the lack of knowledge of basic Kaka biology.



1. Itis possible but unlikely, a lone female Kaka would become "broody" if she does
not have access to a breeding male or breeding pairs within the immediate area. We
know Rata does not count and is not living with Charlie from my understanding.

2. It could be an option to move eggs to Te Anau to foster yes, this would again
require Charlie to be actively nesting and sitting on eggs. Again, | fail to see how she
would achieve that as a lone female. They could attempt to give her dummy eggs
and see if she would accept them. Timing for transfer of eggs would need to tine up
perfectly as well as logistics for getting eggs to Te Anau which is quite adaong
distance by car. Then if that all went well, Charlie will need the supportof an
experienced male Kaka to feed her so she can raise healthy chicks. As we are trying
to capture high value genetics,, | would be VERY hesitant sending eggs to Te Anau
bird park staff.

3. We do not currently have a spare lone male to ptoyvide Te Anau but rather the plan
is to split an existing pair in Dunedin to providesan‘actively courting male for Charlie
so we can utilise her as an experienced fostenrof-high value eggs and flock the laying
female with the TOS flock to encourage nesting in the other young birds that have
not bred yet. So logistically and logically'Charlie should be on-site where all the
Kaka are, where we have experienced staff, access to the Dunedin Wildlife Hospital
vet team, do a full health evaluationbefore paring Charlie up and the option of
Orokonui if the decision to retire'Charlie is deemed the best for her after the season.

3. Can | take the opportunity to highlight again that Charlie is currently living alone.
This should be causefor concern by staff which I'm sure they have raised and why
they got Rata:Te Anau have been given a solution and that is in the form of a swap out of Charlie for

Matai for the’Season. That was obviously not accepted.

. Another reminder that earlier in the year it was
requested by that Charlie should have a proper health assessment in Dunedin by Avian vets,
andthis.didn't happen. This should be requested again to ensure Charlie is in good health moving
forward within the program. It should be stressed that experienced Avian vets at Dunedin Wildlife
hospital are to do this and not the Te Anau local small animal vet clinic.

4. Unfortunately, another stalling tactic by Te Anau staff to prevent the use of
breeding birds in the program regardless of alternative birds and solutions being
offered them in the best interest of bird welfare.



Cheers

Get Outlook for Android

If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are Warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or
reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: 3ABIC)I0)

Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 1:35:13 pm

To: FAICID) s9(2)(a)

Subject: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

311s9(2)(9) [EREIsO() |

Just got off a teamscall with 3@

She’d talked to both and the Rangers and reported that 3] view was yes so long as Charlie was in
the right zone\(=brocdy)

The rangersweported that Charlie was not exhibiting broody behaviours at the moment.

These was a question asked about whether eggs could come to Te Anau to be fostered. | said | would ask but
Was/hot optimistic.

Apart from blowing me up for not forcing the issue is it practical for Charlie to foster at Te Anau or is moving
eggs to problematic?

N
—



s9(2)(g)(ii)

www.doc.govt.nz

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that'any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you, received this
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.



From: EEIAIEY

Sent on: Monday, November 13, 2023 2:29:47 AM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

Sweet thanks @) hopefully a site visit is all SIEN will require after she reads the vet réport and since she
has talked to you. | haven’t heard from her yet but | think she is away on leave this week.

| will be in contact if | need further assistance regards complaints coming from T¢ Anau directed at us.
Fingers crossed | can collect Charlie this week and we can all get on with the season? Please keep me in the
loop if any developments with that situation....... lol unlikely though.

If this message is not intended for you please delete it aiig NQtify’us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or
reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

FTTuAS9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Monday, November 13,2023 9:04 AM
To: SEIAIEY
Subject: FW: Updateson.movement of Charlie from Te Anau

CFYI
Sorry should have sent this on Friday.

Also had-a,géod chat with SEIAIE)] . She asked for the veterinarian assessment of Jimmy and the
Husbandry Manual.

From: 3@

Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 3:48 PM

LrHs9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: FW: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

Es9(2)



| followed up with SI@IE)] after our call and SAGIENWD)] advice is Charlie won’t get broody in Te Anau on
her own next to an infertile male. She needs to be moved now to a group of birds.

Theres no support for moving eggs when other pairs are at Dunedin Botanic Gardens. Having foster eggs on
their own at Te Anau will bring its own logistical risk with lack of flexibility on swapping eggs or chicks as
needed.

So to maximise breeding this year with the birds we have the only real options is to achieve this is to move
Charlie.

We can ensure that Maitai is with Rata while we maximise our reproductive out put with Charlie in Dunedin.
Can you please have a rethink on the rationale of not agreeing with this approach.

Thanks

From: SE@I)I()
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 4:34:53 pm

LS 9(2)(9)(ii) s9(2)(a)

Subject: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau
G1s9(2)(9) EREIsO(2)
Just got off a teams call with 3]

She’d talked to both and the Rangers and reported that 3J#)] view was yes so long as Charlie was in
the right zone (=brocdy)

The rangers reported that Charlie was notiexhibiting broody behaviours at the moment.

These was a question asked about whether eggs could come to Te Anau to be fostered. | said | would ask but
was not optimistic.

Apart from blowing me up fér siot forcing the issue is it practical for Charlie to foster at Te Anau or is moving
eggs to problematic?

9(2)

0
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From: SEIAICID)

Sent on: Monday, November 13, 2023 4:46:49 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: The priority of moving Charlie from Te Anau ASAP

-

I'm curious if SACACUUNM is aware that Charlie, a proven breeder and good mother is
sitting idle in Te Anau and we have an actively courting male whose female is being
treated in the hospital.

Charlie is needed as a proven breeder and terrific motherto foster the eggs/chicks
of the high priority birds that we are performing Ai 6n..We have vets from DWH and
the kakapo team teed up to inseminate 2 birds'on Tuesday. We also have 2 high
priority birds showing indications of breeding naturally.

A key component of our plan this year to bring all our breeding birds to DBG was to
have the ability to use birds like Charlie for fostering.

If we could get her with the actively courting male we have a good chance of her
getting broody and then beavailable to foster. Te Anau staff have resisted the idea of
moving Charlie since.February.

Along with all the issues we have with them moving Jimmy to DBG withholding
Charlie is having a significant impact. If we can't foster our high priority eggs we may
have to incubate and hand rear chicks which is not best practice when we have
birds like Charlie that could foster.

Charlie could be collected on Wednesday, given a full health check at Dunedin
Wildlife Hospital and then be brought to DBG to help us achieve our objectives of
capturing the genetics of these high priority birds.



I'm just not sure that 3(?_) is aware that all the actions of the Te Anau Rangers this
season have been in complete opposition to us achieving our objectives this year.

I would like to hear from him that he has been made aware of this and is making it a
priority for someone on the team to deal with.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIAIC)ID)
Sent on: Tuesday, November 21, 2023 4:43:44 AM

To: s9(2)(a)

Subject: FW: Sl Kaka at Te Anaud Sanctuary.

Sent out plan_for season 23 March... June 8™, still need to discuss Jimmy and Charlie’s involvement....

From: SEIAIC)D)

Sent: Thursday, June 8, 2023 8:47 AM
To: SEIAIGID)

[&¥159(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Re: S| Kaka at Te Anau Sanctuary.

Kia ora koutou

Can we please set up a meeting to discuss? It really concerned us that Charlie and Jimmy were used for Al
without prior medical checks, despite it being known that both had had serious injuries. We feel a duty of
care to these birds and want to hear what plans would be in place to protect their well-being. Jimmy is



overdue for a medical check and we would like this remedied asap. DWH will confirm he is not an easy
patient and needs the shortest possible stay in hospital.

| am available to join a meeting any afternoon except this Friday. SRl ¢AICYIEIAI()I(D) up to

participating has spent more time with the birds than | over the past year.
Nga mihi

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: S4B}

Sent: Tuesday, June 6, 2023 11:32:35 AM

[FH59(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Re: S| Kaka at Te Anau Sanctuary.

Hi SEIAIE)]

I'm back from leave today but is not back on deck just yet. I'mrveryaware time is passing so | will get
back to you asap as | know there are some things we want to.better understand about the next move for the
birds.

We'll talk soon!

Get Outlook for Android

FTTAS9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Tuesday, June 6, 2023 11:04:32 AM
To: SAIC)D)

[FH59(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Re: S| Kaka at Te,Anau Sanctuary.

Hi Team,
Can | pleaseget a time frame on getting the birds accessed. I'd like to see something happen this week.
| can hélp.facilitate getting the birds to Dunedin Wildlife Hospital if that would be helpful.

We have been making plans for next season and | really need to know Jimmy's status in order to firm up
movements of other pairs.

Cheers,

s9(2)(g)

Get Outlook for Android




From: S@3l()I{D)

Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 1:26:42 PM
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

[ s9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: S| Kaka at Te Anau Sanctuary.

Greetings team,

I am writing to follow up on your feedback regarding the 2023/24 Kaka breeding priority
plan that m@ sent out in March. mm has provided me a summary of your
feedback and I understand you had an online meeting with {EJ@ICNM] on 23 March.te
discuss this.

I understand that you have expressed concerns over Charlie and Jimmy’s incliision'in the
upcoming plans for the 23/24 breeding season. We appreciate you raising your concerns,
especially regarding the welfare of the older and arthritic birds. Your advecacy for the bird’s
welfare is appreciated and important to consider.

The objective of the of South Island Kaka Captive Management Plan is to support the
reestablishment of wild populations and the proposed 2023/24.plah supports this objective.
In the recent past productivity to meet this objective has beendew.and we've been assessing
options to improve this. Hence the 23/24 breeding plan. The plan involves moving most of
the SSI birds to Dunedin Botanical Gardens to allow for flocking and artificial insemination
(AI) to be carried out to try to maximise the input of yalitable genetics from birds that aren’t
already well represented at release sites. Jimmy is gne‘of these priority birds and including
his genetics is consistent with the objectives of the plan.

I propose that an appropriate next step is to have the kaka currently held at Te Anau
assessed by a qualified avian veterinarian to‘gain further information on the health,
behaviours, and resilience of these birds./This'would mean that the birds would be moved to
another facility where these assessments can be made over an appropriate period of time.
The outcome of these assessments weuld inform further discussions of how these birds are
best utilised to progress the goalswof the captive management plan.

At the same time, I believe it would be useful to engage in a wider discussion about Te
Anau’s continued role in theSI kdka captive management programme. I think we should be
prepared to discuss , improving the facilities, supporting the development of staff skills,
understanding and responding to behaviour management issues displayed by the birds, and
engagement towards‘the captive management plan objective.

If you wish to diseussithis, then we can set up a meeting

Best wishes

From: SEEA)Y

Sent on: Friday, November 17, 2023 2:44:09 AM



cc: gEee)

Subject: RE: Kaka Al

Hi and

Thanks for these reports.

Appreciate that you’ve done good work here.
Pity about Jimmy not cooperating.

s9(2)

From: SE[EI()I{1)
Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 10:35 AM
To: SEEA())

s9(2)(a)
Subject: RE: Kaka Al

Hi team,
Some photos attached in case you are interested.

Just an extra note — | accompanied far Jimmy’s catch up and release back into his enclosure — all went
very smoothly and | was very happy with him throughout the procedure. It was wonderful seeing him
released back into his enclosure andAnatching him navigate the perches so easily — straight back up to where
his mate was. From what | could see he is thriving in Dunedin and is doing a wonderful job with him. It
is brilliant to have him at a locatigh where there are options for artificial insemination, a great enclosure and
skilled staff for daily husbandry as well as handling when required.

Ng? mihi nui,

s9(2)(g)(ii)




From: 3B
Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 10:23 AM
To: SEAIC)D)

(o H159(2)(9)(ii) s9(2)(9)(i)
Subject: Kaka Al

Hi SIeA1C))

out of scope

—

Jimmy: unfortunately, nothing. He showed no stimulation response with his legs and tail to the massage but
seemed in otherwise good health.

out of scope

What we’vé learnt from this is that the anatomy is the same as kakapo. If the female is ready, it is easy to
open the vent and the oviduct is easy to find. If the vent is tight and difficult to insert the speculum, there is
no point trying, as she won’t be ready. Hannah was very similar to Charlie last year, except that Charlie had a
hard-shelled egg. Therefore, the oviduct was more like a balloon and not tube like, although the opening was
visible, the egg would not allow insertion of the catheter.

As usual, @] was well organised, enthusiastic and had the birds ready to go when we arrived.

held the birds’
heads, whilst 3® and | both attempted semen collection with the males. SlReES¥e]slS

has some sperm video and an oviduct photo if you'd like to see.



Cheers,

From: s9(2)(g)(ii)
Sent on: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 9:34:40 PM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

CC: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Kaka Al

Attachments: 1000030061 jpg (1.76 MB), 1000030091 jpg (1.28 MB), 1000030069.jpg (2.07

MB), 1000030085.jpg (1.4 MB), 1000030063 jpg’(1.96 MB), 1000030092.jpg (1.71
MB)

Hi team,

Some photos attached in case you are interested.

Just an extra note — | accompanied for'Jimmy’s catch up and release back into his enclosure — all went
very smoothly and | was very happy with him.throughout the procedure. It was wonderful seeing him
released back into his enclosure and watching him navigate the perches so easily — straight back up to where
his mate was. From what | could see heuis thriving in Dunedin and is doing a wonderful job with him. It
is brilliant to have him at a location where there are options for artificial insemination, a great enclosure and
skilled staff for daily husbandfy as\well as handling when required.

Ng? mihi nui,

From: EEIPE)

Sent on: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 2:10:23 AM



Subject: RE: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

To reiterate | can collect Charlie tomorrow? (JUSQESeelol

Hey

We'll try to do a health check on Charlie but it is quite manic this week and we have quite a few people

down due to illness so it might have to wait until next Monday.

I 1eam

This is to let you know that@g’/may be getting Charlie the lone breeding female from Te Anau. To be able
to achieve this DOC has gfféred’ Matai as a replacement for the season as a buddy for Rata. SlleESeelelS

If we do get €Raxlie can | book her in for a full health check please likely this week if we get the green light

to collectfier,but | can let you know more as | do.

out of scope



If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution or
reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SJAIOI0)]

Sent: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 12:41 PM
To: EAIC)ND)
[ Hs9(2)(a)
Subject: RE: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

Thanks.

Catching up with SEI# this afternoon.

From: SEI[AIC)D)

Sent: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 12:38 PM

LrHs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

Yes, I'm checking on Matai’s status. The team is busy.doifig Al this afternoon..so hopefully S will see the
text and give me an update ( as ] should be there as well).

Thanks

s9(2)(g)

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3@
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 12:13:53 PM

LLHs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: FW: Update.on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

Is this progress?
S9(2)

From: SSAIOI0O]

Sent:Tuesday, November 14, 2023 8:28 AM
1:8s9(2)(0)(ii)

Subject: Re: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

Kia ora

is still azway so we will have a chat about logistics at our Bird Sanctuary catch up at 9:30am.
idieally someone could bring Maitai across and pick Charlie up at the same time?

I'll send those notes through, thanks. See you online this afternoon.

Get Outlook for Android




From: SE@AI(e)[{))
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 3:47:49 PM
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: FW: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau

| followed up with after our call and advice is Charlie won’t get broody in Te Anau on
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

So to maximise breeding this year with the birds we have the only real options is to achieve this issto move
Charlie.

We can ensure that Maitai is with Rata while we maximise our reproductive out put with.Charlie in Dunedin.
Can you please have a rethink on the rationale of not agreeing with this approach.

Thanks

From: SLEAIC));
Sent: Thursday, November 9, 2023 4:34:53 pm
oS A <0
Subject: Update on movement of Charlie from Te Anau
Gl1s9(2)(9) EuBIs9(2)

Just got off a teams call with J#3)

She’d talked to both and the Rangers and repofted that view was yes so long as Charlie was in
the right zone (=brocdy)

The rangers reported that Charlie was not exhibiting broody behaviours at the moment.

These was a question asked about whether'eggs could come to Te Anau to be fostered. | said | would ask but
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



DECEMBER 2023

From: S4AIC)IQ!

Sent on: Sunday, December 10, 2023 7:48:27 PM
To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

cc: MO

Subject: Captive Kaka plans

Morena S@I()]

Thanks for the information you have provided and | can appreciate your frustration with how this has
panned out.

Unfortunately until the ‘speak up’ process is concluded | believe it would be inappropriate and inconsiderate
to the Te Anau staff for us to have pushed ahead with this, this year.

My expectation is an outcome of this will be the District will have a clear process and responsibility for
decision making with respect to Jimmy and\Charlie in the future. | also expect some clear expectations
around behaviour will be in place. Please give us a call if you wish to discuss

Nga mihi nui

From: A1)

Sent: Wednesday, Novemben 22, 2023 5:45 PM
s 9(2)(9)(i)
Subject: Captive Kaka plans
3s9(2)

The Sl kaka captive breeding programme set out this season to try and maximize breeding from the
unrepreséntéd birds in captivity. Dunedin Botanical Gardens (DBG) generously offered to house the
breeding/birds at their facility to allow for flocking and re-pairing birds to maximize the potential for
breeding or Al opportunities. Part of the reason for doing it this year is that we obtained permission
from the kakapo team managers to utilize two of their staff members this season as it is a non-
breeding season for kakapo. The kakapo team are performing the Al procedures and training staff
at DBG and DWH. Having all the breeding birds and Al candidates at the same facility allows us to
make the most of the limited time we have use of the kakapo team members. It was also useful to
have Dunedin Wildlife Hospital (DWH) available and all birds received a health evaluation by them.
This an opportunity we are unlikely to get again at least for the next few years.



All our captive holders moved their breeding birds to Dunedin (bar Te Anau) and received juvenile
birds to occupy their aviary space this season.

The Te Anau team objected to moving Jimmy (unrepresented, high priority) and Charlie, due to
their age and physical limitations. In March | requested that both birds be given a health
assessment at Dunedin Wildlife Hospital in order for me to make an informed decision regarding
those birds’ involvement in the breeding plan this season. This was only achieved for Jimmy in June
and has not been completed for Charlie.

Jimmy’s assessment in June cleared him for Al and he habeen at DBG since July, housed with
another high priority bird and is doing very well. S@AIOI0) reported back to
me just last week that he was doing well after handling and observing him at DBG.

Charlie has remained at Te Anau as we worked through the staff’s concerns with Jimny’s move. She
is still in need of a health check, and we now find ourselves in need of her as a_foster. We have had
one proven breeding female in hospital with an injury and not likely to breed.again this season. We
also have 2 high priority birds producing eggs for the first time. Our non-represented birds are
unproven parents. We have learned from last season that pulling and fostering eggs from these
birds is the best way to ensure we have successful hatching. Charlie-is.a great mother, often raising
2 clutches/season.

and | have requested she be moved to DBGtte be’put with an actively courting
male, to see if she would get broody and be available as-a foster. TIMING IS CRITICAL. We need her
broody and ready to accept eggs or chicks at the same'time as these high priority pairs. We made
the request to move her on 25 of October. We had.anvindication that and 3@ understood
the need for Charlie to foster, and that it wasn’t likely to happen at Te Anau. We planned to bring
another female kaka to Te Anau and pick up(Charlie last week then called that off
due to the tensions with staff at Te Anaus Staffwelfare is a foremost priority.

will make one more request to mave Charlie tomorrow (Thursday). Any further delay caused
by sl and RAGICIM will mean that our efforts to foster the high priority eggs will not happen and
we risk losing some of the new-genetics we and our partners have been working so hard to obtain
to future proof the captive pogulation.

A lot of people have been‘working to capitalize on this opportunity this year. As with all things
ecological, it was impossible to predict how things would play out, and we knew we’d have to
adapt. We hope that'your team will support our efforts and allow Charlie to be moved as soon as
possible for fostering.

Sincerely;

s9(2)(9)(ih)



From: SAIC)IW

Sent on: Monday, December 11, 2023 11:48:22 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Fwd: Jimmy check up

i

Jimmy is @ Dunedin Wildlife Hospital with a broken bone in his wing.

Te Anau has yet to be informed.

I had 2 calls scheduled with SEI#] last week; she didn't make either if them. My plan was to tell her on
the phone. So, I'll send an email today.

It's extremely frustrating. | should leave them to.wark through the Speak Up process.. yet there is still a
need to communicate, and | get little to nothing from them.

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SYAIEY

Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 1:57:29 PM
To: SE[AIEY

s9(2)(9)

Subject: Re: Jimmy check up

KiaOra SEI¥3)

We have performed the radiographs and blood tests as discussed.



Unfortunately Jimmy has fractured his left coracoid. It's minimally displaced at this point so we have
applied a wing to body bandage to help support it and we are providing some additional pain relief.

Hopefully this will heal with time but it's likely to take a minimum of 3 weeks. If he tolerates the
bandage then we will keep this on him for this period.

Ideally we would perform radiographs after this to assess the healing, unless there are any concerns
before then.

The blood results so far are mostly within normal limits, although the white cell count is high.nermal, it
is likely a stress response.

The Fibrinogen result will take a few days to come back from the lab but it may be higherithan
previously due to the injury.

In terms of ongoing care he will need additional pain relief for at least thetnext two weeks, this will be
twice daily medicating and he will also need a smaller indoor enclosure.whilst the fracture heals.
(Needs to be indoors so the bandage does not get wet)

We can house him in the hospital but this will obviously incurengoing costs or if you prefer once we are
happy he is stable we could try managing him as an outpatient at the Gardens to reduce cost.

If he doesn't self feed though we will need to crop tube him=and as mentioned previously twice daily
medication.

Please let us know your thoughts on this?
Thanks for dropping off browse for Jimmy.
Nga mihi
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DUNEDIN

On Sun, Dec 3, 2023 at 4:54 PMEEIAIE)) wrote:



Hil I

We will go ahead with the rest of the plan and leave the lead test for now. Thanks a lot for the browse
and log!

Nga mihi

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in thedoop:

\\'Dl,&

nnnnnnn

0 S, Decs, 2025 o 451 P11 I -
Thanks @)

Please go ahead with theirecommended plan. | think given a lead test was preformed recently let's
leave that for this roundplease.

He gets 022mlmeloxicam in the morning with some sugar water or nectar mix.
I'willdrop off some browse and rotten logs in the morning. | hope the GA goes well.

Cheers

Get Outlook for Android




If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination, distribution of
reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SYAIEY

Sent: Sunday, December 3, 2023 3:04:22 PM
To: SJAIEY
[ Hs9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Jimmy check up

Sorry | forgot to add, the estimate shown is before the 20% discount.

Nga mihi

59(2)(a)
I

If this is a group message - please reply all to keep all parties in the loop.
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DUNEDIN

On Sun, Dec 3, 2023 at 3:03 PMEEIAIE)) wrote:

Kia ora]&)}



Jimmy is reasonably bright in the hospital cage, however this is likely due to the preservation reflex. He
is holding the left wing lower with a mild tremble, so | wonder if the arthritis is progressing, or he has
injured it further recently.

Our next step would be to perform GA, radiographs and bloods tomorrow. | have attached an estimate
including full bloods (biochem, PCV, WCC, fibrinogen, lead). His last lead test was in June 2023 and it
was low, so please let us know if you would like us to perform it or skip this one, and if you are happy
with the plan. Obviously GA comes with risks but | do think it's necessary for his assessment.

Also, has he had meloxicam today, and is it usually given to him in the morning or evenifng?

Nga mihi

s9(2)(a)

If this is a group message - please rep{{all to keep all parties in the loop.
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From: SAICID)

Sent on: Wednesday, December 20, 2023 1:39:21 AM

To: SAIC)D)



CC:

Subject: SI Kaka breeding: Good news, but still risks

HeIIo

Thanks for this.

This is really good news and thanks for sharing.

s9(2)(g)(ii)

Note the heard work and consequent good result with breeding for release of SI Kaka. Note also the
frustration that BIEN@ has had to endure because of the poor behaviour of our colleagues i DOC Te
Anau.

Best wishes
FPRASO(2)(9)(ii)
Sent: Friday, December 15, 2023 11:56 AM
To: SEIEA(e)I()

Subject: Good news, but still risks

1S9(2)
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This is the exact scenario that we wanted to bring Charile from Te Anua to support as a foster. It is



frustrating to see the consequences of not having Charlie involved on SJ¢4IM team and the additional risk
for these high priority eggs that everyone in the captive programme has worked so hard for.

s9(2)(9)



2024
JANUARY 2024

From: SAIC)IWD

Sent on: Friday, January 5, 2024 4:26:16 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)
CC: S9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Jimmy

[®Rs9(2)(9)(ii)

Yes, | can give you updates on Jimmy no worries:
I'll Let you know if | hear anything further:

Cheers

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlookfor Android

From: SAICIQ)]

Sent: Friday, January 5, 2024 5:18:35 PM
To: EAIEND)

(o H59(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Jimmy

Thank you for your response SEIGIC)I | hope SI®] will be able to update you soon. | am grateful that
Metacam has proved such an effective drug for both Jimmy and Charlie, and hope the report will be positive.



| was unaware of SN email but understood from that you were willing to be contacted
regarding Jimmy. If | have misunderstood, | apologise.
Kind regards

s9(2)(9)
TS 9(2)(9)(i)

Sent: Friday, January 5, 2024 4:01 PM
To: EIAICID)
(ofH59(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: RE: Jimmy
Hi S

Yes, Jimmy is doing well, and still recuperating. | am awaiting updates from the about his response to
the Metacam dosage. Radiographs indicated a fracture left coracoid. Repeat radiographs 22/12/23 show no
further movement of fracture fragments and it has likely formed a fibrous callus.

Back in early December I@IENU) wrote to me that until the ‘speak up’ process is concluded he believed it
would be inappropriate and inconsiderate to the Te Anau staff for us to have pushed.ahead with this
decisions regarding bird management.

| think with so many key staff on holiday leave and without confirmation that that the “speak up” process is
concluded and the outcome of the that process, it would be inappropriate ta’havediscussions regarding
Jimmy’s return date.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: SAIC)D)

Sent: Tuesday, January 2, 2024 11:58 AM
To: EIAIC)ID)

(ofH59(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Jimmy
Hello SEIAAIC))
It was good to hear that Jimmy was out of hospital and had apparently coped well with his confinement. |
assume he is being kept in Dunedin until his'vets are happy with his recovery. Please can you tell us which
wing/bone was injured and whether recovery.expected to be complete? Assuming he will fully recover from

this injury, when will he be ready to réturn to Te Anau?
Many thanks

s9(2)(9)

Information for ZAAetter, document by SEIGIE)D] dated 15/01/2024

In orderto facilitate long term objectives of the captive breeding programme, holders were requested to
move priority birds and all proven breeding birds to Dunedin Botanical Gardens (DBG) for the 23/24
breéding season. In response to concerns about Jimmy’s suitability for participation in artificial
insemination procedures and Te Anau ranger’s concerns regarding his response to his participation in Ai the
previous season; a full health and behavioural assessment was arranged at the Dunedin Wildlife Hospital.
(DWH).

Jimmy was admitted to Dunedin Wildlife Hospital (DWH) on 14th June 2023. He spent 8 days in hospital
undergoing a thorough clinical health evaluation as well as behavioural assessment before being discharged
to Dunedin Botanical Gardens (DBG) for further, more extensive, assessment of his general behaviour as well
as mobility with his pre-existing injury.



Behavioural observations by the veterinary staff found Jimmy to be bright and alert and very curious of his
surroundings. Jimmy recovered very quickly post handling for medication and food during his stay.
Jimmy was reported by SEI#AIE) to be bright and alert and behaving normally, and as
she expects for a captive parrot, during his stay at DBG. He was interacting well with a female kaka, Cleo,
that shares the aviary with him. This social interaction is normal and to expected from such a gregarious
species. He was eating well and gaining weight. SJEIEY saw Jimmy on follow up visits to DBG for
blood tests and was pleased with his behaviour and had no concerns about him.
Based on the veterinary/ behavioural assessment that took place June/July 2023, and the information
received from SEI@ICND] and SIAIC)D) regarding how he handled Al procedures the previous
season; the decision was made on July 21+, 2023 to keep Jimmy at DBG for the 23/24 breeding seasonto
facilitate his participation in artificial insemination.
Te Anau ranger SEI@IE) visited DBG the following week and took videos of Jimmy in the aviary&, She did not
express her concerns to the staff at DBG. On July 29th, sent an email with videos to SE3IEND)]
the SIAIC)D)] . She stated that she had observed some atypical, repetitive behaviour. “The
first video shows Jimmy swinging - not in a happy way as | described briefly in my summaryof observations
sent for reference. We have only ever seen him swing for very short periods, dnd‘only in immediate
response to enrichment. At DBG on Friday, and on a previous visit in early July, | bbserved him swinging for
prolonged periods without any obvious circumstances that he might be respahding-to”.
These concerns were promptly addressed. Both and SM@IEN \ere consulted again, and the videos
were reviewed. The team agreed that as this behaviour had previously beén observed in short bursts in
response to enrichment in Te Anau, each time he displays the behaviour might not necessarily be
stereotypical but learned in response to the enrichment. DBG is dwverywsétimulating environment with lots of
views and other birds and noises to peak interest. If immy hasfeatned this behaviour or developed it as a
response to being provided with enrichment, as has mehtiohed occurs in Te Anau, it is possible this could
be the cause. reported that the swinging kehavidur is,not noted throughout the day. It seems to only
be observed in the early morning. He was eating well and gaining weight. We noted that Jimmy would be
monitored closely for signs of stress and stereotypieahbehaviours.

Upmost confidence in staff at DBG to look afterthe/welfare of all the kaka in their care.

File Ref: DOC-7543632

18 January 2024



By email: EAIC)(D)
Tena koe EAIE))

Subject: SI Kaka Jimmy

I'm writing to background the context for the holding of Jimmy at Dunedin Botanic Gardens.

The holding of South Island kaka as a conservation breed for release programme‘is-one of the
objectives of the SI Kaka captive Management Plan. The holding of kaka is also.managed by the
standards in the Kaka Husbandry Manual. Both of these documents have peen approved by DOC
and are available on our website.

Additionally, the Captive Coordinator for this species% has prepared and
consulted on a 23-24 breeding plan which sets the pairings and breeding objectives for the
population in the current season.

The holding by Dunedin Botanic Gardens of Jimmy and-the.other kaka are consistent with all these
documents which have been prepared consulted and approved as required.

Additionally in the case of Jimmy when he first arrived in Dunedin (which is the same time as the
video accompanying this complaint was completed) a health assessment of Jimmy was completed by
veterinarians from the Dunedin Wildlife Hospital.

Jimmy was admitted to Dunedin Wildlife.\Hospital (DWH) on 14th June 2023. He spent 8 days in
hospital undergoing a thorough cliniedl health evaluation as well as behavioural assessment before
being discharged to Dunedin Botanical Gardens (DBG) for further, more extensive, assessment of
his general behaviour as well asSimobility with his pre-existing injury. Behavioural observations by
the veterinary staff found Jimmy to be bright and alert and very curious of his surroundings. Jimmy
recovered very quickly posthandling for medication and food during his stay.

In late July, concerns.were raised regarding Jimmy’s “stereotypical” swinging behaviour. These
concerns were promptly addressed. Bothw and were consulted again,
and the videos werereviewed. The team agreed that as this behaviour had previously been observed
in short bursts in response to enrichment in Te Anau, each time he displays the behaviour might not
necessarily’be stereotypical but learned in response to the enrichment. It was agreed that further
observation’ would be continued over the coming months.

I'm satisfied that you have engaged with the expected standards of care for this individual and have
gorie out of your way to seek professional assessment of the physical and behavioural well being of
this bird.

I have the upmost confidence in you to look after the welfare of all the kaka in your care.



s9(2)(g)(ii)

e

From: SAIC)I0D

Sent on: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 11:04:11 PM

To:  SIRIGI)
- {N

Subject: Catch up to discuss future plans for/Kakavin Te Anau

Kia ora koutou,

Thanks for the catch up‘today.

Please see ngtes\below, let me know if there are any inaccuracies and | will amend the notes accordingly.

24 Jan-catch-up notes

Purpose: Catch up to discuss future plans for kaka in Te Anau.

General notes:



e Speak Up process underway - careful that we need to respect that the process is underway during
conversation.

e Not sure how much progress we can make (including decisions about Jimmy) until the Speak Up
process is completed.

e Something to celebrate - 20 x chicks for release from this 23/24 breeding season!

e Annual flocking plan - comes out for 24/25 season around Easter.

e Ideally we will do consultation once in Autumn for the 24/25 flocking plan.

Jimmy notes:

e Heis back in with Cleo now, back to normal behaviours and monitoring the medicarito look at
histamine levels.
. shared local context with SS#)] and SIEI()N around:
© Rata and Charlie are doing well.
o Aviary readiness if Jimmy is to return soon, Te Anau well preparéed.
o Staff capacity - currently the Te Anau team have good availability of staff and time to make
the necessary observations of Jimmy, or trips for check-ups as required.
e The Captive Kaka Breeding Programme will wait for the Speak Up, process to conclude before making
a decision around any movement of Jimmy.
e Jimmy still requires ongoing rehabilitation, he will not beimoved while that continues.
e April is the tentative planned month for young kaka movement.
e Good relationships are key in order to care for a high priority bird - relationships need the baseline
trust of all parties to work effectively together.
e Dunedin Botanical Gardens have made an amazing contribution toward this breeding season - they
took on all stock and care at their own cost:
e Thereis a lot to think about for next year's flocking plan, for example:
o Where birds will be distributed.
o What chick sexes are.
o Also looking to retiresome of the reliable breeding females who are no longer producing as
many viable eggs.

Actions:

Wis02)(0) B emaiI post-catch up with S0 and Dunedin Botanical Gardens - 3J# to email
U)W on Friday for those updates & share with Te Anau team.

Summary for Te Anau Rangers:

1. No decision will be made on kaka movements until the Speak Up process has reached a resolution
and there's a good working relationship between all parties.

2. Good relationships are key in order to care for a high priority bird.

3. Specifically, the working relationships between DOC Te Anau and the Captive Kaka Breeding
programme (including Dunedin Botanical Gardens, Wildlife Hospital etc) needs baseline trust in
order to work together effectively.



Nga mihi nui,

s9(2)(9)

Availability 8 — 21 January 2024:

KEY

v =In Office / Available; X = Not workifg /Unavailable



0-0C)
Talk to you soon... here's my response to S(?_) email.

I'm happy with the proposed approach. The challenge we've seen this year is when holders disagree on
the proposed plan or put up obstacles to its implementation. | appreciate that haseclearly
indicated that he has a role to resolve these issues when they come up, so I'm pleasedito see that
included.

| think we need to consider the priorities for next year before deciding thatdimmy will be returned to Te
Anau. Securing offspring from both Jimmy and Cleo will remain one.of.the*high priorities next year and
given Jimmy's physical condition, the only way we'll secure genetics from him is via Al. With staff from
DBG and the wildlife hospital now trained to undertake Al (one.of the’good outcomes from this year),
they will need to be in Dunedin for this to happen. | don't see the value in moving Jimmy for a few
months only to then need to ask that he comes back to Dunedin in May or June. There are costs (to the
holders) in moving him and risks to Jimmy in being handled and shifted multiple times as wells as the
social impacts of being separated from Cleo (whom,he seems well settled with) and likelihood that he
will be housed alone in an aviary at Te Anau (orwithhCharlie for this short period, but | don't believe the
Te Anau rangers like to leave them together).

If we are committed to continuing to'try and secure genetics from Jimmy and Cleo (meaning they need
to be at DBG next year), my view is that the downsides for Jimmy of shifting him are too great and he
should remain in Dunedin in“anticipation of next year's programme.

From: A1)

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 1:20 PM
To: EAIC)ND)
Subject: FW: Communications Approach with Te Anau Rangers on S| Kaka Programme

Hi SE[AIC)
This is part of the results of the speak up process.



Have a look and set up a meeting with you and me.

s9(2)

From: SI@Al()I(Y;
Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 12:08 PM
To: SEAIC){)

Subject: Communications Approach with Te Anau Rangers on Sl Kaka Programme

Kia ora

We've been asked for an email outlining how you and intend to communicate with Je Anau
rangers regarding the S| Kaka programme going forward. Can you please check the draft below (perhaps
with too) and come back to me with a version you are happy with? | will then pass'on to Hilary and

Aaron.

The approach for coordination of the Sl Kaka Programme is as follows:

The captive coordinator and technical support officer draft a plan for'the néxt season detailing the

captive management actions required to achieve the programmes ohjectives and circulate that to all

captive programme contributors (annually, “March).

The captive coordinator convenes a Teams meeting with all captive programme contributors to

workshop and agree upon a plan for 24/25 season (annuglly, “NMarch/April 2024).

The captive coordinator emails captive holders with required actions (e.g. transfers, breeding

recommendations, etc.) for them to implement (as per plan).

In the event an agreement on the plan or specific actions cannot be reached, outstanding concerns

will be escalated to the accountable managef of'the Sl Kaka Captive Programme
to resolve. It should be-neted that following the direction of the captive

coordinator is a key condition of each captive holder’s Wildlife Act authorisation to hold SI Kaka in

captivity, as well as DOC'’s Captive Management SOP, and it is expected that this is also followed by

Te Anau Bird Park.

Captive holders will liaise with each other on relevant actions (e.g. transfers) as required to organise

logistics, etc.

The captive coordinatorwill.provide update emails on the progress of the Sl Kaka captive

programme to all captive programme contributors during the season.

For clarity, the captive ceordinator will confirm once Jimmy has completed all required artificial insemination
at Dunedin and is able\to be transferred to Te Anau. Dunedin Botanic Gardens and Te Anau would work
together to plan the logistics, etc., required for this to occur.

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

FEBRUARY 2024

From:

S9(2)(9)(il)

Senton: Thursday, February 1, 2024 9:52:03 PM

To:

CC:

S9(2)(9)(ii)
S9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Process for annual planning SliKaka Programme

Follow up:

I've checked'in With SIBIE)R so here is the consensus view from us.

The ‘annual approach for coordination of the SI Kaka Programme is as follows:

The captive coordinator and technical support officer draft a plan for the next season detailing the
captive management actions required to achieve the programmes objectives and circulate that to all
captive programme contributors (annually, “March).

The captive coordinator convenes a Teams meeting with all captive programme contributors to
workshop and agree upon a plan for 24/25 season (annually, “March/April 2024).

The captive coordinator emails captive holders with required actions (e.g. transfers, breeding
recommendations, etc.) for them to implement (as per plan).



e Inthe event an agreement on the plan or specific actions cannot be reached, outstanding concerns

will be escalated to the accountable manager of the SI Kaka Captive Programme S@GIC) D)
to resolve. It should be noted that following the direction of the captive

coordinator is a key condition of each captive holder’s Wildlife Act authorisation to hold SI Kaka in
captivity, as well as DOC'’s Captive Management SOP, and it is expected that this is also followed by
DOC holders.

e Captive holders will liaise with each other on relevant actions (e.g. transfers) as required to organise
logistics, etc.

e The captive coordinator will provide update emails on the progress of the Sl Kaka captive
programme to all captive programme contributors during the season.

Thanks

O
—~
N
-

Fom: A
Sent on: Friday, February 2, 2024 1:53:11 AM

©:
Subject: RE: Pracess for annual planning SI Kaka Programme
Urgent: High

Attachments:Further Info on SI Kaka .msg (89.5 KB)

Kiatora
Thanks for that, looks good. Two things:
1. Can you confirm if DOC puts any funding resource into the programme other than Te Anau’s holding
of k?k? and associated costs of that? Plus your time as well, but_ is covered externally?
2. Before | can go back to Hilary, | need context on the rationale for not having a second behavioural
assessment for Jimmy. Can you provide context on that please (as per attached request)?
Ng? mihi,



From: |
Sent on: Friday, February 2, 2024 2:49:13 AM

Subject: RE: Process for annual planning SI Kaka Programme

il
Re 1) No we do not have an operating budget for this project. Yes Te Anau contribute time\and operating to

the care of the birds they hold. Most of effort is vquntary,- says that occasionally-
- gives her a few hours. might also get a bit of support from Prejectdanzoon.
Re 2) separate email refers.

Fom:

Sent on: Wednesday, February 28, 2024 8:48:03 PM

Subject: Flockingplan 24 25
Attachments: SI Kaka Captive Breeding Flocking Plan 24 25.docx (30.67 KB)

i
Attached.isithe flocking plan.
| think itlays out the case to retain the valuable birds at DBG.- did express wanting to move Jimmy

and Cleo to Invercargill. She thinks tha_ would be able to keep a close eye on them. It
may be that she just doesn’t want any further grief from Te Anau. | think as Jimmy and Cleo are the

priority they need to be at DBG Where- can do the egg swapping and incubating eggs artificially
etc. | think there is also a risk of medical expenses with them as well. JIRKJ RIS

| think there is also an opportunity for “negotiation” . If Te Anau disagrees with the plan and-
objects to another year with Jimmy, we can consider the option of moving him and Cleo to Invercargill.



That may appease Te Anau, and- and we are responsive to feedback. BUT, | think it is not in the
best interest of the programme to have Jimmy anywhere other than DBG until we get his genes.

I do not have the sexes of the chicks produced this year, | have recommended holding back a male and
a female from Caesar and Toanga etc. Fingers crossed we get the sexes we need.

Happy to discuss.

I’m around all day today and tomorrow afternoon.

When it’s ready, I’'ll save as a pdf to send to all.

Cheers,

SI Kaka Captive Breeding programme Flocking and Breeding plan‘for 24/25
Captive Coordinator:

29 Feb. 24

out of scope







out of scope

Goals 2 and 3: Maximizing the genetic diversity available for releases to-Orokonui and to
future proof the SSI captive population.

e Prioritise breeding for Jimmy and Cleo. They are unrelated te-any other birds in the captive
population and any birds released at Orokonui so far. As such, they are the most genetically
valuable SSI birds and offspring from them would conttibute significantly to the Orokonui
population and the future of the SSI captive population.

Both of these birds have physical limitations and.are relatively old. While held together at
DBG this year, they appeared bonded, showed interest in nest boxes, and we suspect there
was a mating attempt. They will be retained at DBG as a priority for breeding while also
maintaining Al as a possible option.

If we are successful in securing, ¢hiCks from Jimmy and/or Cleo, we would likely retain one
to several of these chicks as,anéw genetic line within the captive population, with remaining
birds released to Orokonui.

out of scope




Table 1. Recommendations for holdings and movements of birds for 24/25 season.

Institution Institution/Current | Holdings Purpose Actions
Holdings proposed for
24/25

Dunedin out of out of ssli out of scope
Botanical SCope SCope Jimmy and Cleo are the top priority ...Chicks

Gardens from this pairing are a completely new line for
the breeding population.

Toanga and Jimmy are another pairingthat
would increase the diversity of the captive

population.

TOS

2 pairs that have bred remain at DBG for

another season to allow fostering of 3 foster pairs to allow for
eggs/chicks with proven-breeding pairs and foster of any of Jimmy’s

allowing TOS birds‘to raise non-priority chicks. eggs & TOS eggs

Overrepresented pairs are still needed to foster | Focus will be:
eggs/chicksfrom inexperienced birds (SSI/TOS)
BUT.bréeding from these birds needs to be Jimmy X Cleo
limited.
Toanga X Jimmy

Charlie

out of scope

TOS pairs




Stumpy and Charlie moves to DBG to be foster for priority Rata moved tolnvercargill
Gimpy eggs/chicks Charlie moved to DBG
Rata returns to Invercargill Receive Stumpy/Gimp

out of scope




MARCH 2024

From: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent on: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 10:32:19PM

To:

Subject: Re: Sending out flocking plan

ReactionsSummary: EEIBIC)N@)] , like, 3/20/2024 10:44:00 PM
OwnerReactionHistory: SEIGIC) D) like, 3/20/2024 10:44:14 PM

e
Our point of Contact is now RAGICIY)

Soyes I'll set up a call..as we should have introductions and expectations.

Get Outlook for Android

FTTAS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2024 11:15:19 AM



To: SEIPA)I()
Subject: RE: Sending out flocking plan

ZlS9(2)(g)(ii
| think SSICAIC)VE isEEIPAI() VI \who sits above

Yes why not set up a call with Sl and get things going. We can explain the thinking behind the
Flocking plan and set up a process with the keepers in Te Anau and elsewhere.

Happy to discuss.
From: S4PAl(e)IU))
Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2024 10:05 AM
RS 9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Sending out flocking plan
3l1s9(2) |

Spoke with this morning.

Good chat. He’s keen for us to move forward.

Says we should be receiving information about the conclusion of the SpeakUp proeess from Hilary
and/or Aaron as they were the decision makers.

Ready to “reconvene communications”...nowever it will now be witha different SEIGICHDI o
...I’m getting him to send through the details.

He says that there is still a lot of work to do at Te Anau, but feelswill clearly understand that
their roles are the day to day care of the birds and not to be involved in decision making. Feedback is still
welcomed and encouraged but they have to leave the decision making to the Captive Coordinator and
managers.

_

| mentioned that we do need to keep moving on getting out the flocking plan, and we discussed sending
an email to SLEAC)D) ahead of the flocking plan to outline my thoughts and rationale for Jimmy
not returning to Te Anau as the team anticipates.

What would you like me to do in regardsito “reconvening communication”? Do you think we need to have
a call with thisEEIEICNIN to open the lines of communication? Or shall | draft the email to explain that
the draft of the flocking plan will be sent out shortly and | wanted to let the Te Anau team know that the
decision has been made not'to return Jimmy to Te Anau for the following reasons.....?

s9(2)(9)

IS 9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Tuesday, March 19,2024 10:51 AM
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Sending out flocking plan
Lets have a'chatbefore any actions.

| was thinkihgover the weekend that | should send it out and not you.
s9(2)

IR S9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent; Tuesday, March 19, 2024 10:49 AM

-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Sending out flocking plan
fso2)

I think the main reason we have yet to send out the flocking plan is that we should engage with Te Anau
prior to it going out -so they are aware that decisions about Jimmy are different from their expectations.
The fact that we haven’t heard anything back from them in a couple of weeks is frustrating. I’m inclined

to send an email to§g# today to say something like. SEAIEN)

We had hoped to understand the outcomes of the Speak Up process before sending out the draft




flocking plan for next year. If you are able to facilitate this meeting in the next few days I will hold off on
sending out the plan. Otherwise | will need to get it out.

9(2)(0)(ii), 9(2)(9)(i)

The draft plan:

| have made the edits you suggested. | received sexing results for the SSI birds so | was able to update
the table and id birds we want to retain by studbook numbers.

| still have that paragraph about DBG as a potential new release site in. It is more of a strategy issue,
than part of the flocking plan. is going full steam on writing a translocation proposal this week. Vve
had several emails and a phone call as she gathers information.

| have not added anything about costings.

The holders will disease screen birds that get moved around to accommodate the plan. Atthis stage
out of scope

I’m around tomorrow if you have time.

s9(2)(9)

APRIL 2024

From: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on:, ‘Wednesday, April 10, 2024 10:46:24 PM

To: s9(2)(g) (i)
cc: s9(2)(g) (i)

Subject: RE: Sl Kaka 24/25 Flocking plan overview

Follow up: Follow up



Start date: Thursday, April 11, 2024 12:00:00 AM

Due date: Thursday, April 11,2024 12:00:00 AM

9(2)(9)(i), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(g)(ii)




9(2)(9)(i), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(g)(ii)

From: EEIPAl(¢)I{D)

Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 10:09 AM
To: SEAlC))

[Hs9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: Re: SI Kaka 24/25 Flocking plan overview

11s9(2) Ele]s9(2)(g)

Thanks for the overview, I'vé.foarwarded it on to SV and SEI@ who are keen to meet and discuss the
plans, they have 3 point§ they were keen to get across and I've forwarded they're questions below.

s9(2)(g)(ii) will set up a meeting for us in the near future.
Cheers
S9(2)

Critical issues re the draft plan for 2024/25:

ISQ(Z)(Q) and S9(2.) will not be aware of some of these as they have arisen/become apparent recently).






9(2)(9)(i), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(9)(ii)

From: EEIPAl(¢)I{D)

Sent: 04 April 2024 15:25

S 9(2)(9)(ii)
[Ws9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: SI Kaka 24/25 Flocking plan overview

Greetings S¥AlC)I{)

As we discussed in our most recent phone conversations, we have delayed dissemination of the 24/25
flocking plan to the kaka holders until we had clear and direct lines of communication established again
with the Te Anau team.

The first draft of the plan is ready to go out, and the recommendation is that Jimmy remain at DBG for the
24/25 season. | think it is important to address the team’s expectation that Jimmy would return to Te
Anau after the 23/24 season, prior to them reading it in the plan.

The reasons aroundithe recommendation are clearly focused on programme objectives. Jimmy is the
most valuable bird,in the captive programme as he is unrelated to any other captive bird, and his genes
have not been released to Orokonui. A key goal of the plan is to focus on obtaining Jimmy’s genes in
24/25 to help diversify the population and future proof the programme. We have an aging
population:(Jimmy ~24y, Charlie ~34y, Cleo ~24y), and need to plan for succession of our breeding
pairs, so the sooner we capture Jimmy’s genes the better.

We have also taken Jimmy’s age and medical condition into consideration. Jimmy is being treated for
arthritis, and suffered a fracture of the coracoid bone last season. We feel it is prudent to keep him in
Dunedin where he can be more closely monitored/treated by the Dunedin Wildlife Hospital for any
changes in his condition. Jimmy was housed in DBG prior to being moved to Te Anau, he has settled
back in and seems quite happy with Cleo. Cleo is also a high priority female so that pairing is extremely
beneficial. We don’t believe that moving him back to Te Anau, to then move him back to DBG for the
24/25 seasonis in his best interest. Jimmy’s welfare is of the upmost importance to all of us.

The plan also recommends that Charlie is moved to DBG for the 24/25 season to serve as a foster
parent. This past season, we utilised our over represented breeding females to foster/raise the



eggs/chicks of our first time priority. This was extremely successful but required multiple females and
multiple movements of eggs and chicks at different stages to ensure the eggs/chicks were properly
cared for. Charlie is a good mother, often double clutching in a season, and would serve as a valuable
foster. The plan for 24/25 is that Charlie will be available at DBG to foster the high priority eggs and
chicks. The amount of hatch (17 Chicks ) put enormous pressure on keepers, having the right females
(eg Charlie) in the right place to support fostering would have relieved this and providing for this is part of
our planning for 24/25.

You have received a copy of the summary of last season to give him an idea of what went on and how
important the foster females were.

This is not a permanent arrangement. Utilising the birds we have to get the best balance of available
genes through the captive population is a short term project, but it means that we future proof.the

captive population for the objectives of the CMP..

Once you have had a chance to consider this and discuss with your team, I’m happy:te.set up a teams
meeting to check in and clarify any points.

Best wishes

s9(2)

|

From: SEIPAIEY
Sent on: Monday, Aprit22, 2024 8:24:03 PM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject:(RE: SI' Kaka Dunedin Gardens

Thanks and S4#I);

| have sent through a weeks observations of Jimmy from March to I have also indicated the meeting
schedule and content to her and suggested she get in contact with either of you directly if she would like
conformation of that information. | have our vet in this week to do a welfare check on Jimmy as
another expert witness to his welfare and behaviour.



Surly this will conclude ZAA’s process from the July 2023 observations/footage complaint submitted in
November 2023. Like the other birds that arrived from Te Anau bird park “Taonga” and “Bling” they came
with behavioural quirks that have all but dissipated in the time they have been with us and this has been the
case with Jimmy too.

Cheers

& L
0202020 (5 tatou apopo | the futiyre of us

- = . 5 ) ST
:r. join the conversation | dunedin.govinz/Z024AP

If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned thQat afy frther use, dissemination, distribution or
reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From§
Sent: Monday, April 22, 2024 4:05 PM

LrHs9(2)(9)(ii) s9(2)(a)

Subject: FW: SI K?k? Dunedin Gardens

CFYI
From: SE[AIEI0)

Sent: Monday, April 22, 2024 4:04 PM
To: SE[AIEY
Subject: FW: SI K?k? Dunedin/Gardens

HiSEIAAIEY

| visited last week and although not claiming any particular husbandry skills watched a bird do exactly
what all the other birds around him were doing. He sat in the sun, ran up and down the structures in the
aviary and played with the play boards that have been supplied.

This is consistent with what the veterinarians from Dunedin Wildlife Hospital are observing as well as the
holders at'Dunedin Gardens

So'we have about four experienced wildlife handlers providing comment that the bird is behaving
normally with in the bounds of his disabilities. I’m not sure what else can advance this analysis.

S9(2)



From: S4AIEY
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 5:18 PM

LS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: SI K?k? Dunedin Gardens
2ls9(2)

Regarding your email and question, as part of Dunedin responding to the investigation, we would expect
them to demonstrate via evidence how they know the swinging behaviour of Jimmy is not stereotypy, as
they claim. We would be open to receiving any evidence eg filling in the ZAA Welfare Assessment Tool for
Jimmy, consulting an expert in the field of Kaka behaviours, recording and interpretingdimmy’s
behaviours.

It’s important our Members are able to clearly demonstrate how the welfare oftheir animals are
supported, including minimising potential risks to welfare. This is expected'as,part of their Accreditation
Program.

If the evidence demonstrates that Jimmy’s specific swinging behaviour,is not stereotypy, then it gives
Dunedin and you the confidence to respond to any concerns raised towards this particular matter.

| hope that helps clarify what we are asking.

Kind regards,

s9(2)(a)

For more information, visit https://zooaquarium.org.au/ZAAConference

From: SJAIOI0)]

Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 12:45 PM




To: SMOAIEY

Subject: RE: SI K?k? Dunedin Gardens

Hello EEIAIE))

Thanks for the update.

Are you asking for a video of behaviours or an assessment? I’m not clear how much effort you require of
SLIAN to meet this request.

Hopefully you have not been affected by the floods too badly.
S9(2)
From: 3JAIEY

Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 10:41 AM

s 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: SI K?k? Dunedin Gardens

Hello SElA)

After our meeting in early March | had reached out to around sharing'record keeping observations
on Jimmy’s behaviour over a period of time. This would supplement the'video evidence sent
through earlier. If we can see recorded behaviours over a period of time this will help with our
assessment.

I hadn’t heard back from 3@ since emailing her so | was following up on this. has since
responded saying he will get this through to us.

Kind regards,

5.9(2)(a)

. more information, visit https://zooaquarium.org.au/ZAAConference




From: S4B}

Sent: Tuesday, April 9, 2024 11:58 AM

To: SMGAIEY

Subject: SI K?k? Dunedin Gardens

Greetings SJAIEY

| understand from EEIAAIEY) that the ZAA response to a complaint you have received with respect to
the bird Jimmy held at Dunedin is still not resolved.

I’d appreciate an update on what is missing here and what’s required for you to be able to make a
determination and conclude the process?.

Thanking you in advance

9(2)

[

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you aré nat the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in error, please notify ds.immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise forthe inconvenience. Thank you.

This email is intended onlyA\fORthe person to whom it is addressed and/or otherwise authorized personnel. The
information contained hereid¥and attached is confidential and the property of the Zoo and Aquarium Association. If you
are not the intended retipignt please be advised that viewing of this message and any attachment/s, as well as copying,
forwarding, printingand @isseminating any information related to this email is prohibited and that you should not take
any action baseds@n th& content of this email and/or its attachments. If you received this message in error, please
contact the sefider @nd destroy all copies of this email and any attachment/s. Please note that the views and opinions
expressed bergimgfe solely those of the author and do not necessarily reflect those of the company. While antivirus
protectiga, té0lsghave been employed, you should check this email and any attachment/s for the presence of viruses. No
warrantigs”®r assurances are made in relation to the safety and content of this email and attachments. The Zoo and
AgquasiumeASsociation accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by or contained in this email
apd agachment/s. No liability is accepted for any consequences arising from this email and attachment/s.

Pleg€e consider the environment before printing this email.

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

This email is intended only for the person to whom it is addressed and/or otherwise authorized personnel. The
information contained herein and attached is confidential and the property of the Zoo and Aquarium Association. If you



are not the intended recipient please be advised that viewing of this message and any attachment/s, as well as copying,
forwarding, printing and disseminating any information related to this email is prohibited and that you should not take
any action based on the content of this email and/or its attachments. If you received this message in error, please
contact the sender and destroy all copies of this email and any attachment/s. Please note that the views and opinions
expressed herein are solely those of the author and do not necessarily reflect those of the company. While antivirus
protection tools have been employed, you should check this email and any attachment/s for the presence of viruses. No
warranties or assurances are made in relation to the safety and content of this email and attachments. The Zoo and
Aquarium Association accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by or contained in this email
and attachment/s. No liability is accepted for any consequences arising from this email and attachment/s.

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use;
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

From: SEIGICID)

Sent on: Wednesday, April 24,2024 1:48:49 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)
ccC: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Charlie

BlsO(2)
Thanks for gettingSEIEGIC)M to send information about Charlie.

I’m afraid theiinformation in that email is not sufficient to have a discussion about her he fitness to
continueto’participate in the captive breeding programme.

It deesn’treally give me a clear picture of Charlie’s overall health. What was her weight, her body
condition. What information did the rangers provide at the visit about her behaviour, eating habits etc.

The vet says her x-rays show no difference from last year to this year..but refers to some
discomfort...was there something that prompted the rangers to take Charlie to be seen?

Sounds like they put her on meds, before lab results were back, so | would like to know what prompted
that, and what is the prescribed dosage.

I am happy to go directly to the vet but thought it would be best to engage your team.

Cheers,



s9(2)(9)
From: SE[AIEI0)

Sent: Tuesday, April 23,2024 11:43 AM
To: SEAIC)D)

[fHs9(2)(a) §s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: FW: Charlie
Kia ora koutou
Please find attached an email from Charlie’s vet, SI¢3IE) , as requested.

Charlie’s medication is managed as an am and pm dose because we observed that a singlélarger dose
made her miserable.

Ng? mihi
s9(2)(9)
From: S AIEY

Sent: Friday, March 22, 2024 3:33 PM
To: SAIC) D)
Subject: Charlie

Charlie was well behaved during her visit to SJ€IE) )]

X-rays attached for your interest/records. No significant.change in the fracture sites compared to the x-
rays taken in Feb 2023 however some unseen changés.may still be causing Charlie some discomfort.

| have submitted a blood test to the lab so will contact you next week with the results.
@A) has returned with a large bottle of méloxicam. Continue as required with this medication.

I will be in touch again next week. | hope.she'settles back into her aviary.

Regards,
s.9(2)(a), 9(2)(9)(ii)




From: EEIGICID)

Sent on: Monday, April 29, 2024 3:34:03 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Fw: Charlie

Date of Charlies vet visit

From: SJAII0)]

Sent: 29 April 2024 15:25
To: SAIC)D)
Subject: Charlie

1stvisit Feb 2023, prescribedimetacam.

Vet contacted in July'when Charlie had been alone (after Jimmy transfer) for 8 weeks
and showing pain/diseomfort symptoms. Meds increased and split into 2 doses.
Bloods taken.

Last visit March 21st.

Get Outlook for Android




From: SEIBICID)

Sent on: Monday, April 29, 2024 12:07:02 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie

HiEEIAIG)

Yep, no problem, will try to get that to you before tomorrows meeting, i've also requested-the Vets report
and will send that on to you as soon as i receive it.

Cheers

FTTAS9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: 26 April 2024 10:04
To: EAIC)]D)
Subject: RE: Charlie

e

Before | do that, I’d like your.team to provide what we requested, an account of why and when Charlie
was taken to the vet and anyfindings they received. (vetreport, discharge papers, lab results) | have
been provided X-rays as perbelow.

If the email below.is allthey received, then orSEIBIC)M will need to explain to the vet that they need
more information to"pass on to DOC. It’s not my job to chase this information.

The email states that the vet was comparing Xrays to ones taken in Feb 2023. Again, and |
requested,that Charlie have a physical examination (at Dunedin Wildlife Hospital) to determine her
fitness.ito'continue to participate in the captive breeding programme. If she was seen in Feb 2023 why
was fietreport provided to myself or SIEAIC)D)

Information from both visits would be helpful in our discussions around Charlie’s suitability from
breeding and the recommendations in this year’s flocking plan.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: SIAIOID)
Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 2:28 PM



LS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie

ZHs9(2)(9)(ii)

Just spoken to SIBICNWDA she's happy for you to speak to SIGICWM vets in person, doesn't sound
like they heard back about the results

Cheers

From: SE[@AIC)I)
Sent: 24 April 2024 14:20
To: SEAICID)

Subject: RE: Charlie

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: A1)
Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 2:20 PM
To: EIAICND)

Subject: Re: Charlie

Hiya

Agree there's not an awful lot of information there, presumably they received some more
information when the test results came back. I'll see what else | can find out

Cheers

From: A1)
Sent: 24 April 2024:13:48
To: EIAIC)ND)
(ofH59(2)(9)(il)
Subject:RExCharlie

o)

Thanks for getting SEICAI() to send information about Charlie.

I’m afraid the information in that email is not sufficient to have a discussion about her he fitness to
continue to participate in the captive breeding programme.

It doesn’t really give me a clear picture of Charlie’s overall health. What was her weight, her body
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

| am happy to go directly to the vet but thought it would be best to engage your team.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: A1)
Sent: Tuesday, April 23,2024 11:43 AM
To: EIAIE)ID)

Bs9(2)(9)(ii) S9(2)(9)(il)

Subject: FW: Charlie

Kia ora koutou

Please find attached an email from Charlie’s vet, SI3IEN , as requested.
Charlie’s medication is managed as an am and pm dose because we obséryvedthat a single, larger dose
made her miserable.

Nga mihi

s9(2)(9)

From: S AIEY
Sent: Friday, March 22, 2024 3:33 PM

LrHs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Charlie

Charlie was well behaved during hervisit to I€I()I{D)

X-rays attached for your interest/records. No significant change in the fracture sites compared to the x-
rays taken in Feb 2023 howevet some unseen changes may still be causing Charlie some discomfort.

| have submitted a blood test to the lab so will contact you next week with the results.

has returned witha large bottle of meloxicam. Continue as required with this medication.

I will be in touch again nextwveek. | hope she settles back into her aviary.

Regards,




From: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Sunday, April 28, 2024 11:40:30 PM
To: s9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: FW: Te Anau kaka Memo May 2023

Attachments: Te Anau kaka Memo May 2023.doc (66.5 KB)

i

I’m just resending this email as a refresher regarding the Te Anau situation.

I had a catch up with S and she has provided feedback on the flocking plan that | think we need to
discuss.

A phone call would be most appropriate.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)
FTTAS9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Monday, May 15, 2023 4:29 PM

L-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)
(@ H59(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: FW: Te Anau kaka Memo‘May 2023

HeIIo

I’'m writing to see whether you as a manager with a captive management brief will consider signing the
attached. SR and | have been back and forwards with the SJEIEID)] and nee dot get some
clear messages delivered to the Ops manager at Te Anau rather than him always getting it in the neck from

s9(2)(9)

The attached needs to be reviewed but if you are prepared to do this then | can knock it into shape as a first
draft.

Look forward to your view.

From: SJAIOI0)]

Sent: Tuesday, May 9, 2023 1:56 PM
To: EAIC)ND)
Subject: Te Anau kaka Memo May 2023




| hope you had a great trip, and had agreeable weather.
I’'m quite over the rain, and looking forward to the promise of sun in the 10 day forecast.

I've attached a memo about the Te Anau issues. It’s a bit vague on dates. It’s a start.
We are moving birds from Nelson to Dunedin on Thursday.

At the end of the month we should be able to move birds from both Queenstown and Christchurch.

| haven'’t yet followed up with Te Anau, regarding moving their birds. SEIPAIECY , | toldithem

| would “think about” taking Jimmy out of the mix this season. My thoughts have been that | need té have him

accessed by DWH andﬂ to his suitability for Ai.w has worked with him previously, El¢3l(s)[Q)]

| haven’t saved the document into the DOCCM vyet, so feel free to save it and give access.toithose who need to
see it.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

Attached document is an internal memo - flagged

= Department of Conservation

\‘_“/ Te Fapa Atawba Internal Correspondence

Date: 7 May 2023
To: s9(2)(9)(ii)
CC.:

From: SRAIC)D)

Subject: Te Anau Bird Sanctuary Kaka Issues




Aviary size: Doesn’'t meet minimum standards. Not fix for purpose for kaka.
I have recorded that the 2 aviaries are 8SmX 4m X 2.5m

They built a Vestibule that connects the 2 aviaries, which is used as a double door entry.
Doors can be left open to connect the 2 aviaries, and Te Anua staff say that gives the birds
18mX 4mX 2.5m.

Over the last 2 years there have been 2 pairs, and the males did not get along, so there was ne
flocking or allowing birds to use the entire aviary.

Toanga and Jimmy: moved to Te Anua in 2016, with the intention of swapping partners with
Charlie and Bling. This never happened, Te Anau staff always found a reason not to'do'the
swap. Efforts to move birds away from Te Anau are met with resistance. Always$ using the

bird’s welfare as the reason. [SUSefeelel

out of scope

Jimmy/Charlie: Jimmy and Charlie are currently house separately at Te Anau. The staff
are afraid that Charlie will bully and potentially injure Jimmy if they are left together in the
same aviary. Jimmy has been observed with tatty tail feathers, and displaying



mating/copulation behaviours against a wall. In October 2022, sent a video of Charlie
displaying mating behaviours on a branch of a tree, while housed away from Jimmy. We did
Al with the 2 birds, which was the main reason for keeping them both at Te Anau.

Jimmy is a priority bird for the focus on Al in 23/24 breeding season. Charlie is a proven
breeder and we would like her in Dunedin for the coming season to potentially foster chicks.
Te Anau staff are advocating for them to both stay in Te Anau. The current situation (2
birds house separately) is not conducive to the goals of the programme, and is resulting in 2
unhappy and stressed birds with behavioural issues.

MAY 2024

From: SEIGIC)D)

Sent on: Wednesday, May 142024 4:39:07 AM

OYBINSO(2)(0) i)

N ]
CC: s9(2)(9)(i)

Subject: RE: Agenda - South Island captive kaka — Te Anau consultation

Hi Team,

SN thank you for so promptly sending out these action items.

See below, as it appears that we are actioning them quickly as well.



From: EEAl(¢)I{D)

Sent: Tuesday, April 30, 2024 4:19 PM
To: @A)

Subject: Re: Agenda - South Island captive kaka — Te Anau consultation

Kia ora all,

Three key actions came out of our catch-up this afternoon:

will follow up with vets and email relevant informatiofn on Charlie to and
Achieved- Charlies’ history sent through this aftefadon

will ask vet about an ethogram and will ask 34®3] about issues with spooking and faIIing.-

wil! share feedback from these discussions with SEACAI()I(); . In progress

3. will share additional context (in writing) about Rata withE®0 This context should be shared
with the team at Queens’ Garden as well. It’s not relevaht tc a decision being made about Rata. It
was agreed that Rata was there to keep Charlie company, and would return to Invercargill. It is shown
in the chart in the Flocking plan Rata being held{insinvercargill. He can go back as soon as both
facilities are ready. We will still need to work through the recommendations for Charlie and Jimmy in

the flocking plan. | would flag that there £otld\be a period of time where there is no companion for
Charlie.

In all of the above comm:s, please CC the following people in: €A} 1)}

Meeting recording below/if anyone who was absent wants to watch:

: e ,

Thanks,




Please note that | work flexibly, so you may receive an email from me outside of usual working hours. Please respond at a
time that is convenient to you.

From: SIAIID)
Sent: Tuesday, 30 April 2024 9:32 am
To: EAIC)]D)

Subject: Agenda - South Island captive kaka — Te Anau consultation

Morning all

Please find attached agenda for this afternoon's meeting

Thanks

From: MEGICI

Sent on: Friday, May 3, 2024 3:53:09 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(i)

Subject:"'Fw: Additional feedback to draft flocking/breeding plan 2024/25

2Hs9(2)(9)(ii)
Here's gl and gdGICION additional feedback

Cheers



From: 3G

Sent: 02 May 2024 16:48
To: SAIC)D)
o5 9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Additional feedback to draft flocking/breeding plan 2024/25

SN hope the text below is suitable, as discussed. When forwarding please continue to keep in
the email chain.

ZlIS9(2)(9)(ii)

Much of our feedback has already been covered during our meeting and the context provided in
response to that. This is summarised below with some additional considerations.

The main points are:

1. Charlie is unfortunately no longer suitable as a foster parent and moving her anywhere would re-
traumatise her and she would be very unlikely to nest. Full'context previously provided.

2.

3. Jimmy has specific needs for an envirohment that is safe for him and maximises potential for
securing off-spring from him. Full context-also previously provided.

We are mindful that these issues haverepercussions for the flocking plan. We want to be solution
focussed and are supportive of achieving the key goals of the breeding program, and so ask if the
following would be considered as)a viable alternative:

Jimmy and Cleo housed at Te/Anau as companion neighbours for Charlie. We understand this doesn’t
have the advantage of synchronising all the females nesting but it has proven to be a suitable
environment and arrangement for both Charlie and Jimmy and may allow for some advantageous
opportunity: The draft plan allows the potential for some Al to happen at/from Invercargill through the
Kakapo team, and this has proven to be a viable format for Te Anau birds in the past.

If Charlie‘was inspired to nest, this may synchronise with Jimmy and Cleo’s nesting/hormonal activity
and Charlie'could also potentially be an Al recipient, although er eggs would need to be fostered out.
Alternatively, if there were a female partner for Charlie, could a female/female relationship potentially
inspire both partners to nest as some species do?



From: SEI@IE)

Sent on: Friday, May 3, 2024 2:08:22 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie (kaka)

Not a problem, happy to help when | can.

I'd argue that Charlie is one of the most sweet, chilled and adaptabte'kaka | have ever
encountered. She was so calm when she was in hospital with herchicks a few years
back after they were exposed to toxoplasmosis. She would just'sit with the chicks
while we supplementary fed them and then she'd give them.a small feed after and
was so tolerant of us and showed no aggression or signs of distress. Also, being a
parrot, in particular a species that is intelligent andiinquisitive, they thrive on
enrichment and stimulation so the argument that DBG is too stimulating is not valid
in my opinion, it is my opinion that Charlie would-settle in quickly. is also very
good at easing newbies into the new environment and the aviaries, as you know,
provide lots of opportunities for the birds,te retreat and seek some refuge if they need
to if they're feeling overwhelmed.

scope

o
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So while we obviously can't guarantee that nothing will happen to Charlie, her recent
health check clearly shows she is in good health so | have no reservations about
moving her to Dunedin and am happy to endorse this course of action.

Nga mihi

s9(2

On Fri, May 3, 2024 at 11:35 AM S4GACL0)
wrote:

s9(2

Thank you for reviewing her records. | know you are veny busy and your time is valuable so it is very much
appreciated.

| have outlined in the draft flocking plandhat monitoring the dosage of medicam with Jimmy (and Charlie)
is a factor in moving them. As you say\it’s important to make sure it’s not affecting their organs etc.

| too feel that Charlie is a gréatparent and has been frustrated the last few seasons not being able to
engage in breeding and rdisinghicks. (Observations provided by{IPA){). | think we can find ways
to keep her engaged. | would advocate to do that by transferring her to DBG for a season.

is argding thiat Charlie has been housed at Te Anau for 17 yrs and will not cope with a change of
riousing,or the over stimulating environment at DBG.

Thereis some validity to that argument, but we don’t know unless we try.
| feél that if we move her over the winter and she can be housed with or near Bling that will help her settle
in.



Te Anau have raised their concerns to the draft flocking plan for next year, and moving Charlie and her
meds are their primary issues. We deferred discussing Charlie this week, because they had not
provided the vet report. We will be going back to discuss this, and now | have your opinions, and
recommendations. | can suggest the additional testing for inflammatory markers. Ultimately, | believe
any decisions regarding Charlie and Jimmy will be up to SIGICHOM He will take on board all the
information | pull together and Te Anau’s concerns. As well as input from B3l based on her
experience with Jimmy and the Te Anau staff.

Thank you so much,

Have a great weekend!

s9(2)(9)

From: SSGIC)IU)

Sent on: Thursday, May 2,2024 11:36:57 PM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: FW: Charlie (kaka)

FYI
has‘reviewed Charlie’s records.

From: SYAIEY

Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 10:21 AM

s 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie (kaka)



Morena SAICID)

I've had a chance to look through all of Charlie's records. We did provide input last
year as sent through the x-rays for us to review. | agree with assessment
of the recent x-ray that there have been no changes so this is good news. The bones
have healed terribly after her accident on the Milford road and as she gets older itis
very likely that this could be the source of some discomfort. Looking at all thedah
results | see nothing concerning and they all indicate that Charlie is in good health
and is not having a negative reaction to the long term meloxicam.

| note that Charlie receives her prescribed dose of 0.3mls (1mg/kg) split into two
doses as | see noted that the once daily dose made.her miserable. I'm
interested to hear more about this and what "miserable"actually means as
meloxicam is a sweet tasting medication, it is honey flayoured, and in my experience
birds tolerate it extremely well, especially the spécies that enjoy nectar/sweet tasting
food i.e. kaka, Tui etc. The dose of 0.3mls is at the'medium end of the dose range at
around 1mg/kg based on her weight being.around 480¢g. The high end of the dose
range is prescribed for birds in a lot of pain e.g. fractures, other trauma, and ranges
up to 2mg/kg (0.64mls for bird Charlie's.size). We routinely use a dose of 1.5mg/kg for
most species of birds (excludingpenguins) that we admit to hospital as we also
include other pain killers to helpithem after they sustain a trauma. For arthritic cases
| endeavour to decrease the dose rate to the lowest dose possible as long term use
can potentially have a negative impact on kidneys and gastrointestinal tract. | taylor
this based on the birds response, what the owner/keepers observe, taking seasons
into account i.e. colder weather aggravates arthritis so | may increase the dose if the
bird seems morewpainful in winter. | also do a blood test that is an inflammatory
marker as itis great for determining how much inflammation the arthritis is causing
(inflammation is what causes pain) and if it is responding to the metacam. | find this
test to.be'invaluable as a bird's preservation reflex will often hide how they really feel.
In myrepinion there is definitely room to make changes in the dose Charlie is
receiving and | would be happy to discuss this with if he wants some help
managing Charlie's arthritis. From a professional aspect would need to get in
touch with us for advice, | can't just interfere with how he is treating a patient under
his care. As far as Charlie goes the treatment plan is fine and she is being checked on
regularly to ensure that the metacam is not affecting her organs, but there is
definitely some scope to experiment with lower doses of metacam and see how she
responds. | would recommend this in fact as at 21 years old (if that is actually her



age) she is only really middle aged, there are reports of kaka reaching 40 years or so
in captivity so that is a long time to be on metacam if she does live that long. I'd only
recommend changes be made in Spring though, let her overwinter on her current
dose.

From my perspective | see no reason not to use Charlie as part of the breeding
programme especially as we still have room to adjust her metacam dose and
frequency. | have seen first hand what a dedicated parent Charlie is and | think'she
would be invaluable to the programme for all the reasons you have already
advocated. There are always ways to ensure she gets her medication if'she is needed
to raise chicks, the first step being to figure out what is the lowest‘dose of metacam
we can give her that still manages her discomfort and then go from'there. Sometimes
metacam can be given every second day for example, and as falready mentioned,
climate plays a role and as kaka breed in spring/summerfitisiextremely likely that
we'd find that Charlie can cope with a much lower dose offmetacam over the
breeding season, in particular here in Dunedin where.we often have lovely warm
weather over this time.

Charlie's welfare is of utmost importance of course but there are ways to manage her
so that she can still provide a valuable contribution to her species and at the same
time ensuring she is in a positivelwelfare state and we don't exacerbate her pain. We
could argue that allowing her to'display normal breeding behaviour and participate in
producing chicks is actually important for her mental health, this is something that
captive facilities (Zoo's)encourage a lot i.e. allowing animals in their care to display
normal behaviours'- breeding is a normal behaviour.

Finally; wexvon't know unless we try to find a solution that works for Charlie and the
breeding programme, and of course if we were to find that she is not coping without
higher and regular doses or metacam than the plan of how she is contributing to
breeding can be changed in order to ensure she is the top priority.

Nga mihi



On Wed, May 1, 2024 at 2:30 PM iU

wrote:

WHs9(2)

I’m currently talking to the Te Anau team about Charlie’s participation in next
season’s breeding programme.

They have recently informed me: “ Charlie is nowentwice daily medication to
manage her pain and discomfort/arthritis from‘her old injury. Because of this, she
unfortunately will not be able to raise chickségain as she would regurgitate the
medication to the chicks when feeding.’ "l have been asking for a veterinary
assessment of Charlie for some time and just today received her history from

There is a note in the 2023 visitthat records would be sent to DWH, | have no idea if
that happened. | requested-en several occasions that Te Anau provide a report to me
and Sl and we nevef received anything. It’s taken me 3 days to get this history
sent ihrough.

Would you be willing to look over Charlie’s history from NS Vets to see if there is
anythirnigconcerning. (lab results)?

Te Anau objects to Charlie being moved to DBG and as above feel she can’t raise
chicks because she is getting twice daily medications for her arthritis. | am
advocating for her to be used to lay priority eggs via Al...and if she can’t raise chicks
due to the meds she can still be useful in incubating high priority eggs and eggs from



females that have a history to breaking their eggs etc. | guess at some point we do
have to discuss if whether any female kaka can raise chicks on meloxicam?

Atthe moment, | am simply pulling together information to provide to my manager
and his manager, regarding Charlie’s value and suitability to remain part of the
breeding programme.

If you can assist in this, we’d appreciate it.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Caution - This message and accompanyirig data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you ar€ net the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in error, please notify us#mmediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for:the inconvenience. Thank you.

Caution - This messagesand accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments.\\We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

From: S9(2)(9)(i)



Sent on: Friday, May 10, 2024 4:19:41 AM

To:
s9(2)(9)(in
s9(2)(a) s9(2)(9)(ii)
CC:
Subject: Sl kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Attachments: Approved S| Kaka Captive Breeding Flocking Plan 24_25.docx (50.63 KB)

Greetings,

Thank you for your feedback of the draft 24/25 South Island Kakaflocking plan. There is general positive
support for the objectives of the plan and the proposed actions to'achieve those goals. Based on the
success of last season, there is general support for the approach we used last year and propose to use
again this year.

There are three themes of concern raised through'feedback by one or more facilities:
1. The moving of long-term resident birds:
2. Suitability of the proposed assigned aviaries for elderly and/or disabled birds.
3. The appropriateness of utilising a female on long-term medication for arthritis for chick rearing.

Thank you to all of those that have raised these specific concerns around the proposed movements of
specific birds and proposed alternative options. We agree that it is important to be cognisant of the
birds’ wellbeing as we workitoward the goals of the programme. Where appropriate we have received
specific veterinary advieeon the concerns raised.

After consideringithe'feedback, we understand that the proposed movement of birds might, in some
cases, introduce a small level of increased stress to the birds during the move, but we do not believe
the proposedimovements put them under significantly increased risk of stress or injury. We are
confident'in you as holders to monitor and manage these changes and the ongoing welfare of the birds
and.that the appropriate supportis in place for birds that might need additional considerations (e.g.
increased veterinary monitoring). We are confident that the plan protects the well-being of the birds
while maximising the likelihood of achieving another year of positive outcomes.

Re the suitability of aviaries. We note the feedback and agree that this needs addressing. We propose
that this occurs as part of the 24/25 work programme to have an appropriate set of observations.

We’'ve incorporated feedback on the movement of some specific birds and these are also highlighted in
plan:



lout of scope

Elout of scope

The draft plan is approved as amended. Breeding activity can start as early as July in Dunedin so
breeding birds will need to be transferred by mid -June. We look forward to working with you through
implementation of the plan and any issues that arise.

Thanks very much for your ongoing engagement and support of this work.

9(2

7]
~

From: SEIGICID)

Sent on: Saturday, May 11, 2024 5:51:38 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Returning Rata

Thafiks S@ICN@] we'll get onto it.

From: A0
Sent: Saturday, May 11, 2024 4:05 PM
o:

Subject: RE: Returning Rata



HiSEIBIE))

Charlie may be alone briefly, but plans should also start to transfer her as the Flocking plan is now
approved.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: AW}
Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 9:49 AM

LCHO(2)(9) (i)

Subject: Returning Rata

He has been getting time with Charlie Girl, but
we have recently stopped this as he can be a bit rough. He is becoming increasingly hormonal and is
interested inther:

ut of scope




we can’tignore Rata’s welfare.

out of scope

_

Nga mihi
s9(2)(9)

From: SEIPIE)(D)]

Sent on: Saturday, May 11, 2024 5:51:09 AM

To:

cc:  SEAIEID)

Subject: RE: Sl kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

ThanKwyou for this info, which is reassuring. | will get back to and provide more info on my
impression that Charlie was miserable after the full dose of Metacam, but, in case anyone else should
be'interested | will also share it here. In February we started to notice that Charlie became fluffed and
hunched after her Metacam. She would return to her sleeping quarters for longer periods than was usual
in the morning. As time wore on she started refusing the foods we gave it in (Wombaroo Lori mix or small
treat balls). When we split the dose, her demeanour improved, and she was no longer fussy. |
acknowledge this is based on observation alone, and there could have been something else going on,
but we have played it safe and maintained twice daily half doses.



From: SEIAIEI0)

Sent: Saturday, May 11, 2024 4:04 PM

[s9@)(@)(i) [s9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Sl kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Hi SEIAI0))

There will be no adjustment to Charlie’'s meds initially. JI#] response(/n italics)to reviewing Charlie's
records from SEIAN was:

I note that Charlie receives her prescribed dose of 0.3mls (1mg/kg) split into two doses as | see

noted that the once daily dose made her miserable. ['m-interested to hear more about this and
what "miserable"” actually means as meloxicam is a sweettasting medication, it is honey flavoured, and
in my experience birds tolerate it extremely well, especially.the species that enjoy nectar/sweet tasting
food i.e. kaka, Tui etc. The dose of 0.3mls is at the medium end of the dose range at around 1mg/kg
based on her weight being around 480g. The high end of the dose range is prescribed for birds in a lot of
pain e.g. fractures, other trauma, and ranges up to 2mg/kg (0.64mls for bird Charlie's size). We routinely
use a dose of 1.5mg/kg for most species of birds (excluding penguins) that we admit to hospital as we
also include other pain killers to help thém after they sustain a trauma. For arthritic cases | endeavour
to decrease the dose rate to the lowest'dose possible as long term use can potentially have a negative
impact on kidneys and gastrointestinabtract. | taylor this based on the birds response, what the
owner/keepers observe, taking.seasons into accounti.e. colder weather aggravates arthritis so | may
increase the dose if the bird.seems more painful in winter. | also do a blood test that is an inflammatory
marker as it is great for determining how much inflammation the arthritis is causing (inflammation is
what causes pain) and.ifit'is responding to the metacam. | find this test to be invaluable as a bird's
preservation reflex will'often hide how they really feel. In my opinion there is definitely room to make
changes in the dose-Charlie is receiving and | would be happy to discuss this With if he wants some
help managing Charlie's arthritis. As far as Charlie goes the treatment plan is fine and she is being
checkedon’regularly to ensure that the metacam is not affecting her organs, but there is definitely some
scope'to'experiment with lower doses of metacam and see how she responds. | would recommend this
in.factas at 21 years old (if that is actually her age) she is only really middle aged, there are reports of
kaka.reaching 40 years or so in captivity so that is a long time to be on metacam if she does live that long.
I'd'only recommend changes be made in Spring though, let her overwinter on her current dose.

From my perspective | see no reason not to use Charlie as part of the breeding programme especially as
we still have room to adjust her metacam dose and frequency. | have seen first hand what a dedicated
parent Charlie is and | think she would be invaluable to the programme for all the reasons you have
already advocated.



| concur that we should not make any changes over winter. We should get the inflammatory marker
blood test that EJ§ refers to as a reference on this current dose.

and | agree:

Charlie's welfare is of utmost importance of course but there are ways to manage her so that she can still
provide a valuable contribution to her species and at the same time ensuring she is in a positive welfare
state and we don't exacerbate her pain.

Hope this helps to relieve your anxiety about Charlie’'s move.

s9(2)(9)
From: SJAIOI0)]

Sent: Saturday, May 11, 2024 7:20 AM
To: SAIC)D)

59(2)(a)
[s9(@)(@)(i) s9(2)(a)

[s9@)(@)
2859(2)(9)(i)

Subject: Re: Sl kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Sorry, hit send by mistake. Please share the information on how she will receive her pain medication if
she is fostering chicks. Having seen'the improvement in her since going onto this medication, we are
naturally anxious to understand-how her pain will be managed.

Get Outlook for Android

From: SAIOIW)!

Sent: Saturday,\May 11, 2024 7:15:43 AM
To: SEIGIC))

[s2(2)(9) ]
Bs9(2)(@) S9(2)(9)(ii)

9@

Subject: Re: Sl kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.



3[1S9(2)

Please share the information on how how Charlie will receive her pain medication that has so improved
her quality of life if she is

Get Qutlook for Android

From: SEIPA){D)

Sent on: Sunday, May 12, 2024 10:38:04 PM

Is9(2)(g)(ii)
s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Sl kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Thanks SIPAIC)]

I’m Sure*Charlie’s medication can be managed effectively for her pain, however would you please
provide clarity on how it would be managed while she is feeding chicks, and how her trauma/stress
levels would be observed and assessed?

Also please advise how Jimmy will be kept safe from further stress, falls and injury?

| reiterate information previously provided regarding Charlie and Jimmy below to help inform the plan.



Charlie:

Charlie is an older bird with a traumatic background, who needs a quieter environment. This has been
proven in that past when shifting aviaries here at the Bird Sanctuary which put her off breeding that year.
She is now on twice daily medication, and this will need to be ongoing to manage pain and discomfort
around her old injury sites. from Vets has provided us excellent support and prescribed
the medication, and we have made extensive observations of Charlie’s response to it throughout the
year.

Charlie has been at the Bird Sanctuary for at least 17 years, after being rescued from being heldindoors
in a tiny parrot cage. Needless to say, that experience caused severe trauma for her and this’manifested
in repetitive, stereotype behaviours. Once established, these behaviours are very hard to shift, and
consequently we still see them from her at times, although in a different context as it is generally in
response to excitement or initiating interaction and this not considered a sign of re-traumatisation or
stress. If such behaviour, or an increase in it were to be noticed in other circumstances it could be
indicative of a welfare concern or stressor for her.

has worked with Charlie since Charlie’s arrival at the bird sanctuary as a mentally and
physically broken bird, and has managed to rehabilitate Charlie to a state that she is content in an aviary
setting and has been a very successful breeding bird and mother. SIVIC)M has not acted alone in this
but acquired knowledge and advice from many experts and professionals and made extensive
observations to achieve it. We rely on advice and expertise ofitechnical advisers and specialist and
experienced professionals to inform us. Her observations.and interpretations can be trusted. There
would be few keepers who could equal her experience or'success with any bird that had suffered such a
degree of trauma.

The limiting factor for Charlie raising chicks in the future is that she would need to regurgitate to feed
them, therefore feeding her medication tosthe chicks, which would be inappropriate for them, and mean
Charlie wouldn’t be getting the full dose herself.

Jimmy:

Jimmy has been very content at Te Anau, and was in perfect health and welfare when transferred to
Dunedin for the 2022/23 seédson as evidenced by the report made by EEJf§] from the Dunedin Wildlife
Hospital that cleared him to participate in Al going forward.

Jimmy has periodically displayed repetitive behaviours while at Te Anau, and this behaviour was
established inshim on arrival in 2016. We don’t have information on what might have initialised the
behaviour prior to coming here, but as we have only seen it in response to excitement (generally
enrichment) very limited in duration and frequency, we can be confident that it has not been a negative
reaction to a stressor. Again, we have relied on extensive observations, knowledge and advice from
many experts and professionals in making these assessments.

Jimmy has displayed a significant increase in this behaviour after transfer to Dunedin. He proved to have
no sperm following Al which would suggest this was in fact a stress response.

Jimmy prefers a quiet environment and is easily startled. Due to his historic wing injury, he cannot fly at
all, nor balance well if startled and running (along a perch), which makes him prone to falls. The Dunedin
aviaries are, by all accounts, a very stimulating environment and Jimmy is housed in a very tall aviary.



With the main objectives of the Al/breeding program being welfare and productivity, please advise how
Jimmy will be kept safe?

Regards,

From: 3G

Sent: Saturday, May 11, 2024 5:51 PM
To: SAIC) D)

[s9@)(@)

Subject: RE: SI kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Thank you for this info, which is reassuring. | will get back to and provide more info on my
impression that Charlie was miserable after the full dose of Metacam, but, in case anyone else should
be interested | will also share it here. In February.we started to notice that Charlie became fluffed and
hunched after her Metacam. She would return to her sleeping quarters for longer periods than was usual
in the morning. As time wore on she startédsefusing the foods we gave it in (Wombaroo Lori mix or small
treat balls). When we split the dose, her.demeanour improved, and she was no longer fussy. |
acknowledge this is based on observation alone, and there could have been something else going on,
but we have played it safe and maintained twice daily half doses.

From: SJAIOI0]

Sent: Saturday, May¥1, 2024 4:04 PM
To: SAIC)D)

[s9@)(@)
[s9@) (@) [s9@)(a)

s9(2)(a)
[¥35159(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: RE: SI kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

2[1S9(2)(g)



There will be no adjustment to Charlie’s meds initially. @] response(/n italics) to reviewing Charlie's
records from SEIAN was:

I note that Charlie receives her prescribed dose of 0.3mls (1mg/kg) split into two doses as | see

noted that the once daily dose made her miserable. I'm interested to hear more about this and
what "miserable" actually means as meloxicam is a sweet tasting medication, it is honey flavoured, and
in my experience birds tolerate it extremely well, especially the species that enjoy nectar/sweet tasting
food i.e. kaka, Turi etc. The dose of 0.3mls is at the medium end of the dose range at around 1mg/kg
based on her weight being around 480g. The high end of the dose range is prescribed for birds in a [ot Of
pain e.g. fractures, other trauma, and ranges up to 2mg/kg (0.64mls for bird Charlie's size). We routinely
use a dose of 1.5mg/kg for most species of birds (excluding penguins) that we admit to hospital'as we
also include other pain killers to help them after they sustain a trauma. For arthritic cases-l.endeavour
to decrease the dose rate to the lowest dose possible as long term use can potentially have a negative
impact on kidneys and gastrointestinal tract. | taylor this based on the birds response, what the
owner/keepers observe, taking seasons into accounti.e. colder weather aggravatés arthritis so | may
increase the dose if the bird seems more painful in winter. | also do a blood.test that is an inflammatory
marker as it is great for determining how much inflammation the arthritis.is€ausing (inflammation is
what causes pain) and if it is responding to the metacam. I find this teStto-be invaluable as a bird’s
preservation reflex will often hide how they really feel. In my opinion there is definitely room to make
changes in the dose Charlie is receiving and | would be happy to discuss this With if he wants some
help managing Charlie's arthritis. As far as Charlie goes the treatment plan is fine and she is being
checked on regularly to ensure that the metacam is not affecting her organs, but there is definitely some
scope to experiment with lower doses of metacam and see how she responds. | would recommend this
in fact as at 21 years old (if that is actually her age)She.is only really middle aged, there are reports of
kaka reaching 40 years or so in captivity so thatis-a long time to be on metacam if she does live that long.
I'd only recommend changes be made in Spring.though, let her overwinter on her current dose.

From my perspective | see no reasonnot'to use Charlie as part of the breeding programme especially as
we still have room to adjust her.metacam dose and frequency. | have seen first hand what a dedicated
parent Charlie is and | think she'would be invaluable to the programme for all the reasons you have
already advocated.

| concur that we should not make any changes over winter. We should get the inflammatory marker
blood test that §EJ§ refers to as a reference on this current dose.

and.l.agree:

Charlie's welfare is of utmost importance of course but there are ways to manage her so that she can still
provide a valuable contribution to her species and at the same time ensuring she is in a positive welfare
state and we don't exacerbate her pain.

Hope this helps to relieve your anxiety about Charlie’s move.

s9(2)(9)



From: S4B}

Sent: Saturday, May 11, 2024 7:20 AM
A 9(2)(9)(ii)

s9(2)(a)
[s9(2)(a)i) [s9(2)(a)

2@

Subject: Re: Sl kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Sorry, hit send by mistake. Please share the information on how she will receive her pain'medication if
she is fostering chicks. Having seen the improvement in her since going onto this medication, we are
naturally anxious to understand how her pain will be managed.

Get Outlook for Android

FTILAS9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Saturday, May 11, 2024 7:15:43 AM
To: SAIC)D)

[s9(2)(9) }
[s9(2)(2) S9(2)(9)(ii)

o)(@)

[F]s9(2)(9)(ih)

Subject: Re: Sl kaka Flocking'plan'24-25 Approved.

HigE

Please.share the information on how how Charlie will receive her pain medication that has so improved
her guality of life if she is

Get Outlook for Android

From: S4B}

Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 4:19:41 PM

To: SEIAIEY
S9(2)(9)(il)



59(2)(@)
(@)

s9(2)(a)

Subject: SI kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Greetings,

Thank you for your feedback of the draft 24/25 South Island Kaka flocking plan. There'is
general positive support for the objectives of the plan and the proposed actions,to achieve
those goals. Based on the success of last season, there is general supportforthe approach we
used last year and propose to use again this year.

There are three themes of concern raised through feedback by one6r.mefe facilities:
1. The moving of long-term resident birds.

2. Suitability of the proposed assigned aviaries for elderly and/or disabled birds.

3. The appropriateness of utilising a female on long-term"medication for arthritis for chick
rearing.

Thank you to all of those that have raised these specific concerns around the proposed
movements of specific birds and proposed alternative options. We agree that itis important to
be cognisant of the birds’ wellbeing as we work'toward the goals of the programme. Where
appropriate we have received specific veterinary advice on the concerns raised.

After considering the feedback, we understand that the proposed movement of birds might, in
some cases, introduce a small level'of increased stress to the birds during the move, but we do
not believe the proposed moyements put them under significantly increased risk of stress or
injury. We are confident in you as holders to monitor and manage these changes and the
ongoing welfare of the birds and that the appropriate supportis in place for birds that might
need additional considerations (e.g. increased veterinary monitoring). We are confident that
the plan protects the-well-being of the birds while maximising the likelihood of achieving
another year of\ypositive outcomes.

Re the suitability of aviaries. We note the feedback and agree that this needs addressing. We
proposeithat this occurs as part of the 24/25 work programme to have an appropriate set of
observations.

We’ve incorporated feedback on the movement of some specific birds and these are also
highlighted in plan:

Flout of scope

1 —




The draft plan is approved as amended. Breeding activity can start as early as July in Dunedin
so breeding birds will need to be transferred by mid -June. We look forward to working with you
through implementation of the plan and any issues that arise.

Thanks very much for your ongoing engagement and support of this work.

s9(2)
|

From: SEIRIG)D)

Sent on: Sunday, May 12, 2024 10:38:04 PM

Subject: RE:SI kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Thanks SJEAIEND)

I’m sure Charlie’s medication can be managed effectively for her pain, however would you please
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
proven in that past when shifting aviaries here at the Bird Sanctuary which put her off breeding thatyear.
She is now on twice daily medication, and this will need to be ongoing to manage pain and discomfort
around her old injury sites. has provided us excellent support and prescribed
the medication, and we have made extensive observations of Charlie’s response to it throughout the
year.

Charlie has been at the Bird Sanctuary for at least 17 years, after being rescued ffom being held indoors
in a tiny parrot cage. Needless to say, that experience caused severe trauma forher and this manifested
in repetitive, stereotype behaviours. Once established, these behaviours are very hard to shift, and
consequently we still see them from her at times, although in a different'eontext as it is generally in
response to excitement or initiating interaction and this not considered\a sign of re-traumatisation or
stress. If such behaviour, or an increase in it were to be noticed in other'circumstances it could be
indicative of a welfare concern or stressor for her.

has worked with Charlie since Charlie’s arrival@at the bird sanctuary as a mentally and
physically broken bird, and has managed to rehabilitate Chaflie to a state that she is content in an aviary
setting and has been a very successful breeding bird ahd mother. SIVIC)MM has not acted alone in this
but acquired knowledge and advice from many,experts and professionals and made extensive
observations to achieve it. We rely on advice and expertise of technical advisers and specialist and
experienced professionals to inform us. Her,observations and interpretations can be trusted. There
would be few keepers who could equal her experience or success with any bird that had suffered such a
degree of trauma.

The limiting factor for Charlie raising chicks in the future is that she would need to regurgitate to feed
them, therefore feeding herdmedication to the chicks, which would be inappropriate for them, and mean
Charlie wouldn’t be gettingthe/full dose herself.

Jimmy:

Jimmy has’been/ery content at Te Anau, and was in perfect health and welfare when transferred to
Dunedirrforthe 2022/23 season as evidenced by the report made by from the Dunedin Wildlife
Hospital.that cleared him to participate in Al going forward.

Jimmy has periodically displayed repetitive behaviours while at Te Anau, and this behaviour was
established in him on arrival in 2016. We don’t have information on what might have initialised the
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

rrom: |

Sent on: Monday, May 13, 2024 1:20:46 AM

o

Subject: RE: Te Anau reacting to flocking plan....

Thanks,-

| suspect that- is the volunteer vet that- told us about in 2023, when we were
requesting that Charlie get a medical exam at DWH. I’'ll probably just send her your way.

| agree, will leave- reply for now. is just back from 2 weeks leave, so hopefully he’ll address
things over the course of this week.

Cheers;

From

Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 1:10 PM

To:

Subject: RE: Te Anau reacting to flocking plan....



Hi [

9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(g)(ii)

But prefer option 2.

Re the Te Anau correspondence I’d leave it for a week before saying anything.

rror:

Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 12:53 PM

Subject: Te Anau reacting to flocking plan....
As you can see Te Anau is actively seeking clarification to the deecision to approve the flocking plan.

| did answer_ questions on Saturday because we.had addressed all those matters prior to the
decision being made.

- concerns are for matters that will take place'once the birds are in the care of DBG and overseen by
DWH. | don't think we have to continually justify.and explain the bird's care at an approved facility.

I'm also quite concerned about this text message | received today.

It's to my personal #. But they aré ¢ontacting me in my DOC role.. IPA()UNRERIVAIE)RRIVA1(+)[())

We need to get on to- and tell him a decision has been made. He needs to get his staff moving
forward to make the transfers happen.

Cheers,

Get Outlook for Android




From: [

Sent on: Monday, May 20, 2024 9:57:21 PM
Subject: FW: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka

Attachments: PunangaManuDOCTeam.pdf (25.28 KB), re flocking plan 2024,25..docx (19.61"°KB),
RE Kaka Charlie's Vet report Transfer of Kaka.msg (47.5 KB)

il

| got my first email from Te Anau re: the transfer of birds.
is addressing the transfers and reported that Rata has been moyed:

Attached to his email was a report from the vet_, and a respense from. and- to

the flocking plan. They are still advocating to hold Charlie at Te Anau.

You can see from my response to- that | did not address'the pleas for keeping Charlie. We are
working towards coordinating the transfer with the assistancé of the takahe team and DWH.

Cheers,

From:
Sent: Monday, May 20, 2024 4:09 PM
To

Subject: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/“Transfer of Kaka

Hi [

Our Bird park team,requested a report from a long term Volunteer_, who has
worked with Charlie and helped advising them on Veterinary care and have requested to pass iton

We acknowledge that this report is outlining the same concerns previously raised, however there is
some valuable information in the report about the training that Charlie has been doing. This report may
help'in the transfer process if the Dunedin Botanic Aviary wishes like to continue with the daily training
Charlie is undertaking at present.- sent a video recently of Charlie that shows her undergoing
the training. We hope this may help.

out of scope

Makes sense to facilitate the transfer of Charlie with the Takahe trip, if that suits your team. SEI€I();
from the Takahe team is also heading to Dunedin in a week or so's time and could be available to help

Hope all's good
Thanks



rom: |

Sent on: Monday, May 20, 2024 11:39:17 PM
To: I
Subject: Fw: Returning Rata

Attachments: Rata blood test March 2024.docx (38.9 KB)

Here you go

Just to letyou know that I'll be in the field for the fiext 2 days, back in office on Thursday

Cheers

rrom:

Sent: 21 May'2024 11:36

Subject: Fwd: Returning Rata

Link to Rata video is in bottom of this email. Apologies, video is of Rata not of Charlie.
The training is the same, however. | can pass along a video of Charlie if it is of any
help.



out of scope




From
Sent: Tuesday, 21 May 2024 11:16 am
To
Subject: Rata transfer

Hil I

out of scope

It’s sounding Te Anau and DWH

might coordinate to move Charlie and return some takahe..

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. lfyou are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distributionior copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in error, please.notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

From: EGICIQ)

Sent on: Tuesday, May 21, 2024 4:53:35 AM

To: s9(2)(g)(ii)



Subject: RE: Returning Rata

Kia ora BICIW)

No worries at all, and apologies for confusion as l initially thought the vid was of Charlie.

SEIAIGE)M is back on shift tomorrow, and | will ask her to upload a video in the morning so that | can
share it with you. I’'ll share the link myself via email, if any troubles uploading the file I’'ll try via Teams

Chat or WhatsApp



Much appreciated. Will share both withSI¢AR at DBG.

s9(2)(9)

From: SJAIOI0)]

Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 3:27 PM

prHs9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Charlie video

Hiya,

The video on is on Teams, but a good description is in the email below written by SEIEIE))

Thanks,

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024.10:45:22 am

To: SIAIC)W)]

Subject: video

Here’s Charlie flying for a treat. The perch set up means she always has the option to go (walk) the long
way round tofetch her reward. If she walks, | interpret this as her being less comfortable as on these
days she is’alsounlikely to do an anticlockwise circle on her perch. With the use of a target stick she will
turn a circle to the left and to the right, climb onto a set of scales or other object, fly a short distance
between perches (a behaviour that began with just hopping between to perches, with the distance being
increased over time) and move briskly around the aviary to meet the target stick at various spots. She
especially enjoys the latter ‘game’.



From:

Sent on: Tuesday, May 21, 2024 10:40:42 PM

[{e)
N

[7]
—_
~—|
—

1Y
~—|

To:

CC:

Subject: RE: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!

s

Thank you,

Yes, SEIPAN and | agreed yesterday that getting Charlie should wait until SEIZ3BM return from holiday. I’Ul
work with Te Anau to have Charlie transferred on June 15",

out of scope

w
©
g |
N

)(a), 9(2)(ba)(

Thank you,
9(2)(9)

1)

From: S4EIEY)
Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 10:23 AM

Subject: Re: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!

MorenaEIPAI6))






On Wed, May 15, 2024 at 1:09 PM EIAIEY
- pm=

Kia ora SEIAI()]

We are more than happy to help with these birds. Thanks for the heads up.

| will let §EJ§| respond more in detail when she is back next week.

Nga mihi

s9(2)(a)

On Wed, May 15, 2024 at 12:07 PMSEIGI)ID] wrote:

Hi Team,

| got an out of office from so | amforwarding this to you as a heads up.

| don’t think we will be sénding any kaka your way before returns next week,..again just to flag it with
you.

Cheers,

s9(2)(g)

From: SJAICI0)]

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 11:26 AM
Hs9(2)(9)(ih)
Subject: Flocking plan has been approved!

(2



| wanted to inform you that the 24/25 flocking plan has been approved, and it involves moving Charlie to
DBG.SWI)(DA has indicated that holders should start moving forward with the transfers.

| will be the liaison between DBG and Te Anau. ElP3ICHOREIRIC)()
Charlie hasn’t been disease screened, and she
should be prior to a transfer to another facility. S¥30 suggested that Charlie be sent to DWH for a health
check, similar to what all the birds had last year, and then make her way to DBG. We know that she:was
seen by recently, and you have reviewed those records, so perhaps she just comes in to get
some bloods done for those inflammatory markers.

Are you able to facilitate this? I’m aware thatS{¥4l is away from 1 June to 17 June, lEmight be best to get
Charlie to you around the 15th of June so she is ready to go to DBG as soon as Si¥aR-returns, keeping in
mind that she will need to be monitored for stress in her new environment.

Happy to hear your feedback.

and when Te Anau brings Charlie, they can take Stumpy

and Gimpy back with them.

Thanks so much for all your help, | know that your feedback on Jimmy and Charlie was helpful for ¥4
anol

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

Caution - This.message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to Jegal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in-error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.



From: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Friday, May 24, 2024 1:54:10 AM

To:

Subject: Re: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka
ReactionsSummary: EE[AIEI0) , like, 5/24/2024 2:07:00 AM

Thanks REAC)

@ DWH concurs.. I'll send our an email to you both & DBG tossay.that's the plan.
Then we'll all be on the same email thread.

Cheers,

s9(2)(g)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android

Fromg

Sent: i'riday, May 24, 2024 1:41:46 PM

To: SEAICID)

Subject: Re: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka

HiEEIBIE)]

14™ June Sounds best, think that will give us enough time to tie up loose ends here. Sure we can find a
willing driver, would be a good excuse to have a weekend in Dunedin.

Cheers



From: SEIBIE)(D)
Sent: 21 May 2024 11:45

Lr-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka

+igIEa]
There is another consideration. Has Charlie been disease screened? Is she ready for transfer or.we
waiting on results of screening?
If she is ready to move? B&IGI@would like her moved ASAP -this week.

is going on leave (1Juneto 17 June). If Charlie doesn’t arrive this week, it would be best to wait
until return. My suggestion would be to arrange for her to go to DWH around the 14" of
June. After a health check at DWH then Charlie could go to DBG where can keep.a close eye on
her.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: SE@I)I()

Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2024 11:31 AM
To: EAIC)ID)
Subject: Re: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka

ZHs9(2)(9)(ii)

Yep I'll chase up on the Video

Spoken to S4GIC) D) they haven't got an exact date for those Takahe yet,

but they'll let us know once they confirm a date, sure we can find someone here if that doesn't
work out.

Cheers

From: SEIGIC)D)

Sent on: Friday, May 24, 2024 4:51:48 AM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)






From
Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 10:59 AM

59(2)(9)(“)
QIS 9(2)(a), 9(2)(ba)(i)

Kia oraSIeA))}

Thanks for sharing this, | think assessment by DWH of all three birds would be useful, definitely for
Charlie, but having a baseline for the two going to Te Anau could be useful too. We can ask towerk
directly with SEIPAI()IN on logistics, that should avoid any direct comms and issues with tliis.

Nga mihi,
S9(

From: SPAl(¢)I{)]

Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 10:51 AM
To: SEAlC))
Subject: SRIVAIC)REIPAI{ L)1)}

Hi there,

I’m working with the holders to get Charlie to DWH for.an medical exam. We definitely want to get her
inflammatory markers so we can determine if her'dose of medicam is correct.

out of scope

s.9(2)(a), 9(2)(ba)(i)

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)

From: SE#E)

Sent on: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 9:00:32 PM



To:

CC:

Subject: Re: Transfer of Charlie

Morena

Great to see progress on this. The 14th is all good our end, pleasejustkeep us posted
on timing so we roughly know when to expect her.

Nga mihi

S9(2

wrote:

On Mon, May 27, 2024.4t.10:47 AM @)

Hi all

Thanks for setting this up SEEENW) I'll look at organising a driver for 14  if that the DWH team

Cheers

s9(2)

s9(2)(9)



From3)

Sent: 27 May 2024 10:39
To: SE[AIC) D)

[Hs9(2)(a)
Subject: Transfer of Charlie

Hi Team,

We have had a few emails back and forth and“we should start a dedicated email for the
plans to transfer Charlie.

We have decided it is best to wait until. June 14/15" to bring Charlie to DWH for a health
check and to get baseline blood valuesfor her inflammatory markers.

returns to work on June'1 7t and will be able to take Charlie to the Gardens.

Please use this‘email thread to make any arrangements and or bring up any concerns.

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



From: SEIGIC)IQD)]
Sent on: Sunday, May 5, 2024 10:30:14 PM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: @) comments on Charlie (kaka) #2

Thanks

FTIAS9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Monday, May 6, 2024 10:10 AM
To: SIAIC)D)
Subject: comments on Charlie (kaka) #2

fYi

From: SEIAAIEY

Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 2:08 PM

LLHs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie (kaka)

Not a problem, happy to help when | can.

I'dhargue that Charlie is one of the most sweet, chilled and adaptable kaka | have ever encountered. She
was so calm when she was in hospital with her chicks a few years back after they were exposed to
toxoplasmosis. She would just sit with the chicks while we supplementary fed them and then she'd give
them a small feed after and was so tolerant of us and showed no aggression or signs of distress. Also,
being a parrot, in particular a species that is intelligent and inquisitive, they thrive on enrichment and
stimulation so the argument that DBG is too stimulating is not valid in my opinion, it is my opinion that
Charlie would settle in quickly. is also very good at easing newbies into the new environment and



the aviaries, as you know, provide lots of opportunities for the birds to retreat and seek some refuge if
they need to if they're feeling overwhelmed.

out of scope

So while we obviously can't guarantee that nothing will happen to Charlie, her recent health check
clearly shows she is in good health so | have no reservations about moving her to Dunedin and am happy
to endorse this course of action.

Nga mihi

S9(2

On Fri, May 3, 2024 at11:35 AMEIEI)I) wrote:

s9(2

Thank yousfor reviewing her records. | know you are very busy and your time is valuable so it is very much
appreciated.

| have outlined in the draft flocking plan that monitoring the dosage of medicam with Jimmy (and Charlie)
is a factor in moving them. As you say it’s important to make sure it’s not affecting their organs etc.

| too feel that Charlie is a great parent and has been frustrated the last few seasons not being able to
engage in breeding and raising chicks. (Observations provided by S®I)N | think we can find ways
to keep her engaged. | would advocate to do that by transferring her to DBG for a season.



is arguing that Charlie has been housed at Te Anau for 17 yrs and will not cope with a change of
housing, or the over stimulating environment at DBG.

There is some validity to that argument, but we don’t know unless we try.

| feel that if we move her over the winter and she can be housed with or near Bling that will help her settle
in.

Of course, | can’t help thinking of this: https://www.stuff.co.nz/the-press/news/106049025/longlived-
kea-die-after-visit-from-doc-longterm-carers-blame-the-department-for-their-death

Te Anau have raised their concerns to the draft flocking plan for next year, and moving Charliexand her
meds are their primary issues. We deferred discussing Charlie this week, because they had not
provided the vet report. We will be going back to discuss this, and now | have your.opinions, and
recommendations. | can suggest the additional testing for inflammatory markers.==Ultimately, | believe
any decisions regarding Charlie and Jimmy will be up to SIBICH@OR. He willtake on board all the
information | pull together and Te Anau’s concerns. As well as input fromS¥4N based on her
experience with Jimmy and the Te Anau staff.

Thank you so much,

Have a great weekend!

s9(2)(9)

From3)

Sent: i'riday,/May 3, 2024 10:21 AM
CHs9(2)(9)(i)

Subject: Re: Charlie (kaka)

Morena 3ABIC)

I've had a chance to look through all of Charlie's records. We did provide input last year as sent
through the x-rays for us to review. | agree with assessment of the recent x-ray that there have
been no changes so this is good news. The bones have healed terribly after her accident on the Milford
road and as she gets older it is very likely that this could be the source of some discomfort. Looking at all



the lab results | see nothing concerning and they all indicate that Charlie is in good health and is not
having a negative reaction to the long term meloxicam.

I note that Charlie receives her prescribed dose of 0.3mls (1mg/kg) splitinto two doses as | see

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
based on her weight being around 480g. The high end of the dose range is prescribed for birds in.a.lot of
pain e.g. fractures, other trauma, and ranges up to 2mg/kg (0.64mls for bird Charlie's size). We routinely
use a dose of 1.5mg/kg for most species of birds (excluding penguins) that we admit to hospital'as we
also include other pain killers to help them after they sustain a trauma. For arthritic casésl.endeavour
to decrease the dose rate to the lowest dose possible as long term use can potentially\have a negative
impact on kidneys and gastrointestinal tract. | taylor this based on the birds response, what the
owner/keepers observe, taking seasons into account i.e. colder weather aggravates arthritis so | may
increase the dose if the bird seems more painfulin winter. | also do a blood'test that is an inflammatory
marker as it is great for determining how much inflammation the arthritis,isicausing (inflammation is
what causes pain) and if it is responding to the metacam. | find this test to'be invaluable as a bird's
preservation reflex will often hide how they really feel. In my opinion there is definitely room to make
changes in the dose Charlie is receiving and | would be happy to discuss this With if he wants some
help managing Charlie's arthritis. From a professional aspect would need to get in touch with us for
advice, | can't just interfere with how he is treating a patient under his care. As far as Charlie goes the
treatment plan is fine and she is being checked on regularly to ensure that the metacam is not affecting
her organs, but there is definitely some scope to experiment with lower doses of metacam and see how
she responds. | would recommend this in fact as'at 21 years old (if that is actually her age) she is only
really middle aged, there are reports of kaka reaching 40 years or so in captivity so that is a long time to
be on metacam if she does live that long. 1\d’only recommend changes be made in Spring though, let her
overwinter on her current dose.

From my perspective | see no reason not to use Charlie as part of the breeding programme especially as
we still have room to adjusthermetacam dose and frequency. | have seen first hand what a dedicated
parent Charlie is and | think.she would be invaluable to the programme for all the reasons you have
already advocated.«There are always ways to ensure she gets her medication if she is needed to raise
chicks, the first step being to figure out what is the lowest dose of metacam we can give her that still
manages herdiscomfort and then go from there. Sometimes metacam can be given every second day for
example,and as | already mentioned, climate plays a role and as kaka breed in spring/summer itis
extremely.likely that we'd find that Charlie can cope with a much lower dose of metacam over the
breeding-season, in particular here in Dunedin where we often have lovely warm weather over this time.

Charlie's welfare is of utmost importance of course but there are ways to manage her so that she can
still provide a valuable contribution to her species and at the same time ensuring she is in a positive
welfare state and we don't exacerbate her pain. We could argue that allowing her to display normal
breeding behaviour and participate in producing chicks is actually important for her mental health, this
is something that captive facilities (Zoo's) encourage a lot i.e. allowing animals in their care to display
normal behaviours - breeding is a normal behaviour.



Finally, we won't know unless we try to find a solution that works for Charlie and the breeding
programme, and of course if we were to find that she is not coping without higher and regular doses or
metacam than the plan of how she is contributing to breeding can be changed in order to ensure she is
the top priority.

Nga mihi

59(2

On Wed, May 1, 2024 at 2:30 PMEIEIE)ND) wrote:

I’m currently talking to the Te Anau team about Charlie’s participation in next season’s breeding
programme.

They have recently informed me: “ Charlie is now éntwice daily medication to manage her pain and
discomfort/arthritis from her old injury. Because ofthis, she unfortunately will not be able to raise chicks
again as she would regurgitate the medication to-the chicks when feeding.” |have been asking for a
veterinary assessment of Charlie for somé+time and just today received her history from EIEICUIN

There is a note in the 2023 visit that records would be sent to DWH, | have no idea if that happened. |
requested on several occasionsdhat Te Anau provide a report to me and SEI¥AM and we never received
anything. It’s taken me 3 days te get this history sent through.

Would you be wilting to look over Charlie’s history from Z&ICMW to see if there is anything concerning.
(lab results)?

Te Anau-objects to Charlie being moved to DBG and as above feel she can’t raise chicks because she is
getting twice daily medications for her arthritis. | am advocating for her to be used to lay priority eggs via
Ah./and if she can’t raise chicks due to the meds she can still be useful in incubating high priority eggs
and eggs from females that have a history to breaking their eggs etc. | guess at some point we do have
to discuss if whether any female kaka can raise chicks on meloxicam?

At the moment, | am simply pulling together information to provide to my manager and his manager,
regarding Charlie’s value and suitability to remain part of the breeding programme.



If you can assistin this, we’d appreciate it.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that.any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If yousreceived this
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the messageand
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you-are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prehibited. If you received this

email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you,

From: SEIBICID)

Sent on: Sunday, May 5,.2024 10:05:55 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE:&@) review of Charlie (kaka) medical records

Thanks a lot in that.

lassume W is the Vet at I

We could ask Te Anau to ask the vet to consult with to manage the amount of anti inflammatory.



From: S4B}

Sent: Monday, May 6, 2024 10:01 AM
To: EAIC)ND)
Subject: SEl# review of Charlie (kaka) medical records

From: JJAIEY
Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 10:21 AM

s 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie (kaka)

Morena SABIC)

I've had a chance to look through all of Charlie's records. We did provide,input last year as sent
through the x-rays for us to review. | agree with assessment of the recent x-ray that there have
been no changes so this is good news. The bones have healedterribly after her accident on the Milford
road and as she gets older it is very likely that this could be-the source of some discomfort. Looking at all
the lab results | see nothing concerning and they all indicate that Charlie is in good health and is not
having a negative reaction to the long term meloxicam.

| note that Charlie receives her prescribed.dose of 0.3mls (1mg/kg) split into two doses as | see

noted that the once daily doséimade her miserable. I'm interested to hear more about this and
what "miserable" actually means asimeloxicam is a sweet tasting medication, it is honey flavoured, and
in my experience birds tolerate it extremely well, especially the species that enjoy nectar/sweet tasting
food i.e. kaka, Tui etc. The dose of-0.3mls is at the medium end of the dose range at around 1mg/kg
based on her weight being around 480g. The high end of the dose range is prescribed for birds in a lot of
pain e.g. fractures, othertrauma, and ranges up to 2mg/kg (0.64mls for bird Charlie's size). We routinely
use a dose of 1.5mg/kg formost species of birds (excluding penguins) that we admit to hospital as we
also include other painikillers to help them after they sustain a trauma. For arthritic cases | endeavour
to decrease the dose’rate to the lowest dose possible as long term use can potentially have a negative
impact on kidneys and gastrointestinal tract. | taylor this based on the birds response, what the
owner/keepers observe, taking seasons into account i.e. colder weather aggravates arthritis so | may
increase'the dose if the bird seems more painful in winter. | also do a blood test that is an inflammatory
markeras it is great for determining how much inflammation the arthritis is causing (inflammation is
what causes pain) and if it is responding to the metacam. | find this test to be invaluable as a bird's
preservation reflex will often hide how they really feel. In my opinion there is definitely room to make
changes in the dose Charlie is receiving and | would be happy to discuss this with if he wants some
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
she responds. | would recommend this in fact as at 21 years old (if that is actually her age) she is only
really middle aged, there are reports of kaka reaching 40 years or so in captivity so that is a long time to



be on metacam if she does live that long. I'd only recommend changes be made in Spring though, let her
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
already advocated. There are always ways to ensure she gets her medication if she is needed to raise
chicks, the first step being to figure out what is the lowest dose of metacam we can give her that still
manages her discomfort and then go from there. Sometimes metacam can be given every second.day for
example, and as | already mentioned, climate plays a role and as kaka breed in spring/summerit is
extremely likely that we'd find that Charlie can cope with a much lower dose of metacam over the
breeding season, in particular here in Dunedin where we often have lovely warm weathetouver this time.

Charlie's welfare is of utmost importance of course but there are ways to mapage her so that she can
still provide a valuable contribution to her species and at the same time ensuring she is in a positive
welfare state and we don't exacerbate her pain. We could argue that allowing her to display normal
breeding behaviour and participate in producing chicks is actually impertant for her mental health, this
is something that captive facilities (Zoo's) encourage a lot i.e. allowing animals in their care to display
normal behaviours - breeding is a normal behaviour.

Finally, we won't know unless we try to find a solutior thatworks for Charlie and the breeding
programme, and of course if we were to find that she is\not coping without higher and regular doses or
metacam than the plan of how she is contributing'to'breeding can be changed in order to ensure she is
the top priority.

Nga mihi

Oh Wed, May 1, 2024 at 2:30 PMSLA(){) wrote:
g0

I’m currently talking to the Te Anau team about Charlie’s participation in next season’s breeding
programme.

They have recently informed me: “ Charlie is now on twice daily medication to manage her pain and
discomfort/arthritis from her old injury. Because of this, she unfortunately will not be able to raise chicks



again as she would regurgitate the medication to the chicks when feeding.” |have been asking for a
veterinary assessment of Charlie for some time and just today received her history from SI3IE))

There is a note in the 2023 visit that records would be sent to DWH, | have no idea if that happened. |
requested on several occasions that Te Anau provide a report to me and SEI&M and we never received
anything. It’s taken me 3 days to get this history sent through.

Would you be willing to look over Charlie’s history from SBICNW) 1o see if there is anything concerning.
(lab results)?

Te Anau objects to Charlie being moved to DBG and as above feel she can’t raise chicks because she is
getting twice daily medications for her arthritis. | am advocating for her to be used.totay priority eggs via
Al...and if she can’t raise chicks due to the meds she can still be useful in incubating-high priority eggs
and eggs from females that have a history to breaking their eggs etc. | guessiat some point we do have
to discuss if whether any female kaka can raise chicks on meloxicam?

At the moment, | am simply pulling together information to provide te my manager and his manager,
regarding Charlie’s value and suitability to remain part of the breeding programme.

If you can assist in this, we’d appreciate it.

Cheers,

S9(2)(9)

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legalprivilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination,distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in~error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

From: EGICIQ)

Sent on: Sunday, May 5, 2024 10:07:36 PM



To: s9(2)(9)(ih)
Subject: RE: review of Charlie (kaka) medical records

Yes,
Itold | would make that request.

s9(2)(9)

From: s9(2)(g)(i)

Sent on: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 9:17:48 PM
To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: videos sent by BI@ jimmy
Attachments: Jimmy observations.msg (15.85 MB)

Follow up:

From: SEIGIC)D)

Sent on: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:27:36 AM

To: S9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Hi again.

We will have to impose a deadline for moving Charlie to DBG.

wants to drive over and collect her immediately. J¢I{s)I0)]



Giving that we are making assurances that Charlie will be monitored closely after
transfer. | think it should be as soon asSEI#AN returns from a 2 week holiday.. (first 2 weeks of June).

Breeding season can start in July ..so the more time for her to settle in the better.

told me today that Cleo is begging from Jimmy! This is a great sign ...and quite
early.

Cheers

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android

From: A1)

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:09:14 PM

To: EAIC)ND)

Subject: Re: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Yes, will do.

Should be ready to go tomorrow morning.. SEIVIE))

Thank you boths

s9(2)(9)

Get\Outlook for Android

From: 3B

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:06:03 PM

(r-Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email



ZIS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sounds good.

Willyou edit and I’ll sign out?

From: SE[@AIE)I)

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 3:53 PM

To: SIAIC)D)

Subject: RE: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Kia ora S4GAIEOIQ) ,

Thanks for your work on the flocking plan (attached) and email to holdeérs,both look good
overall to me, but | have a couple of minor comments on each.

Flocking Plan: | have made some (not tracked) minor changes in attached, including macrons
on kaka, and other minor formatting changes. | have a query on sex of one bird (see comment in
attached), but otherwise it looks good, and helpful to have.changes from first proposal
highlighted.

Email: This looks fine to me, and I’m confident in the.approach you are taking (I’ve again made
minor tweaks below, including strengthening some wording from ‘believe’ to ‘are confident’).
However, it would be useful to describe why-the changes highlighted in flocking plan were
made, and if this was in response to any ofthe'concerns raised. This could demonstrate that we
are acting on feedback received.

If you can make these changes, | am¢appy for the email to be sent out (please Cc me in for my
visibility). Please get in touch if youshave any questions or would like to discuss further.

Nga mihi,

S9O(

From: A1)
Sent: Monday, May«6,.2024 1:54 PM
Hs9(2)(9)(ih)
Subject: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Below'is'the draft of email to go to all holders.

| do‘heed to do the 1 page summary for you and | don’t’ think | can get that done today. | have to
book flights for empty carrier boxes...

Let me know what you think, and if you need me to do anything more.

S9(



Thank you for your feedback of the draft 24/25 South Island Kaka flocking plan. There is general positive
support for the objectives of the plan and the proposed actions to achieve those goals. Based on the
success of last season, there is general support for the approach we used last year and propose to use
again this year.

There are three themes of concern raised through feedback by one or more facilities:
1. The moving of long-term resident birds.
2. Suitability of the proposed assigned aviaries for elderly and/or disabled birds.
3. The appropriateness of utilising a female on long-term medication for arthritis for chick'rearing.

Thank you to all of those that have raised these specific concerns around the proposed movements of
specific birds and proposed alternative options. We agree that it is important to be cognisant of the
birds’ wellbeing as we work toward the goals of the programme. Where appropriate.we have received
specific veterinary advice on the concerns raised.

After considering the feedback, we understand that the proposed movement of birds might, in some
cases, introduce a small level of increased stress to the birds during the move,but we do not believe the
proposed movements put them under significantly increased risk of stress or injury. We are confidentin
you as holders to monitor and manage these changes and the ongoing welfare of the birds and that the
appropriate supportisin place for birds that might need additional considerations (e.g. increased
veterinary monitoring). We are confident that the draft plan protects the well-being of the birds while
maximising the likelihood of achieving another year of positive outcomes.

Therefore, we are recommending that the draft plan be adopted and approved. We will continue to
support you through implementation of the plan and any issues that arise.

From: SEIBICID)

Sent on: Thdrsday, May 9, 2024 4:27:36 AM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Re: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Hi again.

We will have to impose a deadline for moving Charlie to DBG.



wants to drive over and collect her immediately I¢31(¢)]10)

Giving that we are making assurances that Charlie will be monitored closely after
transfer. | think it should be as soon asSEI#N returns from a 2 week holiday.. (first 2 weeks of June).

Breeding season can start in July ..so the more time for her to settle in the better.

told me today that Cleo is begging from Jimmy! This is a great sign /.and quite
early.

Cheers

s9(2)(g)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3G}

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:09:14 PM

LrHs9(2)()(ii)

Subject: Re: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Yes, will do.

Should be ready:to,go tomorrow morning.. SEI¢AIE);

Thanksyot béth.

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

FTTAS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:06:03 PM



LS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Hi SEIBICH D)
Sounds good.

Will you edit and I’ll sign out?

From: SAIEOID)
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 3:53 PM
To: SAIC))
Subject: RE: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Kia ora S4GIOI0)] ,

Thanks for your work on the flocking plan (attached) and email.to holders, both look good
overall to me, but | have a couple of minor comments on each.

Flocking Plan: | have made some (not tracked) minorehanges in attached, including macrons
on kaka, and other minor formatting changes. |.have a query on sex of one bird (see comment in
attached), but otherwise it looks good, and helpfulto have changes from first proposal
highlighted.

Email: This looks fine to me, and I’m confident in the approach you are taking (I’ve again made
minor tweaks below, including strengthening some wording from ‘believe’ to ‘are confident’).
However, it would be useful to describe why the changes highlighted in flocking plan were
made, and if this was in response to any of the concerns raised. This could demonstrate that we
are acting on feedback received.

If you can make these‘changes, | am happy for the email to be sent out (please Cc me in for my
visibility). Please getsiinitouch if you have any questions or would like to discuss further.

Nga mihi,

S9(

From: SS@AI)I()

Sent: Monday, May 6, 2024 1:54 PM
To: AIE)ND)
Subject: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Below is the draft of email to go to all holders.

| do need to do the 1 page summary for you and I don’t’ think | can get that done today. | have to
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
success of last season, there is general support for the approach we used last year and propose-to use
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
3. The appropriateness of utilising a female on long-term medication for arthritisfor chick rearing.

Thank you to all of those that have raised these specific concerns around the proposed movements of
specific birds and proposed alternative options. We agree that it is important to be cognisant of the
birds’ wellbeing as we work toward the goals of the programme. Where.appropriate we have received
specific veterinary advice on the concerns raised.

After considering the feedback, we understand that the proposed movement of birds might, in some
cases, introduce a small level of increased stress to the birds, during the move, but we do not believe the
proposed movements put them under significantly increasedjrisk of stress or injury. We are confidentin
you as holders to monitor and manage these changes/and the ongoing welfare of the birds and that the
appropriate supportisin place for birds that mightheed additional considerations (e.g. increased
veterinary monitoring). We are confident that the.dfaft plan protects the well-being of the birds while
maximising the likelihood of achieving anotheryear of positive outcomes.

Therefore, we are recommending that the draft plan be adopted and approved. We will continue to
support you through implementation,of the,plan and any issues that arise.

From: SE[AAIEID)

Sent:Monday, May 27, 2024 10:54:20 AM

To: SAIEY

Subject: Charlie move...and Tumu and Waewae

31s9(2)
There have been several emails back and forth last week re; moving Charlie to DBG.
It looks like they are going to delay until June 14/15...as El@) is going on leave.

It will be best ifSEI@N is back when Charlie arrives.



| realize this has a roll-on effect, in that you can’t move Tumu and Waewae until Charlie is moved.

out of scope

Do you have any concerns that you have raised with Te Anau, or would like me to be aware of with either
bird? If there are any special needs, or conditions that should be monitored please let me know as well.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that'is-confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this
email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of thesmessage and
attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

From: EEIAIEN

Sent on: Tuesday, May 21, 2024/11:55:11 PM

SISO 2)(2) 59(2)(9) (1)
L \V

CC: s9(2)(a)

Subject: RE:'EW: Flocking plan has been approved!

Hi all,

Just chiming in with my 2 cents worth ©

Thanks &0 again for all the help around Jimmy and now Charlie. It has been so valuable to have your input

through this long process. | think we are getting close to moving forward with the 24/25 flocking plan which is
great news for the future of the breeding programme.



out of scope

Thank you
s9(2)

22, DUNEDIN | kauginera
“2¢" CITYCQUNCIL | Otepoti

out of scope




out of scope

On Wed, May 22, 2024 at 10:40 AM BRG] wrote:
Hi Sl
Thank you,

Yes, SEI#A] and | agreed yesterday that getting Charlie should wait until SSI¥M8 return from holiday. I'll work
with Te Anau to have Charlietrahsferred on June 15%.

2)(a), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(g)(i)

Thank you,



s9(2)(9)

From: 3JAIEY

Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 10:23 AM
To: SEAIC)D)

Subject: Re: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!

Morena S@IE)]

Just catching up on all my emails



5.9(2)(a), 9(2)(ba)(i), 9(2)(g)(ii)

Nga mihi

59(2

On Wed, May 15, 2024 at 1:09 PM EEICNE

wrote:

Kia ora Sl#3l()]

We are more than happy to help with these birds. Thanks for.the’heads up.

I will let respond more in detail when she is back hext week.

Nga mihi

s9(2)(a)

OnWed, May 15, 2024 at 12:07 PM EEIP3IEN() wrote:

Hi Team,

| got an out of office from so | am forwarding this to you as a heads up.

| don’t think we will be sending any kaka your way before returns next week,..again just to flag it with
you.



Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: EEIPAl(¢)I{D)

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 11:26 AM

To: SPAIEY

Subject: Flocking plan has been approved!
1S 9(

| wanted to inform you that the 24/25 flocking plan has been approved, and it involvessmoving Charlie to DBG.
SEIPI(){DN has indicated that holders should start moving forward with the tfansfefs.

| will be the liaison between DBG and Te Anau. ElPAl()IOR=IPAI(«)ILI);
Charlie hasn’t been disease screened, and she should be

prior to a transfer to another facility. SSIP3] suggested that Charlie be sent to DWH for a health check, similar
to what all the birds had last year, and then make her wayto:DBG. We know that she was seen by
recently, and you have reviewed those records, so perhaps she just comes in to get some bloods done for
those inflammatory markers.

Are you able to facilitate this? I'm aware that SEI#3] is away from 1 June to 17 June. It might be best to get
Charlie to you around the 15th of Jung’so'she is ready to go to DBG as soon asB4#)] returns, keeping in mind
that she will need to be monitored for stress in her new environment.

Happy to hear your feedback.

Also, | spoke with S4¢AIEY , re: moving Stumpy and Gimpy. It would be

beneficial to have the two birds brought to DWH for health checks before going to Te Anau. We could
potentially arfange for them to come to you first, and when Te Anau brings Charlie, they can take Stumpy and
Gimpy back with’them.

Thanks so much for all your help, | know that your feedback on Jimmy and Charlie was helpful for S¢3l(s))

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)



out of scope

From: S#Al()I{D]

Sent: Friday, May 24, 2024 3:36 PM

S 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subjéct: Flocking plan approved CONCERNS

Fl1s9(2)(g)(ii)

We proposed that we investigate the suitability of the Te Anau aviaries as part of the 24/25 work
programme to have an appropriate set of observations.




and | discussed that moving Charlie out of Te Anau for the breeding season was the highest
o] glels .ty In order not to delay her transfer we would pause any immediate action on the aviary
suitability. Charlie is currently alone in Te Anau (Rata was moved away last week). We are planning on
moving her June 15" to accommodate the fact that Alisha is on leave for the first 2 weeks of June.

out of scope

Shall we discuss this next week?

s9(2)(g)

From: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Thursday, May 9, 2024 9:27:45 PM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Adjusted email and flocking plan.

Attachments: S| Kaka Captive Breeding Flocking Plan 24_25 Second draft - AMRVL.docx (50.44 KB)

0o2))

Below/the dashed line is the email to holders with SElP4] changes and my additions of what was changed
in the.floecking plan.

Attached is the flocking plan Draft 2, with changes highlighted in yellow. And some track changes. Do
we callit draft 2 ? We definitely need to rename it.

| have not addressed the aviary concerns directing in the email below...as it’s 3 fold and not really
resolved at this point....but it shouldn’t delay the flocking plan.?? And couldn’t find a way to say that.

EIPAN wants Charlie moved ASAP SR[PAIE:)) | don’t see that
happening. So I’'ve put mid June, so that they can throw a party and say there goodbyes and Charlie can



arrive at DBG whenSEIPAIE) Also, | would feel better if Charlie didn’t arrive until3¥3]
was there to look for signs of stress etc. 4# has left to take a job with DOC.

I’m available to chat, at 10:30

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: EAl(¢)I(D)

Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 7:40:44 AM
To: SEAC)()
Subject: Fwd: response to flocking plan feedback --draft email

Get Outlook for Android

From: SPAl()I(D)

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 3:52:44 PM
To: eI
Subject: RE: response to flocKing plan feedback --draft email

Kia oraEElE@I)() .

Thanks for yotirwork on the flocking plan (attached) and email to holders, both look good overall to me,
but | havesa couple of minor comments on each.

Flocking®Plan: | have made some (not tracked) minor changes in attached, including macrons on kaka,
and\other minor formatting changes. | have a query on sex of one bird (see comment in attached), but
otherwise it looks good, and helpful to have changes from first proposal highlighted.

Email: This looks fine to me, and I’m confident in the approach you are taking (I’ve again made minor
tweaks below, including strengthening some wording from ‘believe’ to ‘are confident’). However, it
would be useful to describe why the changes highlighted in flocking plan were made, and if this was in
response to any of the concerns raised. This could demonstrate that we are acting on feedback
received.




If you can make these changes, | am happy for the email to be sent out (please Cc me in for my
visibility). Please get in touch if you have any questions or would like to discuss further.

Nga mihi,
SO(

Thank you for your feedback of the draft 24/25 South Island Kaka flocking plan. There isigeneral positive
support for the objectives of the plan and the proposed actions to achieve those goals:Based on the
success of last season, there is general support for the approach we used last year and propose to use
again this year.

There are three themes of concern raised through feedback by one or more faeilities:
1. The moving of long-term resident birds.
2. Suitability of the proposed assigned aviaries for elderly and/or disabled birds.
3. The appropriateness of utilising a female on long-term medication for arthritis for chick rearing.

Thank you to all of those that have raised these specificicencerns around the proposed movements of
specific birds and proposed alternative options. We‘agfee'that it is important to be cognisant of the
birds’ wellbeing as we work toward the goals of therogramme. Where appropriate we have received
specific veterinary advice on the concerns raised.

After considering the feedback, we understand that the proposed movement of birds might, in some
cases, introduce a small level of increased stress to the birds during the move, but we do not believe
the proposed movements put them under significantly increased risk of stress or injury. We are
confident in you as holders to monitor and manage these changes and the ongoing welfare of the birds
and that the appropriate supportis in place for birds that might need additional considerations (e.g.
increased veterinary mopitoring). We are confident that the draft plan protects the well-being of the
birds while maximising the likelihood of achieving another year of positive outcomes.

We’ve incorporatedfeedback on the movement of some specific birds and these are also highlighted in
plan:

Elout of scope

Therefore, we are recommending that the draft plan be adopted and approved as amended. Breeding
activity can start as early as July in Dunedin so breeding birds will need to be transferred by mid -
June. We look forward to working with you through implementation of the plan and any issues that
arise.






From: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 5:23:45 AM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: Second draft to the 24/25 flocking plan

Attachments: SI Kaka Captive Breeding Flocking Plan 24 25 Second draft - Copy.doex (41.86 KB)

Hi there,
| have made small changes to the flocking plan based on conversations with holders.

They are highlighted in Yellow, and don’t impact any holders except forthe destination of where they

transfer their outgoing birds.
| haven’t made any changes or concessions for Te Anau, as theiralternative scenario was completely at

odds with the plan, logistically unrealistic and given the contentious relationship; completely
unworkable.

| also have compiled a file with the feedback,and the advice | received after conferring with DWH
atc. It’s a large file and big read. | felt it was important to document all the avenues we’ve been down

with Te Anau.

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)

out of scope

SI Kaka Captive Breeding programme Flocking and Breeding plan for 24/25

Captive Coordinator: s9(2)(9)(ii)



out of scope




out of scope




EF

Goals 2 and 3: Maximizing the genetic diversity available for releases to Orokonui and to
future proof the SSI captive population.

e Prioritise breeding for Jimmy and Cleo. They are unrelated to any other birds in the captive
population and any birds released at Orokonui so far. As such, they are the most genetically
valuable SSI birds and offspring from them would contribute significantly to the Orokonui
population and the future of the SSI captive population.

Both of these birds have physical limitations and are relatively old. While held together at
DBG this year, they appeared bonded, showed interest in nest boxes, and we suspect there was
a mating attempt. They will be retained at DBG as a priority for breeding while-also
maintaining Al as a possible option.

If we are successful in securing chicks from Jimmy and/or Cleo, we wéuld-likely retain one to
several of these chicks as a new genetic line within the captive popdlatipn, with remaining

out of scope




Table 1. Recommendations for holdings and movements of birds for 24/25 season.

Institution

Dunedin
Botanical
Gardens

Institution/Current
Holdings

out of
scope

Holdings
proposed for
24/25

out of

scope

of

pe

Charlie

out of sco

CHANGES from

first draft

Purpose

out of
scope

Jimmy
out

of

SCO

pe

Charlie

out of
scope

TOS

2 pairs that have bred remain
at DBG for another season to
allow fostering of eggs/chigks
with proven breeding pairs
and allowing TOS birds to
raise non-priority chicks.

SSi

Jimmy and Cleo.are the top
priority..xChicks from this
pairingare a completely new
line for the breeding
population.

Taonga and Jimmy are another
pairing that would increase
the diversity of the captive
population.

Overrepresented pairs are still
needed to foster eggs/chicks
from inexperienced birds
(SSI/TOS)

BUT breeding from these
birds needs to be limited.

Actions

out of scope

3 foster pairs to allow for foster of any of
TOS eggs
and Jimmy’s eggs

Eocus will be:
TOS pairs

Jimmy X Cleo

Toanga X Jimmy




out of scope

Stumpy and Charlie moves to DBG to be Rata.moved to Invercargill
foster for priority eggs/chicks |« harlie moved to DBG
- Receive Stumpy/Gimpy

Rata returns to Invercargill

Te Anau Charlie Stumpy and
Rata Gimpy Gimpy

out of scope




out of scope




From: s9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Friday, May 24, 2024 3:36:25 AM
To: s9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: Flocking plan approved CONCERNS

Attachments: RE FW Flocking plan has been approved!.msg (186 KB), Te Anau aviary
concerns - in Te Anau correspondence.docx (27.79 KB)

Fl1s9(2)(a)(ii) &

We proposed that we investigate the suitability of the Te Anau aviaries@as part of the 24/25 work
programme to have an appropriate set of observations.

9(2 and | discussed that moving Charlie out ofTe Anau for the breeding season was the
hwhexst priority. In order not to delay her transferwe would pause any immediate action on the
aviary suitability. Charlie is currently alone’in Te Anau (Rata was moved away last week). We
are planning on moving her June 15" to aceommodate the fact that is on leave for the
first 2 weeks of June.

Shall we discuss this next week?

s9(2)(9)

Consolidation of Te Anau aviary concerns from Te Anau staff.



TS9O (2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Friday, May 10, 2024 9:49 AM

_

Subject: Returning Rata

Kia oraSEl¥Al(¢) (and everyone),

out of scope
He has been getting

time with Charlie Girl, but we have recently stoppé€d this as he can be a bit rough. Heis
becoming increasingly hormonal and is interested in her.

out of scope

' -

Queens Park Garden Aviaries can take Rata next week. While we don’t want to have Charlie left
alone, we can’tignore Rata’s welfare.

You can see from the one-minute video showing part of a training session just how much we
have enjoyed having him, he’s a wonderful character. | 20240509_104755.mp4



Nga mihi

59(2)(9)

May 15", 2024

Dear Punanga Manu o Te Anau DOC Staff,

Thank you for allowing me to be a part of your volunteer team, and utilizing my professional
experience as a veterinarian and as a behaviour consultant.

| first met Charlie Girl in 2005, and first started volunteering at Te Anau,in 2015. At that time,
Charlie was successfully raising chicks, and it was wonderful to see her contributing to the
captive breeding program.

During my recent visit to Te Anau, we were able to work together to further improve Charlie’s
health and welfare. After discussing her medication plan; prescribed by and observing
her behaviour, we split her anti-inflammatory medication into an AM and PM dose. We soon
observed an improvement in her overall willinghess to take her meds quickly, an improved grip
around her perches at rest, and an improved-posture and gait.

In March, we also discussed initiating\a physical therapy program that utilized Positive
Reinforcement training and Co0Operative Care principles to train Charlie to fly on cue. | began
the initial steps of training Charlie to participate voluntarily in her Physical Therapy program.
This training continued after. my departure, and your team soon reported that Charlie was now
flying on cue. | then received a video of successfully cueing Charlie to fly to a higher
perch, and | was greatly'pleased to see her progress.

Charlie’s’'voluntary physical therapy program has a range of benefits. Physically, it improves her
mobility, reduces her arthritis symptoms and pain, strengthens her muscles, and supports the
goal ofweaning Charlie off her medication in the future. It is also a source of social and mental
enrichment for Charlie, reducing the likelihood that past behaviour issues will reoccur.

Being familiar with Charlie’s history, | am also pleased to see she exhibits a range of normal
behaviours and social interactions at Te Anau. During the hours spent with her, | have observed
her exhibiting normal parrot behaviour throughout the day. Any episodes of potential behaviour
concerns - such as weaving and vocalizing - have been limited to less than 15 seconds and she
stopped on her own accord. Thus, there were no concerns for stereotypical behaviours or other
problem behaviours during my recent visit.



Having discussed the potential relocation of Charlie for the 2024/2025 breeding season, | share
the team’s concerns that Charlie’s health and behaviour may suffer as a result of the proposed
move. Due to her history, there is an increased risk that a large change could trigger stress and
behaviour issues for Charlie. Her improved health and well-being are a direct result of the
support and care she receives from her current team. | know your dedication, continuity of care,
and skill sets will allow Charlie to best contribute to the 2024/2025 breeding season in her
home aviary, and allow her to expand on her past breeding success at Punanga Manu o Te
Anau.

Charlie Girlis currently thriving and overcoming chronic health and well-being concerns. The
passion, dedication, and skills the Te Anau staff apply to Charlie’s care have allowed her to live
a healthier, more enriched life. This ongoing dedication is reflected in the over,20 chicks Charlie
has reared for release and in her recent voluntary Physical Therapy training success. | am
grateful to have played a small role in her care, and to have worked with,your team over the
years. Please let me know if | can be of any help in the future.

Sincerely, SRIAIE)

From: S4AIC)IQ)]

Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 10:38 AM
To: EAIEO)IQ)

Subject: RE: SI kaka Flocking plan 24-25 Approved.

Thanks SEIBIC)D)

I’m sure Charlie’s medication can be managed effectively for her pain, however would you
please provide clarity on how it would be managed while she is feeding chicks, and how her
trauma/stress levels would be observed and assessed?

Also please advise how Jimmy will be kept safe from further stress, falls and injury?

| reiterate information previously provided regarding Charlie and Jimmy below to help inform the
plan.



Charlie:

Charlie is an older bird with a traumatic background, who needs a quieter environment. This
has been proven in that past when shifting aviaries here at the Bird Sanctuary which put her off
breeding that year. She is now on twice daily medication, and this will need to be ongoing to
manage pain and discomfort around her old injury sites. JEICIOBEREIAIEY has
provided us excellent support and prescribed the medication, and we have made extensive
observations of Charlie’s response to it throughout the year.

Charlie has been at the Bird Sanctuary for at least 17 years, after being rescued from being held
indoors in a tiny parrot cage. Needless to say, that experience caused severe trauma forher and
this manifested in repetitive, stereotype behaviours. Once established, these behaviours are
very hard to shift, and consequently we still see them from her at times, although.in a different
context as it is generally in response to excitement or initiating interaction and'this not
considered a sign of re-traumatisation or stress. If such behaviour, or anfincrease in it were to
be noticed in other circumstances it could be indicative of a welfare goncern or stressor for her.

has worked with Charlie since Charlie’s arrival at the bird"sanctuary as a mentally
and physically broken bird, and has managed to rehabilitate Charlie to a state that she is
content in an aviary setting and has been a very successful breeding bird and mother.
has not acted alone in this but acquired knowledge and*advice from many experts and
professionals and made extensive observations to achieye it. We rely on advice and expertise of
technical advisers and specialist and experienced professionals to inform us. Her observations
and interpretations can be trusted. There would be few keepers who could equal her
experience or success with any bird that had'suffered such a degree of trauma.

The limiting factor for Charlie raising chicks in the future is that she would need to regurgitate to
feed them, therefore feeding her medication to the chicks, which would be inappropriate for
them, and mean Charlie wouldn’t be getting the full dose herself.

Jimmy:

Jimmy has been véry'content at Te Anau, and was in perfect health and welfare when
transferred to Dunedin for the 2022/23 season as evidenced by the report made by from
the Dunedin Wildlife Hospital that cleared him to participate in Al going forward.

Jimmyshas periodically displayed repetitive behaviours while at Te Anau, and this behaviour was
establisheéd in him on arrival in 2016. We don’t have information on what might have initialised
the"behaviour prior to coming here, but as we have only seen it in response to excitement
(generally enrichment) very limited in duration and frequency, we can be confident that it has
not been a negative reaction to a stressor. Again, we have relied on extensive observations,
knowledge and advice from many experts and professionals in making these assessments.

Jimmy has displayed a significant increase in this behaviour after transfer to Dunedin. He
proved to have no sperm following Al which would suggest this was in fact a stress response.

Jimmy prefers a quiet environment and is easily startled. Due to his historic wing injury, he
cannot fly at all, nor balance well if startled and running (along a perch), which makes him



prone to falls. The Dunedin aviaries are, by all accounts, a very stimulating environment and
Jimmy is housed in a very tall aviary.

With the main objectives of the Al/breeding program being welfare and productivity, please
advise how Jimmy will be kept safe?

Regards,

From: 3B

Sent: 02 May 2024 16:48

To: SEGIC)D)
@ Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Additional feedback to draft flocking/breeding plan 2024/25

SEIAM hope the text below is suitable, as discussed/Whenforwarding please continue to keep in
the @mail chain.

Hi NIAIC)

Much of our feedback,has already been covered during our meeting and the context provided in
response to that, This:is summarised below with some additional considerations.

The main points are:

1. Charlie is unfortunately no longer suitable as a foster parent and moving her anywhere
would re-traumatise her and she would be very unlikely to nest. Full context previously
provided.

2‘



3. Jimmy has specific needs for an environment that is safe for him and maximises
potential for securing off-spring from him. Full context also previously provided.

We are mindful that these issues have repercussions for the flocking plan. We want to be solution
focussed and are supportive of achieving the key goals of the breeding program, and so ask if the
following would be considered as a viable alternative:

Jimmy and Cleo housed at Te Anau as companion neighbours for Charlie. We understand'this doesn’t
have the advantage of synchronising all the females nesting but it has proven to be d'suitable
environment and arrangement for both Charlie and Jimmy and may allow for some/advantageous
opportunity: The draft plan allows the potential for some Al to happen at/fromi ITnyercargill through
the Kakapo team, and this has proven to be a viable format for Te Anau birds'in the past.

If Charlie was inspired to nest, this may synchronise with Jimmy‘and Cleo’s nesting/hormonal activity
and Charlie could also potentially be an Al recipient, although\er eggs would need to be fostered out.
Alternatively, if there were a female partner for Charlie, €ould,a female/female relationship
potentially inspire both partners to nest as some species,do?

From: SEIGIC)(D)

Sent: Friday, July 7, 2023 4:28 PM

RS 9(2)(g)(ii)
IR\ Y A
Cc:2IAIC)D)

Subject: Aviariesiand welfare at the Bird Sanctuary

El1s9(2)(0) EElsO(2) B

We (the Te Anau Bird Sanctuary team) would like the opportunity to ask if anyone has specific,
current concerns about the welfare of our resident birds. That way we could work towards
possible improvements.

We are aware that our Kaka aviaries, when considered as two separate aviaries, are slightly
undersize by current recommendations. A quick note that when they had major renovations



severalyears ago the Kaka husbandry manual at the time (2018 version) didn’t specify size or
dimensions. The 2021 version (published after alterations were made) specify 120m3 for each
pair with a floor area of 40m2 (8x5x3m height). Ours have a floor area of 38m2 and area of just
over 110m3 each, not including the porch area (an additional 4.5m2 floor space and 9m3). We
note that both versions are based on the natural movement of the birds assuming they can fly. If
we open the door between the two aviaries we have approx 220m3.

We do a lot of enrichment with our birds and are confident they are all content and entertained

appropriately. R A

We recommended Taonga be transferred so she would have an opportunity to breed, as Jimmy
seems incapable of doing this naturally due to his wing injury. Theyshad bonded well and
courted frequently but never mated.

You may not be aware that since SE3IC)) have taken the reins at the Bird
Sanctuary, every aviary has, or is undergoing significant improvements in regard to size and/or
environment, and both in the case of the Kaka,aviaries. The grounds and visitor experience have
also had significant improvements, and weshaven’t finished yet.

Charlie and Bling have successfully raised many chicks over the years although it is true there
have been some adverse events. We believe these were all outside of our control, and we have
raised concerns and sodghtiadvice as appropriate. If there is something we could have been, or
should now been doing differently, or could improve on we would very much appreciate some
constructive feedback.in order to make the appropriate changes. We have had several new
versions of nest box over the years as well as adding the nest camera which has been a huge
benefit for monitoring chicks.

Toxoplasmosis:

This event was left to us to determine how it happened. Obviously we don’t let cats into the
aviary or the nest box to have a crap, so how would the chicks have directly ingested it? It must
have been fed to them by Charlie, so how did she have access to it? The most likely scenario
out of several possibilities is that it was present in the gravel that we refreshed the aviary floor
with many months prior, as cats would have had access to the gravel pit and/or quarry site
where we purchased it. My investigations determined that Toxo can live in soil/sand etc for up
to 18 months. As far as I’'m aware there were not any warnings, guidelines or alerts about Toxo
at the time that we had neglected to follow. We have good hygiene practices and keep clean
aviaries. We felt it was important this event was shared with other bird holders as a potential



environmental hazard similar to Aspergillosis that could affect anyone at any time. SEI#3[(s))
did an excellent job of the advisory that she sent out.

The chick that had a bent leg:

This was determined to be metabolic bone disease which would be due to poor diet. I’'m
unsure, from memory whether this was a clinical diagnosis, or based on circumstantial
evidence. We are confident that their diet at the time was good, and within recommendationss
There was one chick out of four affected and it was therefore determined that it must have been
due to preferential feeding. | made one observation one time (via nest cam) of Charlie feeding
the affected chick first. If we were to fit circumstance to clinical diagnosis, we would assume
that the one nut Charlie got daily was always being fed to the one chick, and no othets. If it was
not a clinical diagnosis but based on circumstance, then the possibility that it was\abroken
(bent/folded) bone from early on should have been considered. The affected chick was the last
to hatch, about a week after its 3 siblings and managed to escape the shéell through the tiniest
hole in the shell.

Just thought it would be good to provide you with some context of what has happened here with
kaka. Very easy for things to be misunderstood and the staffrare very keen to make
improvements if they are deemed necessary and can/fit within the budget.

Cheers

SO(

_

rrom: |

Sent on: Sunday, May 5, 2024 10:08:46 PM



Subject: FW: Additional feedback to draft flocking/breeding plan 2024/25

Hi,
I’ve been compiling a document that pulls together all these responses.
| didn’t want you bombarded with all these emails...however the actions from the Te Anau

Teams meeting was thatSIGICHOIM should be cc’d on all emails....so here is the latest and
last feedback to the draft flocking plan.

From: SEIBICIO)

Sent on: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 9:36:06 PM

To: S9(2)(g)(ii)
I

Subject: RE: Kaka Charlie's Vet repoft/Aransfer of Kaka

Hi SEIBICND)]

Very good.

If you néed support to get everybody to stick to their knitting, get hold of me .

From: SE[AIE)I(D)]

Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2024 10:15 AM

To: SEIGIC)D)



@ Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka

(EXIELSO(2) (9) (i)

Thanks, that approach, including your response, seems fine. It might be worth asking Sl&3)}
[l o1 the video/s so you can share with SEJ@J and she can consider how DBG want to take
that forward.

Nga mihi,

SO(

From: SE[AIE)ID)]

Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2024 9:57 AM

To: @A) D)

oS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: FW: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka

o]
| got my first email from Te Anau re: the transfer of birds:

S9(2)(9)(il) Iy addressing the transfers and reported that Rata has been moved.

Attached to his email was a report ffom the vet SIAIEY) , and aresponse from and
SCEIPIC)I 1o the flocking plan. They are still advocating to hold Charlie at Te Anau.

You can see from my reésponse toSEI#) that | did not address the pleas for keeping Charlie. We
are working towards coordinating the transfer with the assistance of the takahe team and DWH.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

From: 3B

Sent: Monday, May 20, 2024 4:09 PM
CHS9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Kaka Charlie's Vet report/ Transfer of Kaka



Hi EEIAIE)

Our Bird park team requested a report from a long term SEIAIEID) , who

has worked with Charlie and helped advising them on Veterinary care and have requested to
passiton

We acknowledge that this report is outlining the same concerns previously raised, however
there is some valuable information in the report about the training that Charlie has been daing.
This report may help in the transfer process if the Dunedin Botanic Aviary wishes like to
continue with the daily training Charlie is undertaking at present. sent a video
recently of Charlie that shows her undergoing the training. We hope this may help:

putorscope ]

Makes sense to facilitate the transfer of Charlie with the Takahe trip,.if that suits your team.
- from the Takahe team is also heading to Dunedin in a weekworso's time and could be
available to help

Hope all's good

Thanks

Attachment:
May 15th, 2024
Dear Punanga Manu o Te Anau DOC Staff,

Thank you for allowing me to be a part of your volunteer team, and utilizing my
professional

experience as a veterinarian and as a behaviour consultant.

| first met Charlie Girlin 2005, and first started volunteering at Te Anau in 2015. At that
time,



Charlie was successfully raising chicks, and it was wonderful to see her contributing to
the

captive breeding program.

During my recent visit to Te Anau, we were able to work together to further improve
Charlie’s

health and welfare. After discussing her medication plan, prescribed by SI@IEM and
observing

her behaviour, we split her anti-inflammatory medication into an AM and PM dose."\\We
soon

observed an improvement in her overall willingness to take her meds quiekly;»an
improved grip

around her perches at rest, and an improved posture and gait.
In March, we also discussed initiating a physical therapy program that utilized Positive

Reinforcement training and Cooperative Care principles to train Charlie to fly on cue. |
began the

initial steps of training Charlie to participate voluntarily in her Physical Therapy
program. This

training continued after my departure, and your team soon reported that Charlie was
now flying

on cue. | then received a video of S4GUCNW] successfully cueing Charlie to fly to a higher
perch,

and | was greatly pleased to.see her progress.

Charlie’s voluntary.physical therapy program has a range of benefits. Physically, it
improves her

mobility, reduces her arthritis symptoms and pain, strengthens her muscles, and
supportsthe

goal‘efweaning Charlie off her medication in the future. Itis also a source of social and
mental

enrichment for Charlie, reducing the likelihood that past behaviour issues will reoccur.

Being familiar with Charlie’s history, | am also pleased to see she exhibits a range of
normal

behaviours and social interactions at Te Anau. During the hours spent with her, | have
observed



her exhibiting normal parrot behaviour throughout the day. Any episodes of potential
behaviour

concerns - such as weaving and vocalizing - have been limited to less than 15 seconds
and she

stopped on her own accord. Thus, there were no concerns for stereotypical behaviours
or other

problem behaviours during my recent visit.

Having discussed the potential relocation of Charlie for the 2024/2025 breeding
season, | share

the team’s concerns that Charlie’s health and behaviour may suffer as awresult of the
proposed

move. Due to her history, there is an increased risk that a large change could trigger
stress and

behaviour issues for Charlie. Her improved health and well-being are a direct result of
the

support and care she receives from her current teamsl'know your dedication, continuity
of care,

and skill sets will allow Charlie to best cofitribute to the 2024/2025 breeding season in
her home

aviary, and allow her to expand on‘hér past breeding success at Punanga Manu o Te
Anau.

Charlie Girlis currently thriving and overcoming chronic health and well-being
concerns. The

passion, dedicatian, and skills the Te Anau staff apply to Charlie’s care have allowed
herto live a

healthier, more‘enriched life. This ongoing dedication is reflected in the over 20 chicks
Charlie

hasreared for release and in her recent voluntary Physical Therapy training success. |
am

grateful to have played a smallrole in her care, and to have worked with your team over
the

years. Please let me know if | can be of any help in the future.

Sincerely,

SAIC)D)



Attachment:
RE: 2024/2025 flocking plan:

We submit the following, and attached report from SEAIEN for your considerations

We have a long history with Charlie, have supported her and seen great changes in her health, well-being, and
behaviour. By ensuring Charlie’s success, we ensure the success of the Captive Kaka Breeding,Program for the
coming season and in the future and are in a strong position here to help her achieve it.\We believe a move
could have a negative impact on her and could prevent her success in the breeding program. The information
provided by our team, and the attached report from SIEIEN , further
supports that the highest chance of success and continued progress for Charlie'is for her to continue in her
current environment at Te Anau.

Charlie is at least 25 years old and first came to Te Anau in 2000 where'she’is well-known and valued by the
community. We have previously provided some detail of Charlie’s unfortunate traumatic history which
included being kept in a small cage in a home, and led her to display. repetitive behaviours. Through
adjustments and improvements in her care while at Te Anau these behaviours have significantly diminished or
stopped, and she has become a successful breeding bird.and mother.

EIAIENN has provided excellent professional stippert.as a veterinarian and has some familiarity with the Te
Anau Bird Sanctuary aviaries, and with Charlie. Asioutlined in attached report we have worked with the advice
of and SEIAIEY to adjust anddind Charlie’s comfort level of medication as necessary. We
continue to provide a strong program of suppert for Charlie, with ongoing support from both these
professionals and other highly experiénced and skilled team members.

We recognize the need for the/Captive Kaka program to make changes to best support its mission, however,
we can maximize the chancé of her success, are best situated to help her stop medication and for inspiring
nesting. Charlie has been-discouraged from nesting in the past after a small move to a neighbouring aviary
with her then partner Bling (2015/16 season). Before the move they were observed mating multiple times a
day and after, all hermonal/mating activity ceased and no chicks were produced that year.

Utilizing our facility’and determining a course of action that allows for the highest chance of breeding success -
either through Al, fostering or pairing, can provide multiple benefits:

1) Increaséd chance of success. Charlie has a long history of successfully raising chicks in Te Anau over multiple
breeding seasons. Jimmy has proven to provide quality samples for Al when based at Te Anau. If there were
any opportunity for Al at Te Anau, we would only seek to facilitate this by accommodating already trained
experts for the procedure. We have a range of highly skilled and experienced staff and professionals we rely on
for technical support and advice and their continued support should provide confidence that objectives are
met, and high welfare is maintained.

2) Decreased risk of stress and behaviour problems. While most parrots can be adaptable with big changes,
Charlie is more vulnerable to adverse reactions due to her history.

3) We recognize that Dunedin has an excellent track record with raising multiple broods of chicks from
multiple pairs. However, given the evidence and observations by SI¢IE) and ourselves, Charlie's best



chance at successfully raising or fostering chicks would be at Te Anau. A mate, eggs, or chicks could come to
her here, where she is doing well.

4) We can provide a practical solution Jimmy’s specific aviary needs at Te Anau while a solution is found and
implemented to mitigate risk for him at Dunedin, maximising the chance of success for his participation in the
program. Cleo can be accommodated with him to continue that bond.

Thank you for your consideration of this crucial information in your decision making. We look forward to

working collaboratively with the Breeding Program and other aviaries and are happy to discuss different
options as necessary.

Kind Regards, the Te Anau team.

From: SEIGIE)ID)

Sent on: Friday, June 7,2024 1:47:32 AM

1T 2) 2)
- & O
Y

CC: s9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

Thanks$ 5(2)

| did-ask them to start health screening in anticipation of the move on the
14th...so at least one set of samples should have gone.

I assured @DBG that Charlie would be have all necessary Health checks
before arriving at the gardens.

Thanks so much



s9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SJAIE))

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:38:19 PM

To: SAIEOIQ)
[¥Ns9(2)(2)
Subject: Charlie Kaka

Kia ora Koutou

Charlie has arrived in Dunedin safe and sound and is settling in to her
enclosure and actively exploring and chewingithe browse we've offered.

We'll let her settle for a few days and‘thien start the process of health checks.
I'll let you know the results. enCe we have them.

furtherto'your email, because Charlie was moved up to Dunedin a
week earlier than planned | highly doubt any health screening was done so we
will take all the samples up here. We'll be doing blood tests (Biochemistry,
CBC, PCV,TP) to screen for general overall health, we'll check lead levels as
that is‘eften an issue in captive kaka, we'll check fibrinogen levels to assess
inflammation and how she is responding to treatment for arthritis, we'll take
samples for Chlamydia and PBFD as well as do some faecal screening. We'll
do most of this sampling while she is under general anaesthesia so we can
also get a fresh set of x-rays to assess the old fractures.

Nga mihi



s9(2)(a)

From: SEIGIEY

Sent on: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 3:35:05'AM

To: s9(2)(a)
RN
CcC: s9(2)(9)(ii)

- T R
<y

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

Kiaora all,

Just adding to email above.

Charlie appeared unphased, clam and interested in her surroundings and the
other kaka on release today. Unfortunately, it was noted within the hour what
appeared to me to be stereotypical swaying behaviour.



Can we please get any relevant records for Charlie from the bird park staff or
internal record system. This would help greatly as we move forward with
Charlie's care in the coming months. As 5(2 has indicated she has not been
in Dunedin long enough to have established this stereotypical looking swaying
behaviour so it would be great to get clarity from your staff via managers
thanks. It may just be initial excitement from her new environment but it's
good to flag this early. Other than the moments of swaying initially she has
been actively exploring her enrichment and seems at ease.

Thanks, team

Get Outlook for Android

If this message is not igiended%ér you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination,
distribution or reprodtictign of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SEIAIEY

Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 12:35:11 pm
To: SEAIC)D]

cc RO
I (G
I —

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka



Kia ora koutou

Just an update, Charlie has been moved to Dunedin Botanic Gardens this
morning.

| also wanted to flag a behaviour we noted on the weekend (see video
attached).

It might be stereotypical or just something she does when she.s excited (or
perhaps annoyed). | was chatting with her a little when she started doing this
display but | wasn't sure how to interpret it. She didn't seemdistressed by my
presence so at this stage we're just noting it down.

has let us know that she has just observed similar behaviour once
Charlie was released into her new aviary,ashort while ago. So maybe an
excitement response to new/differentstifnuli? Either way along with GGl
we'll keep a close eye on this to see’if we can figure out the cause/reason and
also of course also make sure she hasn't got some long standing
stereotypical behaviour that weineed to now work on. Hopefully the
stimulating environment at DBG and also now being able to socialise with so
many other kaka will eliminate any pre-existing behavioural issues.

dowoeu know if this behaviour has been observed in Te Anau? It
will be helpful to help me figure out some timelines. She hasn't been in
hospitattong enough to develop any stereotypies and when she was in
hospitalpreviously (2019) we did not note this behaviour.

B MG 8973.Mov X

Nga mihi

59(2



On Mon, Jun 17, 2024 at 2:41 PMEIGIEY
wrote:

Kia ora koutou
I've looped into the email chain now that she is back from leave.

Almost all of Charlie's test results are back (Chlamydia-due tomorrow
apparently), and | am happy to say we have not pickedwp any infectious
diseases or any other health issues (excluding pre-existing of course).

One of the tests we ran is to assess the level of inflammation in the body,
something we've found extremely handy in determining how a patient with
arthritis is responding to therapy. This test came back in the normal range
which suggests that the metacam Charlie is on for her arthritis is working to
manage her discomfort. We have room to move now on trying to reduce the
dose rate of this drug to,the minimum amount that will still effectively manage
her pain. This is always.the goal with any long term treatment, to find the
lowest effectivedose’ Long term metacam can have side effects on the
kidneys so itisimportant we try to reduce the amount as much as possible.
Arthritis is\generally worse over winter so we won't do anything to reduce the
dose untit Spring and we will work closely with to come up with a plan
for how we do this.

In herself Charlie is taking everything in her stride and is pretty interactive with
our team. She is likely starting to get bored though, hospital is not a super
stimulating environment so I'm keen to discharge her ASAP.



S9(2)(2) FETRWE tentatively aim for tomorrow (Tuesday) or Wednesday for
Charlie to head over to DBG, pending the results of the Chlamydia PCR? | am
99% sure we'll get a negative result.

Nga mihi

IAIEY

On Mon, Jun 10, 2024 at 12:33 PMSRSIIIE))
s9(2)(a) wrote:

Kia ora koutou

Just a quick update on Charlie. She is\doing well in hospital but as expected,
not eating. This is not unusual for kaka in a hospital setting and my team is
very experienced at managingthis.

In-house health teststaltgood so far. Other samples have been sent to the lab
this morning.

We'll be in tauch again once results trickle in.

5.9(2)(a) so haven't had a chance to closely review

the x-rays to see if any changes compared with previous. | will do that once |
am back at work, hopefully by the end of this week.

Nga mihi



s9(2)(a)

On Fri, Jun 7, 2024 at 2:51 PM S4&IOIQ) wrote:

Kia ora all,
No health screening had started here in Te Anau before Charlie’s transfer, forwhich | apologise.

For context, both permanent Rangers are on leave for the month of June; with our usual two
casual staff overseas. As a result, the Te Anau Bio team have steppediin to cover. It has been
mostly myself and two others that have trained up and have been‘covering daily shifts at the
Bird Sanctuary. Due to limited capacity (we are trying to stay on top of our regular work at the
same time), we did not start any pre-transfer testing.

Hope this clears up any confusion, and please feel frée to eall or email me with any questions or
concerns. A phone call is likely best at the moment while | am working extra hours and away
from my desk.

Thank you very much for the update regarding/Charlie settling in, | will pass the update along to
staff when | next speak with them. We'really appreciate that you were able to take her at short
notice, and a week earlier than anticipated. Thank you.

Nga mihi nui,

S9(2)(9)(ii)

From: SE[@AIEY

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:49 PM
To: MAIC)D)
oS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka



If we can please have results forwarded to us so we don't double up and
waste $$ that would be great.

s9(2)(a)

On Fri, Jun 7, 2024 at 1:47 PM 3GIOIQ)
wrote:

Thanks 5(2)

| did ask them to start health screening in anticipation ofthe-move on the
14th...so at least one set of samples should have gone.

| assured @DBG that Charlie would be have allL.necessary Health checks
before arriving at the gardens.

Thanks so much

S9(2)(9)(il)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SJAIE)]

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:38:19 PM

LEHs9(2)(9) (i)
[d9s9(2)(a)

Subject: Charlie Kaka

Kia.ora Koutou

Charlie has arrived in Dunedin safe and sound and is settling in to her
enclosure and actively exploring and chewing the browse we've offered.

We'll let her settle for a few days and then start the process of health checks.

I'll let you know the results once we have them.



further to your email, because Charlie was moved up to Dunedin a
week earlier than planned | highly doubt any health screening was done so we
will take all the samples up here. We'll be doing blood tests (Biochemistry,
CBC, PCV, TP) to screen for general overall health, we'll check lead levels as
that is often an issue in captive kaka, we'll check fibrinogen levels to assess
inflammation and how she is responding to treatment for arthritis, we'll take
samples for Chlamydia and PBFD as well as do some faecal screening. We'll
do most of this sampling while she is under general anaesthesia so we carn
also get a fresh set of x-rays to assess the old fractures.

Nié mihi
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Caution - This message and aceompanying data may contain information that is
confidential or subject to legal‘privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are
notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is
prohibited. If you received this email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all
copies of the messagedand attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank
you.

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is
confidential or-subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are
notified‘that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is
prohibited: If you received this email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all
caples of the message and attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank
your



From: SEIGIEID)

Sent on: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 12:05:43 AM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Thanks,
Have them refer any questions to SEIGICN@].

Cheers,

S9(2)(9)

From: SE[AIE)I()]

Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 12:03,PM

To N

Sukject: Re: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Thanks EAIE)

Justin caseyou try to get hold of me, I'm expecting to be in the field today and tomorrow,
assuming the weather improves.

Should be back in the office on Thursday, I'll pass this on to 34¢3] and SIAIENDO], who's
covering at the bird park today, just in case any questions come his way

Cheers



FTIAS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: 04 June 2024 10:38
eHs9(2)(9)(i)

Subject: RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

i

See my comments below.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)
I see thatSII¢AMM is out on leave, so | have cc’d inSIE3I())

From: SEI@AIC)IW)]
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 9:25 AM
To:

Cc
Sukject: RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Cheers for the heads up team.

Be good for us to have some reactive messages up our sleeve covering
e Why are we moving Charlie?

She is being moved as part of our 24425 flocking plan. We are concentrating the breeding birds
at Dunedin Botanic Gardens (DBG)é@s a means of increasing productivity, allowing the

possibility of Al (artificial insemination) and fostering of chicks.

The captive South Island kaka breeding programme is very important in supporting the establishment of the species at new
sites. The captive programme has the potential to provide a reliable, regular source of juveniles for release programmes.

Captive management objectives (from Captive Management Plan)

Objective 1:Maximise preductivity of the captive population, to produce South Island (SI) kaka for release into the wild at

release sites.

Objective 2:Manage the'SI kaka captive population to maximise the genetic diversity available for each reintroduction site.

Objective 3:Supportreintroduction programmes by providing quality captive-reared kaka suitable for release at ecosystem
restoration(sitesiapproved by DOC, to establish viable self-sustaining populations.

e  How do we prioritise birds for moving?
We prioritized moving all breeding birds to DBG last season. Charlie was not moved as Te Anau
staff objected. We had an extremely successful season. We had pairs that had never bred
before producing eggs, but too inexperienced to raise them. We used our older and very
experienced pairs to foster the eggs or chicks. Charlie has raised multiple clutches, has
accepted additional eggs added to her nest. Our intention is to utilise her to foster eggs
and/chicks from the higher priority birds (with new genetics), as she is proven to be a very good
mother.

e What are the risks to her health and how do we mitigate them?
She may be stressed by the move, and we may see a change in her behaviour. Charlie will
receive a health assessment on arrival at Dunedin Wildlife Hospital (DWH), and | will touch



base with staff at both DBG and DWH weekly to monitor her transition. Two former male
breeding partners of Charlie are also currently held at DBG and this should help Charlie adjust
to her new surroundings by having familiar birds around her. DBG is an excellent facility with
qualified staff, we are confident in their abilities to look after the welfare of this bird.

e What’s the plan if the new aviary doesn’t work out
We will reassess if Charlie doesn’t settle into the aviary at DBG, in consultation with DBG, DWH
staff. The bird’s welfare is the priority.

FRHS9(2)(9)(i)
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 9:19 AM
To: SE(EAIC)()

Fs9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Morning all

| have read the context behind the online petition and have spoken.toE&A from media. |
agree with re me being comms contact with support from EEl®4}.team with respect to key
technical messages which are all likely to be focused on why and risks of moving Charlie. All

pretty standard stuff | suspect.

Cheers

FEIHS9(2)(g)(ii)
Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 4:16 PM

9
@R 9(2)(g)(ii)
Subject: FW: Charlie Kaka - Onliné Petition
Importance: High

Kia ora koutou,

Please note below.a Change.org petition regarding transfer of a captive kaka from the
DOC-run Te Anau bird sanctuary to the Dunedin Botanic Gardens aviaries as part of the
DOC-run captive'breeding programme for S| Kaka.

— | think you are lead contact for any commes required on this (as accountable
manager for Te Anau bird sanctuary), but happy to support with messages on Sl Kaka
captive breeding programme (as accountable manager for that).

Not€ this petition has also been forwarded to me from ZEENW)

Nga mihi,
S9(
s9(2)(g)(ii)




www.doc.govt.nz

From: S4@3l)I()}

Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 11:02 AM
IEAs9(2)(a)

Ce: S

Subject: RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

3ls9(2)
Thank you for bringing this to our attention.
I've cc’d SEIPAl(){D) so we can discuss a course of action.

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)

From: SPAIE))

Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 10:43 AM
To: SE(EA)()
s9(2)(a)

Subject: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Kia ora EIAICN@] and

It has been brought to our attention that ‘Christina Abramowicz’ has started an
online petition to stop Charlie being moved. She has circulated this in a New

Zealand Avian & Exotic Veterinarians group on Facebook SE¢AIEY , and
she has likely circulated.it elsewhere too. SEIAIEY

Please see the attached screenshots as well as

the link to the petition.

We just wanted to bring this to your attention if you wanted to take any further
action. We would also be happy to take Charlie earlier if you feel that is
warranted.

httpg: #/ Www.change.org/p/help-charlie-girl-k%C4%81k%C4%81-nz-forest-parrot-
stéy-ivher-home-of-24-years

Nga mihi
s9(2)(q)((ii)




NNNNNNN

From: SEIGIEID)

Sent on: Monday, June 3, 2024 9:25:04 PM

To: s9(2)(9)(i)
I

CC: S9(2)(g)(i)
I

Subject: RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Cheers for the heads up team.
Be good for us to have some reactive messages up our sleeve covering

¢ Why are we moving Charlie?
¢ How do we prioritise/birds for moving?
e What are the risks'to her health and how do we mitigate them?
e What’s the planiifthe new aviary doesn’t work out
From: SAIC)(D)
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 9:19 AM
To: SBICND)

SubjectRE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Morning all

| have read the context behind the online petition and have spoken to from media. |
agree With re me being comms contact with support from team with respect to key
technical messages which are all likely to be focused on why and risks of moving Charlie. All
pretty standard stuff | suspect.

Cheers



From: SEl@Al))

Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 4:16 PM
To: SE(EA))

@315 9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: FW: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition
Importance: High

Kia ora koutou,

Please note below a Change.org petition regarding transfer of a captive k?k? from the DOC-run
Te Anau bird sanctuary to the Dunedin Botanic Gardens aviaries as part of the DOC-run captive
breeding programme for SI K?k?.

SeIW | think you are lead contact for any comms required on this (as accountable\manager for
Te Anau bird sanctuary), but happy to support with messages on Sl K?k? captive breeding
programme (as accountable manager for that).

Note this petition has also been forwarded to me from E[E3IE)E)

Ng? mihi,
s9(2)(g)(ii)

FRIHS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: MondayjJune 3, 2024 11:02 AM
1ICHs9(2)(a)

Subject:RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

=11s9(2)

Thank you for bringing this to our attention.

I’'ve cc’d SLEAE)D) so we can discuss a course of action.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)



From: SEIGIE)ID)

Sent on: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 11:05:24 PM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii) a

Subject: RE: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

Thanks all, have had a text from confirming he’s happy to.sign this off too.

Will send on to the reporter before midday.

In the mean time, do we have any images of.Charlie that we can supply? I’'ll check with the local
team too.

Cheers

From: 3B

Sent: Thursday, June'6, 2024 10:27 AM
To:

Subject: RE:Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

Kia ora SEI¥3)

Thanks, | am comfortable with the below messaging.
Nga mihi,
SO(

From: SE[AIE)ID)]

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 9:59 AM



Subject: RE: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

Good morning @3]

That comment by is good.
S9(2)

From: 3B

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 9:51 AM

Subject: RE: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

ThanksEEIBION@) 1've incorporated those changes.

Any other feedback SIEAIEND) ?

Attributed to SIAAIC)D]

Charlie is a much-loved female’South Island kdka who has been with the Te Anau Bird
Sanctuary for a number of years:

She is also an excellentrparent and foster parent and has raised multiple clutches of chicks,
accepting additional eggs from genetically valuable wild stock into her nests.

South Island kaka‘are/nationally vulnerable. As part of our captive management breeding
programme, we’'re currently concentrating captive breeding pairs to one site to help boost
the number of chicks available for release into new wild sites.

Having them at one site helps us manage things like fostering, and makes the use of
Artificial Insemination for genetic diversity much easier.

Last-year was a particularly bumper year with kaka pairs that had never bred before
producing eggs with much needed genetic diversity to the population. However a lot of these
birds are inexperienced parents, so the support of a keen, experienced female bird like
Charlie would be invaluable.

Bird welfare is always our number one priority. Before making the decision to move Charlie,
we consulted a wide range of expert veterinarians, parrot specialists and people who have
been involved in her care over the years. While there are some health considerations, the
team at the new aviary are well experienced and equipped to provide the expert care she
requires. This is also not the first time she has been moved — she was temporarily relocated



for veterinary treatment three years ago without incident. There are also familiar birds there
to help ease the transition. We'll be closely monitoring the move, and there will be regular
health checks and if there are any concerns that she is not settling in we will reassess the
change.

From: 3B

Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 5:02 PM

Subject: RE: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

Hi Team,
Answered your questions in the first paragraph in red.
| have made a few changes below.

I changed it to PARROT behaviour specialist, because those that'we consulted KNOW kaka and
kakapo behaviour. We did not consult with bird behaviourispecialists that were recommended

to us (by SEIAIEWM and others).

From: SE[AIE)ID)]

Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 4:34 PM
To:

Subject: RE: Media inquiry~ Te Anau Kaka

Hey team,

Here’s\my first draft. Please feel free to suggest edits for accuracy — I’m not precious.
Presuming she is a Sl kdka? YES Also —are we ok to name the aviary where she’s going? It will
get out one way or another, but | would rather not. It opens DBG to more harassment. | haven’t
but let me know if you think we can. Will she be on public display there? All the birds at DBG are
on public display, but kaka in the breeding programme have aviaries with privacy screening and
bushes and balustrades that don’t allow the public to get up close to the aviary, so there are
times when the birds cannot be seen.

While generally we don’t encourage naming species in our media responses due to
anthropomorphism, in this instance | think it would be weird if we didn’t, given how well known
the bird is.



Attributed to @)

Charlie is a much-loved female kaka who has been with the Te Anau Bird Sanctuary for a
number of years.

She is also an excellent parent and has raised multiple clutches of her

own chicks, and accepted additional eggs from genetically valuable wild stock into her
nest. Charlie will be an excellent foster parent to eggs and chicks of less experienced and
genetically valuable birds.

As part of our captive management breeding programme, we’re currently concentrating,captive
breeding pairs to one site to help boost the number of chicks available for release inte,new wild
sites.

Having them at one site helps up manage things like fostering, and makes exptetifig the use of
Artificial Insemination for genetic diversity much easier.

Last year was a particularly bumper year with kaka pairs that had nevet bred before producing
eggs with much needed genetic diversity to the population. Howevera'lot of these birds are
inexperienced parents, so the support of a keen, experienced female bird like Charlie would be
invaluable.

Bird welfare is always our number one priority. Beforg’making the decision to move Charlie, we
consulted a wide range of expert veterinarians, birdtbehaviourspectatists parrot

specialists and people who have been involved ingher care over the years. While there are some
health considerations, the team at the new,avidry are well experienced and equipped to provide
the expert care she requires. This is also not the first time she has been moved — she was
temporarily relocated for veterinary tr€atment 3 years ago without incident. There are also
familiar birds there to help ease the transition. We’ll be closely monitoring the move, and there
will be regular health checks apd if there are any concerns that she is not settling in we will
reassess the change.

FTIAS9(2)(9)(ii)

[@Rs9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: FW: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

Hi team

Please see below a media query on the female kaka movement plans.



I’m happy to start drafting a response based on the info SEIGIC)MM sent through yesterday.

From: SRSIPAIEY! stuff.co.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 2:22 PM

CHs9(2)(9) (i)

Subject: Re: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

If that's possible?

Also - what are the chances of filming the bird with one of the DOC Te Anau staff?

s9(2)(a)

On Wed, 5 Jun 2024 at.14:18, SEIAIE)1)] wrote:
HeySE[@3)

Thanks for your query, will follow up now.

Just checking deadline —do you mean 10am tomorrow?

Cheers

From: SRIAAIEY stuff.co.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 2:15 PM
To: Media <Media@doc.govt.nz>
Subject: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka




Good afternoon

We have received an email from SIG3IE) D] , whois a volunteer at Punanga Manu o

Te Anau.

She is concerned that the Captive Breeding program is planning to move Charlie Girl, a kaka
from Te Anau to Dunedin despite concerns and attempts to discuss alternative options.

She says the move is likely to be stressful and traumatic for Charlie Girl due to her special
needs and background.

She says Charlie's keepers are concerned about the move but their concerns have been
overridden.

Canyou please explain why the Captive breeding program has decided to méve 'Charlie from Te
Anau to Dunedin?

We understand that she is currently on medication and there is some.concern about that, and
stopping her voluntary physical therapy program.

Has the programme taken the concerns of her carers into consideration?

has suggested keeping Charlie Girl at Te Anau,and having an appropriate male placed
with her there. She says this would benefit Charlie Girl, it would also benefit the Captive
Breeding Program, utilize the experience of the team,at-Te Anau, and provide an isolated
breeding pair in the event of a disease outbreak. €an you please explain why or why not this is
possible?

If you could please get back to me by 0am this morning, that would be appreciated.

Thanks

s9(2)(a)




The information contained in this e-mail message and any accompanying files is or may be confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, any
use, dissemination, reliance, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail or any attached files is unauthorised. This e-mail is subject to copyright.
No part of it should be reproduced, adapted or communicated without the written consent of the copyright owner. If you have received this e-mail in
error please advise the sender immediately by return e-mail or telephone and delete all copies. Stuff does not guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of any information contained in this e-mail or attached files. Internet communications are not secure, therefore Stuff does not accept
legal responsibility for the contents of this message or attached files.

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is
confidential or subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are
notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is
prohibited. If you received this email in error, please notify us immediately and eraseall
copies of the message and attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank
you.

The information contained in this e-mail message and any accompanying files is or may be confidential. If you arepot¥he intended recipient, any
use, dissemination, reliance, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail or any attached files is unauthorised.£This &-mail is subject to copyright.
No part of it should be reproduced, adapted or communicated without the written consent of the copyright ownek. If you have received this e-mail in
error please advise the sender immediately by return e-mail or telephone and delete all copies. Stuff does gfot gudrafitee the accuracy or
completeness of any information contained in this e-mail or attached files. Internet communications are qotés€cure, therefore Stuff does not accept
legal responsibility for the contents of this message or attached files.

From: SEIGIEY
Sent on: Friday, June 7,2024 3:17:28 AM
To: S9(2)(g)(ii)

CC: S9(2)(g)(ii)
I < ON
L NN

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

Kia ora 5(?_)

No worries at all, we can collect all the samples. Because Charlie has been
transferred up here earlier this gives plenty of time to get all the results before
she's transferred to DBG.



Nga mihi

s9(2)(a)

On Fri, Jun 7, 2024 at 2:51 PM 34GICID) wrote:

Kia ora all,

No health screening had started here in Te Anau before Charlie’s transfer, for which | apologise.

For context, both permanent Rangers are on.leave for the month of June, with our usual two
casual staff overseas. As a result, the Te Anau'Bio team have stepped in to cover. It has been
mostly myself and two others that have trained up and have been covering daily shifts at the
Bird Sanctuary. Due to limited capacity'(we are trying to stay on top of our regular work at the
same time), we did not start any.prestransfer testing.

Hope this clears up‘any confusion, and please feel free to call or email me with any questions or
concerns. A phone.call is likely best at the moment while | am working extra hours and away
from my desk.

Thankyou very much for the update regarding Charlie settling in, | will pass the update along to
staff when | next speak with them. We really appreciate that you were able to take her at short
notice, and a week earlier than anticipated. Thank you.

Nga mihi nui,



S9(2)(9)(ii)

FTIAS9(2)(a)

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:49 PM
To: SE[AIC)D)
Cc: SAI)ID)

s9(2)(a)
Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

If we can please have results forwarded to us so we don't double up and
waste $$ that would be'great.




On Fri, Jun 7, 2024 at 1:47 PMXGICIQ]

S

Thanks &)

| did ask them to start health screening in anticipation of the move on the
14th...so at least one set of samples should have gone.

| assured @DBG that Charlie would be have all necessary Health-checks
before arriving at the gardens.

Thanks so much

SAIC)D)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SJAIE)]

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024/1:38:19 PM

To: SE[GIC)D)
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
week earlier than planned | highly doubt any health screening was done so.we
will take all the samples up here. We'll be doing blood tests (Biochemiistry,
CBC, PCV, TP) to screen for general overall health, we'll check lead\levels as
that is often an issue in captive kaka, we'll check fibrinogen levels.to assess
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

From: HAICIO)

Sent on: Monday, June 10, 2024 4:12:27 AM
To: S9(2)(g)(ii)
ccC: S9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

Hi SEIAIE)]

Any update on whether Charlie isdeing dropped off here tomorrow.

Rega rds

9(2)(g)(ii), s:9(2)()
Dunedin City Council, 50 The Octagon, Dunedin

PO Box 5045, Dunedin 9054

New Zealand



www.dunedin.govt.nz

If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that @ny fltfer use, dissemination,
distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SJAICI0)]

Sent: Friday, 7 June 2024 1:32 p.m.
To: SE[AIEY)
Subject: Re: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

ls9(2
As the move was planned health screening was underway.

I'll double check that all results were clear:..and of course the hospital won't send her to you unless
she's clear..

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)

Get Outlook for Android

FLIAS9(2)(a)

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:45:07 PM

To: SEIGIC)D)

Subject: RE: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

Hi SEIAIE)]



All good at this end for Tuesday there has been some earlier discussion around housing Charlie Girl
here however just need to you confirm that first as another Kaka will need to be shifted first but no
point creating any undue stress for that bird until everything is confirmed .

With bringing this move forward | am assuming all the necessary pre relocation health screening and
testing will have been completed.

Rega rds

If this message is not intended for you pleaSe @glete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination,
distribution or reproduction of this mategial by you is prohibited..

From: SAIC)ID)

Sent: Friday, 7 June'2024 10:31 a.m.
To: SAIEY

Subject: RE: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

Thanks

Charlie.is'going over today to the Wildlife Hospital.

| stispect they will be in touch with me once they have her. She will definitely stay there for the
weekend, and Monday.

| can get in touch with you Monday to let you know what the hospital has to say about holding
her and the appropriate time to move her to DBG.

Cheers,

S9(2)(9)



From: S4AIEY

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:30 AM

To: SAICO))

Subject: RE: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

Hi SEIBIE)]

If it was today or weekend and there has already been some discussion with the team at the wildlife
hospital then best it goes there.

| am meeting with SI@AIE&Y at the aviary later this morning as to her capacity and readiness so can
advise immediately after that.

Rega rds

9(2)(9)(ii), s.9(2)(a)

If this message is notNntended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination,
distribution or repgductipr®of this material by you is prohibited..

From: S4AIC)()

Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 5:19 p.m.
To:SEIAIEY)

Subject: Re: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG
As early as tomorrow or Tuesday.

She can stay at DWH for a bit.

| haven't got confirmation from anyone yet. | just know that there is an opportunity (someone
driving over)...so management thought they should take advantage given the circumstances....

And DWH did offer to take her in earlier.



Al

Get Outlook for Android

From: SJAIE))
Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 4:59:50 PM

To: SEIGIC)D)
(@fs9(2)(a) S9(2)(9)(i)

Subject: RE: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

Hi SIAIE)

It will be SICAIM who is looking after the Aviary in S¢4I absence that would be your contact for
receiving Charlie but | will need to discuss this with her tomorrow to make sure she_ is comfortable
with that and there is appropriate space to house Charlie.

Do you have any idea when the transfer might be.

Rega rds
9(2)(9)(ii), s.9(2)(a)

IRthis message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination,
distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SAIC)ID)

Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 4:30 p.m.
To: E[AIEY

9 Hs9(2)(a) Bs9(2)(a)
Subject: RE: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG




el

Management at Te Anau has been in touch today to say they think it is wise to bring Charlie over
earlier than planned.

They are in contact with S8l and team at DWH.

Whom should Il contact when Charlie is cleared to transfer to DBG sometime next

week. SE[#3)

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)

From: SEPAE))

Sent: Thursday, June 6, 2024 1:37 PM
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

@s9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

F1s9(2)(9)

Thanks for the heads up.

Obviously its not for DCC to get involved in this matter and hcan understand any frustrations arising
from this latest issue. Hopefully the earlier incident inyolving the relocation and housing of Jimmy
here at the BG Aviary and the impact of that is an isolated incident.

Should there be any enquires coming our waythese will be directed back to yourself or perhaps
s9(2)(g)(ii) if that’s the correct channel.

Regards

T -
T

iz DUNEDIN | 53ese
%" CITY COUNCIL | otepoti




If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use, dissemination,
distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From: SAIC)ID)

Sent: Thursday, 6 June 2024 11:37 a.m.

To: SAIEY

Subject: media re: upcoming transfer of kaka to DBG

Hi
With away, | thought it best to give you a heads up regarding the transfer of the

female kaka from Te Anau, SICAIC)DRERSIA]E)
I

She has started an online petition and has reached out'to Stuff,
to generate media coverage.

https://www.change.org/p/help-charlie-girl-k%C4%81k%C4%81-nz-feresi~parrot-stay-
in-her-home-of-24-years

We intend to move Charlie to DWH on 14 June for a health checksup, and she will come
to the Gardens on the 17" when SS@N returns. SSAN has had SEIGIEWR on site before
filming and observing Jimmy. In the absence of SACAM and 4@ | felt it best to leave the

transfer until the 17", | will have a conversation tomerrowWwith Te Anau management
about the possibility of moving Charlie to the hospital'sooner, to prevent SEIGIEW from
organizing a protest on the 14™,

If you have any concerns, please feel freefo.call me SLAICVEEIAICO)D)

SGICCN I ;g the response

to the inquiry from Stuff.

S9(2)(9)(ii)

Our response to the cdrrent inquiry:

Attributed to Wﬂ!

Charlie is a much:loyved female South Island k&ka who has been with the Te Anau Bird
Sanctuary for asnumber of years.

She is also an excellent parent and foster parent and has raised multiple clutches of chicks,
accepting additional eggs from genetically valuable wild stock into her nests.

South Island kaka are nationally vulnerable. As part of our captive management breeding
programme, we're currently concentrating captive breeding pairs to one site to help boost
the number of chicks available for release into new wild sites.

Having them at one site helps us manage things like fostering, and makes the use of
Artificial Insemination for genetic diversity much easier.

Last year was a particularly bumper year with kaka pairs that had never bred before
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
To: S[AIE)D)

Subject: Media inquiry - Te Anau Kaka

Good afternoon

We have received an emailfrom, who is a volunteerat Punanga
Manu o Te Anau.

She is concerned that the Captive Breeding program is planning to move Charlie Girl, a
kaka from Te Anau to Dunedin despite concerns and attempts to.discuss alternative
options.

She says the move is likely to be stressful and traumatic for Chatlie Girl due to her
special needs and background.

She says Charlie's keepers are concerned about the movebut their concerns have been
overridden.

Canyou please explain why the Captive bregding program has decided to move Charlie
from Te Anau to Dunedin?

We understand that she is currently on/medication and there is some concern about
that, and stopping her voluntary physical.therapy program.

Has the programme taken the coneerns of her carers into consideration?

HEIPIEY has suggested keeping’Charlie Girl at Te Anau and having an appropriate
male placed with her there. She says this would benefit Charlie Girl, it would also
benefit the Captive Breeding Program, utilize the experience of the team at Te Anau,
and provide an isolated breeding pair in the event of a disease outbreak. Can you
please explain why-orwhy not this is possible?

If you could please get back to me by 10am this morning, that would be appreciated.

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

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information‘that is
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

Caution - This message and accompanying data mayscontain information that is
confidential or subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are
notified that any use, dissemination, distribution ar cepying of this message or data is
prohibited. If you received this email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all
copies of the message and attachments. We ‘@pologise for the inconvenience. Thank
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
prohibited. If you received this‘'email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all
copies of the message and attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank
you.

From: GIOIQ)

Sent on: Thursday, June 6, 2024 4:22:20 AM
To: s9(2)(a)

soQ@® ]
CC: s9(2)(a)

Subject: Receiving Charlie Early



Hi,
| just got a call from SEIPAI()N at Te Anau saying that there is an opportunity to bring Charlie
tomorrow. He was asking for a direct phone humber for you.

| understand that he had emailed about bringing her next Tuesday.

Can someone call himEBEIAIE))

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)

From: =@
Sent on: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 8:38:16 PM

Subject: RE: Moving Charlie (date)

Kia ora B&ICN0)

| am comfortable with this approach if you,and SEI?3 are. But, is this something that
can be achieved without the rangers notifying SSICICIR anyway?

Nga mihi,

S9(

From: EE@Al()D)}

Sent: Wednesday, June 5;2024 5:19 PM
To: SR
Subject: Moving Charlie (date)

Hi,
| have been cofrésponding with DWH and SEJ#Nl regarding moving Charlie. We settled on June

14" to,accommodate SEIPAN being on leavs.

Howeveér, with SElPAIEY ramping things up with her online petition and emailing
reporters...We should consider moving Charlie a day or two early so thatSRI¥AIEN doesn’t
organize a group of protesters to show up on the day. EI¥AI(e)I0)]
Sy

DWH has said they will take her earlier if needed.

Cheers,
s9(2)(9)



From: SXACID
Sent on: Friday, June 7, 2024 12:00:02 AM

To: s9(2)(a)
s9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: RE: Charlie Kaka - Online Petition

Hello SEl#4)

Thank you.
Apologies for the slow acknowledgement | was sick last week and have spent this week

catching up.
| think we have been successful in ignoring this and | understand thre-bird is on the move today.

| look forward to the results of your assessment and then lots.of successfully raised chicks.

From: S4¢3E)

Sent on: Friday, June7s/2024 3:17:28 AM
To: s9(2)(9)(if)

CC:

Subjéct:'Re: Charlie Kaka

s9(2)

Kia ora

No worries at all, we can collect all the samples. Because Charlie has been
transferred up here earlier this gives plenty of time to get all the results before she's
transferred to DBG.

Nga mihi



From: SEIBICIO)

Sent on: Sunday, June 9, 2024 10:20:06 PM

O <5 (2) (9) ()
|

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage.

Hi,
| think the story is balanced as well, all things considered.

Yes, a follow-up in 3 weeks, is probably a good time frame. G&&IQ will be back and have some
time to monitor Charlie.

I’ll touch base with SEIEAR at Queens Garden to see how plans to move birds to Te Anau are
progressing.

S9(2)(9)

From: SEIAIC)(D)]

Sent:'Monday, June 10, 2024 10:04 AM
To:

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage

Hi SEIBICND)]

When do you want to think about a followup?



Based on assessment at DWH and settle in period three week?

FTINAS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 9:46 AM
To: AIC)ID]

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage

Thanks @ and good idea re follow up story!

From: 3B

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 9:37 AM
To: AIC)ID]

[@Hs9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Charlie coverage

Morning team,

The Charlie story is in-today’s Southland Times and went online yesterday. Overall fairly
balanced, and alongithe lines we would expect. Concerns for kaka ‘Charlie Girl’ as DOC moves
her from Te AnathfoDunedin | Stuff

| think it would'bé good for us to revisit this once Chalie is settled in to her new place to give
some reassurance to the community she continues to do well. Perhaps we can tie this in to any
announcements of new kaka coming to Te Anau?

Willbe in touch if any further follow ups.

Cheers






out of scope

From: S4PAl()I{D)

Sent: Monday, 10 June 2024 10:49 am

Hs9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Transfer of kaka to Te Anau

52

| dropped the ball. | haven’t been in touch withEEIPA re: health checks for Tumu and Waewae.




Prior to transfer they should have disease screening as per usual. | thought you guys might have
started that, but again, we were anticipating a different date for Charlie’s transfer, and SEI#3N is
away so, Ceasar transfer is also delayed.

No worries, we can start the ball rolling. Could you send off fecal samples to SIEAIEY I'll see
if | can get a hold of SEI6A)

Cheers,

S9(2)(9)

From: SEIAAIEY

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 10:42 AM

To: AW
W Hs9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Transfer of kaka to Te Anau

Hi EEIAIE)]

| have had no contact re the transfer date from Te4#nau'but have also had no contact from SI# re
getting bloods done? Is this something that could be done after they are transferred?

We have been hectic here with the tuatara opening but things are going back to normal and could
transfer them next week if that suits everyone. | will get in touch with SICAIC)N or & to see where
they are at.

Thanks for the contact-details, media coverage is sorted by ICC Comms team but | will let my
managers know that there may be media coverage too.

s9(2)(a)



FTINAS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Monday, 10 June 2024 10:32 am
To: SSIAIEY

Subject: Transfer of kaka to Te Anau

Hi Team,

I’m checking in to see how the transfer of kaka t6,T€ Anau is going. Have you scheduled a date
for the transfer?

| understood that SEICAIC)M had made a trip.to Invercargill to check in on the birds in the last
week or two.

You’ll have seen the mediaCoverage about Charlie being moved. There is a chance that there
will be media interest insthe'birds “replacing” Charlie.

If you’d like any.support with that contactSEI¢AM in the local DOC office, and cc me on your
communicatiens.

Let merknow if there is anything you from me.

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

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information:that:is
confidential or subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are
notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is
prohibited. If you received this email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all
copies of the message and attachments. We apologise for the«inconvenience. Thank
you.

From:

Sent on: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 10:20:29 PM

To:

ce:

Subject: RE; Update on Charlie

Thanks so much!

s9(2)(9)

From: SJAIE)]

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 10:18 AM



To: SAIC)I)
Cc: S4AIEY

Subject: Re: Update on Charlie

Kia oraSEI@AIC);

Just waiting on beak and feather and chlamydia results but all other tests have come back
normal. She is doing well in hospital, coping with being assist fed and is not displaying any
concerning behaviour or signs of being in pain. The blood test that gives us an indication of pain
is also within the normal range which means the metacam is seemingly working so Wwe,will chat
With about doing a trial of reducing the dose once it's spring so we can aim to,get her on
the lowest dose possible that still manages her discomfort.

Nga mihi
s9(2)(a)

On Thu, Jun 13, 2024 at 10:13 AM SEIBIENG)

wrote:

Sorry to bother you,

The attention on Charliethas made it to the desk of the Deputy Director-General Regional
Operations

I may be asked fer'an update, as he’s been asked to respond.

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

Sent on: Friday, June 14,2024 1:10:20 AM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage.

Cheers - I'll let the reporter know to check back later next week instead. Any issues with me
mentioning any of the below?

From: 3B

Sent: Friday, June 14, 2024 1:08 PM

LCHS9(2)(9) (i)

Subject: Re: Charlie coverage.

No, she is still at hospital.

More to do with SEI&R beingofrleave. But got this update yesterday.

Just waiting on beakand feather and chlamydia results but all other tests have come back
normal. Shedis doing well in hospital, coping with being assist fed and is not displaying any
concerning\behaviour or signs of being in pain. The blood test that gives us an indication of pain
is also’within the normal range which means the metacam is seemingly working.

Get Outlook for Android

From: S4AIC)IW)]

Sent: Friday, June 14, 2024 12:42:55 PM
To:



Ce: SO

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage.

Hiteam,

We’ve had a media request from Stuff on how Charlie’s doing at her new home - has she settled
in, any behavioural concerns etc.

Has she actually moved to the new aviary yet or is she still at DWH?

Media query below

Hi there

Could we please get an update on how the kaka Charlie Bird is doinginther new home in
Dunedin?

Has she settled in?

Has she shown any signs of distress such as behavioural issues orillness?

An online petition calling for her to stay at Te Anau has more than 1000 signatures - can
you please address that in your response?

If you could please get back to us by 10am on Monday that would be appreciated.

From: SAl()D)}

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 10:20 AM

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage.

Hi,

| think the story is balanced.as well, all things considered.

Yes, a follow-up in 3weeks, is probably a good time frame. SEIPAR will be back and have some
time to monitor Charlie’.

s9(2)(g)

FTTIHS9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 10:04 AM

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage

F11s9(2)(9)(ii)

When do you want to think about a followup?




Based on assessment at DWH and settle in period three week?

From: SEIAIE)ID)]
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 9:46 AM
To: SAIC)I(D]

Subject: RE: Charlie coverage

Thanks SJ@ and good idea re follow up story!

FIAS9(2)(9)(ii)
Sent: Monda, June 10, 2024 9:37 AM
To: SE[AIC) D)

[FRs9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Charlie coverage

Morning team,

The Charlie story is in today’s Southland Times and went online yesterday. Overall fairly
balanced, and along the lines we would expect. Cancerns for kaka ‘Charlie Girl’ as DOC moves
her from Te Anau to Dunedin | Stuff

| think it would be good for us to revisit this,once Chalie is settled in to her new place to give
some reassurance to the communitysShe continues to do well. Perhaps we can tie this in to any
announcements of new kaka comingito.fe Anau?

Will be in touch if any further follow.ups.

Cheers



From: S9(2)(g)(ii)

Sent on: Thursday, June 13, 2024 8:37:50 PM

To: s9(2)(g)(ii)

CccC: s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: FOR ACTION due Fri 14/6 - Charlie the kaka
ReactionsSummary: BIEI0) , like, 6/13/2024/9:05:00 PM

Thanks every-one for your efforts here.
| think it reads really well.

| will forward on to so Aaron can review. If there are any questions/changes required before it
goes out | will be in touch.

Cheers

From: SE[AIE)ID)]

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 4:45 PM

To: AIEI(D)

o }1s9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: FOR ACTION due Fri 14/6 - Charlie the kaka

No probs, changes made now.

Cheers team

From: SEIAIE)I(D)]

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 4:38 PM

To: EAIEOIQ)



@ Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: FOR ACTION due Fri 14/6 - Charlie the kaka

Not the whole sentence...just the pain bit....

Get Outlook for Android

From: SJAICI0)]

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 4:36:58 PM

To: SEGIC))
@ Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: FOR ACTION due Fri 14/6 - Charlie the kaka

() |

| think it's great...and would be excellent to read to students.

Two things. | missed a diacritic on the Brook Sanctuary:...see attached.

And the sentence near the end where it mentions not exacerbating her pain....can we cut that

out.?

Otherwise I'm very happy with it.

Thanks



Thanks SIAIC)M and @)

I’ve had a go with the info provided, noting that the writer is a teacher and her response may be
shared with students I’ve tried to pitch it at the right level.

Let me know if I’'ve misrepresented any of the facts in the process.

Cheers

From: SJAICI0)]

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 12:23 PM
To: SEAIC)D)

Cc: SAI)I)

Subject: RE: FOR ACTION due Fri 14/6 - Charlie the kaka

Hi everyone,

Attached is information about the captive programme, the reason for Charlie’s move and a bit
about Charlie herself. | hope that formatis helpfulin formulating a response. is happy with
the information provided.

What | forgot to mention is that 2 kaka are scheduled to be transferred to Te Anau. I'll leave it to
you if that is relevant to the letter and the response.

Cheers,

s9(2)(9)
From: 3B

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 10:21 AM

To:
Cc

Sukject: FW: FOR ACTION due Fri24/6 - Charlie the kaka

Morena 3 @AIE)]

Thanks for helping with,this!

Please see the letteratthe bottom of this email train that requires a response which will be
signed out by AaronFleming.

If you can provide the guts of the response and we will put this into an appropriate format.

| have discussed the timeline withSll and it is not set in stone!

Nga.mihi

From: SEIAIC)IW)]

Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 4:39 PM
To: AIC)ID]

Subject: FOR ACTION due Fri 14/6 - Charlie the kaka

JlIs9(2)

Canyour team please prepare a response for Aaron to send to the Fiordland College re
Charlie the kaka below?



59(?_) has included the media response used so please ensure our messaging is
consistent.

Can |l please have a draft for Aaron’s review by 3pm this Friday.

Thanks

From: S]]
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2024 12:17 PM

To: Aaron Fleming SI031(e)()]

Subject: RE: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC

Here’s the media response we used. Also hoping to be able to do a follow up_stoery in the next
couple of weeks once she’s settled in to her new home. There’s also plans in the mix for two
new kaka (non breeding) to be moved to Te Anau - best check With on timings though -
it’s not public knowledge yet

Attributed to DOC SIAICID)

Charlie is a much-loved female South Island kdka whothas been with the Te Anau Bird
Sanctuary for a number of years.

She is also an excellent parent and foster.parent and has raised multiple clutches of chicks,
accepting additional eggs from genetically valuable wild stock into her nests.

South Island kaka are nationally vulnerable. As part of our captive management breeding
programme, we’re currently concentrating captive breeding pairs to one site to help boost
the number of chicks available for release into new wild sites.

Having them at one site’helps us manage things like fostering, and makes the use of
Artificial Insemination.for genetic diversity much easier.

Last year was awparticularly bumper year with kaka pairs that had never bred before
producing eggs'with much needed genetic diversity to the population. However a lot of these
birds are inexperienced parents, so the support of a keen, experienced female bird like
Charlie would be invaluable.

Bird.welfare is always our number one priority. Before making the decision to move Charlie,
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



From: SE[@AI()I(1)

Sent: Sunday, June 9, 2024 9:26 PM
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: FW: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC

Do you have anything to help us prepare a response?

Aaron Fleming mnzm ( m)
Kaihautu Matarautakl Director Operations — Southern South Island
Te Papa Atawhai Department of Conservation

(2)(9)(i), s.9(2)(a)

From: Henry Weston SJPAI(e)I{1)}

Sent: Sunday, June 9, 2024 9:24 PM
To:

Subject: Re: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC

That's a yes please from me
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From:§ ( )(g)(ii)
Sent Sunday, June 9, 2024 6:54:40°PM

Subject: RE: Att: Stephanié Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC

I’'m happy to respondto the school, if you want to delegate it down to me

Aaron Fleming mnzm (ia/he/him)

“ Kaihautu Matarautakl Director Operations — Southern South Island
Te Papa Atawhai Department of Conservation
9(2)(9)(i), s.9(2)(a)

FEIHS9(2)(9)(ii)
Sent: Saturday, June 8, 2024 3:56 PM
To: SEA){)



@ Hs9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC

Thanks Aaron, Z8IOIU)

FTIAS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 5:57 PM

To: SEIGIC)D)
S9(2)(9)(ii)

Cc:
Subject: RE: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC

There has been some media support today from S communicating why the decision‘has been
made. The park will also have two new kaka there soon. CCing in SEI¢AIM as any responséto the
school will need to ensure consistent messaging.

Aaron Fleming mnzwm (ia/he/him)
Kaihaut Matarautaki Director Operations — Southerg=Seuith Island
Te Papa Atawhai Department of Conservation

9(2)(9)(ii), s.9(2)(a)

From: SJAIC)IW)]

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 5:48 PM

To: SE[GICNQ)

Subject: RE: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry \Weéston - DOC
Who is best placed to reply to thissone? Happy to help.

Stephanie Rowe
Deputy Director-Gen€ralpBiodiversity, Heritage & Visitors
Department of Cohservation - Te Papa Atawhai

9(2)(9)(ii), s.9(2)(a)
rrom: CElQIOI0 N

Sent: Friday,/June 7, 2024 2:57 PM

To: SEIGIC)D)

Subject: Fwd: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC

Get Outlook for Android

From: SEIAIEY
Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 2:50:17 pm



RS 9(2)(g)(ii)

Subject: Att: Stephanie Rowe; Henry Weston - DOC



KAKA RESCUE - GET CHARLIE GIRL THE KAKA HOME - Captive Breeding Programme
Justification Please

This is Charlie Girl... she has lived in her Te Anau home for 24 years. Te Anau is her home, she
is very comfortable with her surroundings, birdy neighbours (captive and free), and the lovely
staff who have cared for her.over the years.

Over the years Charlie Girl successfully raised chicks with her partner Bling, before Bling was
moved to another aviary. Now, the Captive Breeding Programme, in their wisdom has uplifted
Charlie Girl and.transported her to a new aviary far away, despite much opposition to this
decision by staff and locals.

Charlie Girl has special needs, both physical and behavioral, and her team of dedicated
keepers has been successful in managing these issues. Charlie should be able to stay with the
team-that goes above and beyond for her. They know she will be suffering now as Charlie Girl
does’not like change, which puts her actual life at risk.

Charlie needs to be returned to Te Anau, and have a male brought to her. She has been
breeding for 24 years, and surely she needs stability and familiarity regarding her
environment's sounds, smells, and sights, and the voices and caring nature of her caregivers.
Kaka are at risk but exploiting an old bird to facilitate their survival is cruel.



Shall we look at this in another context? Sir Patrick Hogan owned a famous stallion, Sir
Tristram. The horse sired numerous winners - sired... the easy part, which was a job he did for
22 years. Sir Tristram was inducted into the Horse Hall of Fame, and his owner got knighted.
Sir T was not forced around the countryside, away from his beloved Cambridge Stud, to sire
more wee horsies. it was not that he was not able to, it was decided that he had done his job!

CHARLIE GIRL HAS DONE HER JOB - SHE HAS HELPED THE FUTURE OF THE KAKA
SPECIES. SO SHE DESERVES TO REST - BECAUSE SHE IS ESSENTIALLY AN OLD LADY... (if
| believe the parrot to human age conversion figure, Charlie Girl is 101 years old... she needs a
break from breeding!!).

Please direct DOC's Captive Breeding Program to let Charlie Girl return to Te
Anau and remain in her home of 24 years, with the community that loves her,
and the dedicated keepers who have supported her so well.

Yours sincerely,
SO(

From: SEIGIE)ID)

Sent on: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 4:28:08 AM

To: s9(2)(a)
N ]

cc: S9(2)(g)(i)

- TR
I

Subject: RE: Charlie Kaka

Kia ora koutou,



Thank you for sending the updates through, and for the video which is a helpful tool in figuring
our if this is a pre-existing behaviour. | do not have the answer at present, but | will meet with
SN tomorrow when he is out of the field, and we will collate all the info we have on Charlie’s
behaviours. will send this through to you, please expect a response from us by tomorrow
(Thurs) afternoon.

Nga mihi nui,

S9(2)(9)(ii)

From: SJAIE)]
Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 3:35 PM

so(2)(@)

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

Kia ora all,

Just adding to S} email above.

Charlie appeared unphased, clam and interested in her surroundings and the other kaka on
release today. Unfortunately, it was noted within the hour what appeared to me to be
stereotypical swaying behaviour.

Can we please get any relevant records for Charlie from the bird park staff or internal record
system. This would help greatly as we move forward with Charlie's care in the coming months.
As has indicated she has not been in Dunedin long enough to have established this
stereotypical looking swaying behaviour so it would be great to get clarity from your staff via
managers thanks. It may just be initial excitement from her new environment but it's good to
flag this early. Other than the moments of swaying initially she has been actively exploring her
enrichment and seems at ease.



Thanks, team

From: ESEIGIEY

Sent on: Thursday, June 20, 2024 4:47:28 AM

To: s9(2)(9)(ii)

59(2)(a) s9(2)(9)(i)
AN ]
e

CC:

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

Kia ora 5(?_)

Thanks very much-forthe update. And no rush on this at all, your team

needs to have theirleave as undisturbed as possible. For now even just
knowing it's pre-existing and has a potential trigger (being alone) is super
helpful-Hopefully now that she is not alone this will resolve but we'll
definitely/monitor her closely with and keep everyone posted if we have
coneerns.

Nga mihi



s9(2)(a)

On Thu, Jun 20, 2024 at 4:43 PM EGICIQ] wrote:

Kia ora koutou,

SCIPAN and | have just had a catch up, and can confirm that Charlie’s swinging is.a-pre-existed
behaviour. It has been observed recently and has emerged (or re-emerged) since she has been
on her own. SEIPAN also witnessed it the day she was transferred.

While our permanent Rangers are on leave, I’d prefer not to ask them for more detail. Would it
be suitable to provide you with a more thorough report once staff return to work? This would
likely be mid-July. Please let myself or SIEN know if there.are concerns with this.

Thank you all for your hard work with testing, ttansfer and settling in this week.

Nga mihi nui,

S9(2)(9)(ii)



FTIAS9(2)(9)(ii)

Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 4:28 PM

592)(@)

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
eI tomorrow when he is out of the field, and we'witt€ollate all the info we have on Charlie’s
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

Just adding to GG email above.

Charlie appeared unphased, clam and interested in her surroundings’and the
other kaka on release today. Unfortunately, it was noted within-the*hour what
appeared to me to be stereotypical swaying behaviour.

Can we please get any relevant records for Charlie from the bird park staff or
internal record system. This would help greatly as'we move forward with
Charlie's care in the coming months. As 5(2 has indicated she has not been
in Dunedin long enough to have established.this stereotypical looking swaying
behaviour so it would be great to get €larity from your staff via managers
thanks. It may just be initial excitement from her new environment but it's
good to flag this early. Other than the moments of swaying initially she has
been actively exploring herenrichment and seems at ease.

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

To: FAIOID)
(e2359(2)(9)(ii)

-

Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

Kia ora koutou

Just an update, Charlie has.been moved to Dunedin Botanic Gardens this
morning.

| also wanted'to flag a behaviour we noted on the weekend (see video
attached).

[t might be stereotypical or just something she does when she is excited (or
perhaps annoyed). | was chatting with her a little when she started doing this
display but | wasn't sure how to interpret it. She didn't seem distressed by my
presence so at this stage we're just noting it down.



has let us know that she has just observed similar behaviour once
Charlie was released into her new aviary a short while ago. So maybe an
excitement response to new/different stimuli? Either way along W|th
we'll keep a close eye on this to see if we can figure out the cause/reason and
also of course also make sure she hasn't got some long standing
stereotypical behaviour that we need to now work on. Hopefully the
stimulating environment at DBG and also now being able to socialise with so
many other kaka will eliminate any pre-existing behavioural issues.

m do you know if this behaviour has been observed.in Te'Anau? It
Wlll be helpful to help me figure out some timelines. She hasntbeen in

hospital long enough to develop any stereotypies and whenshe was in
hospital previously (2019) we did not note this behavieur.

B MG 8973.MOV

Nga mihi

s9(2)(a)

On.Mon; Jun 17, 2024 at 2:41 PM
wrote:

Kia ora koutou

I've looped into the email chain now that she is back from leave.



Almost all of Charlie's test results are back (Chlamydia due tomorrow
apparently), and | am happy to say we have not picked up any infectious
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
dose rate of this drug to the minimum amount that will still effectively manage
her pain. This is always the goal with any long term treatment; to find the
lowest effective dose. Long term metacam can have sidg’effects on the
kidneys so it is important we try to reduce the amount.as.much as possible.
Arthritis is generally worse over winter so we won't dosanything to reduce the
dose until Spring and we will work closely With to come up with a plan
for how we do this.

In herself Charlie is taking everything in her stride and is pretty interactive with
our team. She is likely startingdo’get bored though, hospital is not a super
stimulating environment so\l'mKeen to discharge her ASAP.

SIOIC) - an we tentatively aim for tomorrow (Tuesday) or Wednesday for
Charlie to head-over to DBG, pending the results of the Chlamydia PCR? | am
99% sure we'll get a negative result.

Nga'mihi

s9(2)(a)




On Mon, Jun 10, 2024 at 12:33 PM4GIEY

I o -

Kia ora koutou

Just a quick update on Charlie. She is doing well in hospital but as expected,
not eating. This is not unusual for kaka in a hospital setting and my team Is
very experienced at managing this.

In-house health tests all good so far. Other samples have been sent to the lab
this morning.

We'll be in touch again once results trickle in.

s.9(2)(a) so haven't had a chance to closely review

the x-rays to see if any changes compared with previous. | will do that once |
am back at work, hopefully by the end of this week.

Nga mihi
s9(2)(a)




On Fri, Jun 7, 2024 at 2:51 PM XGICIQ] wrote:

Kia ora all,

No health screening had started here in Te Anau before Charlie’s transfer, for which | apologise.

For context, both permanent Rangers are on leave for the month of June, with our usualtwo
casual staff overseas. As a result, the Te Anau Bio team have stepped in to cover. It has been
mostly myself and two others that have trained up and have been covering daily shifts at the
Bird Sanctuary. Due to limited capacity (we are trying to stay on top of our regularwork at the
same time), we did not start any pre-transfer testing.

Hope this clears up any confusion, and please feel free to call or email me with any questions or
concerns. A phone call is likely best at the moment while | am working extra hours and away
from my desk.

Thank you very much for the update regarding Charlie settling in, | will pass the update along to
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
To: SAIEO)IQ)]
(o H59(2)(9)(ii)

s9(2)(a)
Subject: Re: Charlie Kaka

If we can please have results forwarded to us so we don't doubte up and
waste $$ that would be great.

On Fri, Jun 7, 2024411:47 PMGICIQ)

S

Thanks &)

| didiaskithem to start health screening in anticipation of the move on the
14th..'so at least one set of samples should have gone.

I assured @DBG that Charlie would be have all necessary Health checks
before arriving at the gardens.



Thanks so much

S9(2)(9)(il)

Get Outlook for Android

From: SJAIE))

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 1:38:19 PM

To: SE[GIC)]
Cc: SOIEY

Subject: Charlie Kaka

Kia ora Koutou

Charlie has arrived in Dunedin.safe and sound and is settling in to her
enclosure and actively exploring and chewing the browse we've offered.

We'll let her settle for a few days and then start the process of health checks.

I'lLLet'you know the results once we have them.

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
confidential or subject to legal privilege. 1f'you are not the intended recipient you are
notified that any use, disseminationydistribution or copying of this message or data is
prohibited. If you received this.email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all
copies of the message and attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank
you.

Caution - This messagée and accompanying data may contain information that is
confidential or subjectito legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are
notified that any-use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is
prohibited. If you'received this email in error, please notify us immediately and erase all
copies of the ' message and attachments. We apologise for the inconvenience. Thank
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

Sent on: Friday, June 21, 2024 4:21:05 AM

To: s9(2)(a)
]
CC: s9(2)(a)

Subject: Re: Banding Charlie

Hi all.
Yes. | authorize that Charlie can be banded by the hospital...as the R4QICAQ)

Cheers.

S9(2)(9)(ii)

Get Outloek ferAndroid

From;: SIAIE))

Sent:Friday, June 21, 2024 3:07:25 PM

To: SAIEY

CcH
9 59(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: Banding Charlie

Kia ora GGl




We are more than happy to band her. As he has been a patient on 2
occasions now she falls under our permit to band her.

and | are heading away on annual leave for 2.5 weeks from the 1st of
July so we would need to do her before then if we can.

Nga mihi

s9(2)(a)

On Fri, 21 Jun 2024 at 14:03, g&lC)
wrote:

Hi Team

I am keen to get Charlie'banded I didn’t realise she wasn’t so can I book that in
please? I wouldliketo weigh her towards the end of next week or early the
following week.to check she 1s not losing weight so could we look at doing the
banding at the.same time?

W DICMDR i f you are happy for banding Charlie can you please indicate to the
hespatal staff that you give permission for this to happen.

Thanks




s9(2)(a)

kaunihera
a-rohe o
Otepoti

#2: DUNEDIN

"2 CITYCOUNCIL

From: SEICAl(¢)I{D)

Sent on: Tuesday, June 2542024 8:51:29 PM

Rl

Subjéect: RE: REQUEST FOR INPUT: Questions from MP.

Hello =¥

Thank you.



From: SJAIE)]

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 8:43 AM
To: SSIAIEY
Cc: SAIC)ID)

Subject: Re: REQUEST FOR INPUT: Questions from MP.

Morena

Nothing to add, you summarised it well. We won't be amending her medicationiin.winter but will
look at doing that as soon as spring arrives. Also just the small spelling mistake-in'the last
paragraph copied from SN update email (clam = calm).

Nga mihi
s9(2)(a)

On Wed, Jun 26, 2024 at 8:04' AM EIAIEY

wrote:

FIS9(2)

has beentaway on her days off but | am sure she will provide feedback if needed when she see’s
the email«SEll would be the best person to comment on question 2.

Charlie continues to be settling in well. It has only been a week since she arrived from the Wildlife
hospital so we continue to monitor her and work with our vet team to ensure Charlie is in a positive
in welfare state.

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
Sent: Monday, June 24, 2024 10:24 AM
s9(2)(a)

RS9 (2)(9)(ii)

Subject: RE: REQUEST FOR INPUT: Questions from MP.

o)

| don’t have anything to add.

You explained that the move is for the upcoming breeding season etc.

The medication issue will be addressed as weimove into the season. If wants to add or
clarify anything with regards to that, | think we’ve covered it.

Cheers,

59(2)(9)

From: SEIAIE)D)]

Sent: MondayjJune 24, 2024 10:13 AM

RS9 (2)(9)(i) #s9(2)(a)

Subject: REQUEST FOR INPUT: Questions from MP.

Good morning,

The Department of Conservation has received two questions relating to Charley the kaka and
the move to Dunedin. As one of these is quite technical I’'m checking with you to make sure the
draft questions are accurate. To respect the process where by MP’s have the right to ask
question of Public Servants please don’t share this beyond who I’ve sent it to. If other
perspectives are needed then ask me and I’lLdo it.



The questions and my current draft response are:

1. Itdoesn’t seem as if there is a view to returning Charlie back to the community
that has been her home. It would be great to have some context as to why the
move is permanent.

The move to Dunedin to support cross fostering of chicks within the Captive Management
Programme is set out in the 2024/25 Sl Kaka flocking plan. The plan is revised.annually
based on results of the season. Consequently there has been no discussion-of\what the
priorities are for the 2025/26 flocking plan. Consultation on the allocation/of birds to meet
the objectives of the 25/26 flocking plan will be initiated in February 2025 and will be based
around the needs of the birds and the objectives of the programme.. Se-at this stage the
move of Charlie to Dunedin is not permanent.

2. I’'m also aware that if Charlie is going to be rearing her own or fostered chicks
that she won’t be able to have her current medication that she takes for her
arthritis which in conjunction with the/physical therapy programme that had
been implemented was allowing her a greater quality of life and broader range of
movement and more normal flying\behaviours. Would it be able to get a briefing
about how this is going to be, managed?

The use of medicines to manage/chronic conditions is under constant review by
Veterinarians to ensure the’correct dose is being given. For arthritic cases endeavouring to
decrease the dose rateto the lowest dose possible is desirable as long term use can
potentially have a negative impact on kidneys and gastrointestinal tract. . Currently
Veterinarians at Dunedin are looking at how to reduce the use of Metacam to the minimum
effective levelaThe Veterinarian advice is that there are always ways to ensure she gets her
medication,if.she'is needed to raise chicks. The first step is to figure out what is the lowest
dose of metacam that can be given that still manages her discomfort and then go from
there?An example could be giving medicines every second day. Additionally climate plays a
role and'as kaka breed in spring/summer it is likely that the amount of medicine required
could be a much lower dose of during the breeding season.

Charlie's welfare is of utmost importance to the programme but there are ways to manage her
so that she can still provide a valuable contribution to her species and at the same time
ensuring she is in a positive welfare state and any pain is managed. The inclusion of Charlie in
the breeding programme as a foster parent will allow her to display normal breeding behaviour;
participating in producing chicks is important for her mental health, this is something that
captive facilities (Zoo's) encourage a lot i.e. allowing animals in their care to display normal
behaviours - breeding is a normal behaviour.



Charlie was moved to the Dunedin Gardens last Wednesday after returning negative results in
all the tests conducted by Dunedin Wildlife Hospital the keeper reported that Charlie appeared
unphased, clam and interested in her surroundings and the other kaka on release.”

Any feedback by Miday tomorrow appreciated

Thank you for helping with this.
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
you:



From: SEIBICIO)

Sent on: Thursday, June 27, 2024 3:52:42 AM

59(2)(9) 1)
.

CC: S9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Re: posters

To:

Sounds perfect.

Thanks R4&IC)

Get Outlook for Android

From: 3B

Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2024 3:50:57 PM
To: EAIC)D)

[s9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: RE: posters

Hey team —had a catch up with the Te Anau team who advised they have an event on tomorrow
for Matariki, andiit’slikely they will be asked by members of the public present on the Charlie
situation. I’ve saidV'll get some lines through that will be safe for them to use.

Are you ok with-the following?

o(_sCharlie has been at the new aviary for just over a week and appears to be settling in well.

o~ Prior to moving, she spent some time at the Dunedin Wildlife Hospital to undergo
routine health screening, which she passed with flying colours. She appeared settled at
the hospital and had been actively exploring.

¢ Once she’s had some more time to settle in to her new surroundings, we’ll do another
update for the community.

If asked on whether the move is permanent
The move was part of our current captive breeding programme strategy, but there haven’t been
any decisions made on the timeframe for this phase.



From: SEIPAI()I(1)}
Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 3:10 PM

9
[@FHs9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: RE: posters

Hi everyone,

This is what | have with regards to Charlie: (vetERIVAIE)] and Sl is super

busy today, so I've just put together what | have from some earlier emails and shcrt text today).

Charlie spent a week at Dunedin Wildlife Hospital and underwent disease screening, while she
awaited the original transfer date to Dunedin Botanic Gardens. She settled in ok atithe hospital
in a small aviary actively exploring and chewing on browse. Itis not unusual forkakain a
hospital setting to stop eating, and Charlie did. The hospital staff managed that with
supplemental feeds.

She has been at Dunedin Botanic Gardens for 1 week and is settling into the aviary. She
was banded with a metal id band today and weighed. She is deing well so far.

s9(2)(g)(ii)

RS I(2)(g)(ii)
Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 12:43 PM
To: SE(EA)I())

[FHs9(2)(9)(ii)
Subject: Re: posters

Yep, have seen some on my morning'tuns! Thanks for the heads up. Will standby to do whatever is
required from Te Anau ops.

From: S4®3l(¢)I(1))
Sent: Wednesday, 26, June 2024 11:50
RS 9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject:RE: posters

Sawthem all over Te Anau when | was down there over the weekend too.. copyingin

who’s acting in role as34ACAIC) UV

FRHS9(2)(9)(i)
Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 11:49 AM
To:

Subject: RE: posters

FEIYSO(2)(9)(ii)



Thank you!!!
If you can catch up with SEI#AN and gather material for a media release that would be
appreciated.

S9(2) and Be aware that DOC has also been asked questions from the local MP. The
responses are with Hilary Aikman for signing out, before being forwarded to SEIZAM for
dispatch.

From: SJAIEI0)]

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 11:12 AM

To: SEIGIC)D)

Subject: FW: posters

More Charlie problems.

From: SJ@AIEY)
Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 11:09 AM

CHs9(2)(9) (i)

Subject: posters

Hi SIAIE)

Just wanted to touch base and give you a heads up that there have been multiple posters found
attached to anything in Queens Park re Charlie Girl.the Ambassador of Fiordland.

We have removed all we have found.

Please see attached image.

Thanks S31&)}

s9(2)(a)



0 (2)(g) i)

Sent: Wednesday, 22 May 2024 10:41 am
To:

Subject: RE: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!
s.9(2)(a)
Thank you,

Yes, and | agreed yesterday that getting Charlie should wait until JGICHUBERIEAIEY
I'll work with Te Anau to have Charlie transferred on June 15%™.

I've requested Queens Park start disease screening for the impending moye of Stumpy and Gimpy -so
they should be doing:

PBFD PCR and Chlamydia PCR

Enteric Screen for Salmonella/Yersinia

So, a health check and x rays and additional bloodwiork we’d have done with you.

I'll need an estimate to determine how will coverthese costs.

9(2)(ba)(i)

Thank you,
9(2)(9)(ii)

From: [JEA1C)I{)

Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 10:23 AM
To:

Subject: Re: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!

Morena JAIOID)

Just catching up on all my emails &



I've cc'd RRAR into this email as she can help chime in with timelines.

Asalready indicated, we're happy to do health checks on all these birds. BRI had indicated
she might be able to go and fetch Charlie if needed however this would need to be done soon which
might now be pushing it to get her here before 1st June?

| think 15th June is a good date to aim for re: Charlie so maybe arrange for the other two to get here
at least a week before so we can do a full range of tests on them and hopefully get results before
they head down South.

Recommended transfer screening to ensure best practice would be:

PBFD PCR and Chlamydia PCR to ensure we don't inadvertently move birds with infectious diseases
(unlikely they'll have these diseases but not impossible)

Enteric Screen for Salmonella/Yersinia
Blood tests (Biochem/WCC/Lead test)
Ideally X-rays if these have not been done in a few years.

And of course a full Physical Exam of the bird

92 . .
BB can provide a cost estimate for all of these.

9(2)(9)(ii), s.9(2)(a), 9(2)(ba)(i)

Nga miihi

9(2)(9)()}



On Wed, May 15, 2024 at 1:09 PM Wildlife Hospital Dunedin Staff

9(2)(g)(i) wrote:
Kia ora JEIE)ID)

We are more than happy to help with these birds. Thanks for the heads up.
I will Iet respond more in detail when she is back next week.
Nga mihi

9(2)(9)(i)

On Wed, May 15, 2024 at 12:07 PM SIEAI()I{D) > wrote:

Hi Team,

| got an out of office from , so | am forwarding this to you as a heads up.

| don’t think we.will be sending any kaka your way beforereturns next week,..again just to flag it
with yous:

Cheers,

9(2)(9)(ii)

0 (2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 11:26 AM

1RO (2)(9)(iN)

Subject: Flocking plan has been approved!



CUT OFF EMAIL PAGE 246-247

FENHO(2)(g)(ii)

Sent: Wednesday, 22 May 2024 10:41 am
To [9(2)(9)()

Cc: Wildlife Hospital Dunedin Staff SI¢41(e)I(1)]

Subject: RE: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!

9(2)(9)(i)

Hi

| wanted to inform you that the 24/25 flocking plan has been approved, and it involves moving
Charlie to DBG. SJOAI(Y) has indicated that holders should start moving forward-with the
transfers.

| will be the liaison between DBG and Te Anau. Sl REIAI()I0)
Charlie*hasn’t been disease screened, and
she should be prior to a transfer to another facility. suggested that Charlie be sent to DWH for
a health check, similar to what all the birds had last year; and'then make her way to DBG. We know
that she was seen s.9(2)(a) recently, and you have reviewed those records, so perhaps she just
comes in to get some bloods done for those inflammatory markers.

Are you able to facilitate this? I'm aware that SJV() DN BERIEIIEY) . It might be best

to get Charlie to you around the 15th of June so she is ready to go to DBG as soon as RRAAU e turns,
keeping in mind that she will need,to he monitored for stress in her new environment.

Happy to hear your feedback.

out of scope

and when Te Anau brings Charlie, they can

take Stumpy and Gimpy back with them.

Thanks so much for all your help, | know that your feedback on Jimmy and Charlie was helpful for
9(2)(9)(ii)

Cheers,

9(2)(g)(ii)



------------------- another email exchange to insert....

Sent: Friday, 24 May 2024 3:05 pm

L9(2)(9)(i1)

Subject: RE: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!

9(2)(9)(1h), 9(2)(ba)(1)

I've heard from EJP31C){D)] they they will be working towards bringing Chatlie over June 14/15™. [I'll
start and email with all parties on it, so we have a thread re: Charlie’s move.

Cheers,

9(2)(g)(ii)







out of scope

On Wed, May 22, 2024 at 10:40-AM SI¢AI(e)I(1)] wrote:

Po(2)(9)(i)
Hi

Thank you,
Yes, and\ agreed yesterday that getting Charlie should wait until JGICHOBEEIAIEY

Il work with Te Anau to have Charlie transferred on June 15%.

I've ‘réquested Queens Park start disease screening for the impending move of Stumpy and Gimpy -so
they should be doing:

PBFD PCR and Chlamydia PCR

Enteric Screen for Salmonella/Yersinia

So, a health check and x rays and additional bloodwork we’d have done with you.



I'll need an estimate to determine how will cover these costs.

9(2)(ba)(i)

Thank you,
9(2)(9)(i)

5(2)(0)(1)

From
Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 10:23 AM

To:

Subject: Re: FW: Flocking plan has been approved!

Marena JAIOID)

AR

Just catching up on all my emails &

9(2)(0)(i

I've cc'd J into this email as she can help chinfe in with timelines.

As g(z)(g)(") indicated, we're happy)tondo health checks on all these birds. BRI had indicated
she might be able to go and fetchCharlie if needed however this would need to be done soon which
might now be pushing it to get her here before 1st June?

| think 15th June is a‘good date to aim for re: Charlie so maybe arrange for the other two to get here
at least a week befere,so we can do a full range of tests on them and hopefully get results before
they head down South.

Reecommended transfer screening to ensure best practice would be:

PBED PCR and Chlamydia PCR to ensure we don't inadvertently move birds with infectious diseases
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



B can provide a cost estimate for all of these.

9(2)(ba)(i), s.9(2)(a), 9(2)(9)(ii)

Nga mihi

9(2)(9) ()}

On Wed, May 15, 2024 at 1:09 PM Wildlife Hospital Dunedin Staff

9(2)(a) (il > drote:
Kia ora JEICND)

We are more than happy tohelp with these birds. Thanks for the heads up.
I will Iet respond more in detail when she is back next week.
Nga mihi

9(2)(9)(i)



uuuuuuu

On Wed, May 15, 2024 at 12:07 PM [EI€AI()I(D) > wrote:

Hi Team,

| got an out of office from , so | am forwarding this to you as a heads up.

| don’t think we will be sending any kaka your way beforereturns next weeks..again just to flag it
with you.

Cheers,

9(2)(9)(ii)

From: S]#A1(s)I(D))

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 11:26 AM

d9(2)(9)(ii)

Subject: Flocking plan has been approved!

Po(2)(9)(i)
Hi

| wanted to inform youthat.the 24/25 flocking plan has been approved, and it involves moving
Charlie to DBG. SIEAI(e){)] has indicated that holders should start moving forward with the
transfers.

| will Bethediaison between DBG and Te Anau. IO REIAI()I0)
Charlie hasn’t been disease screened, and
sheshould be prior to a transfer to another facility. " suggested that Charlie be sent to DWH for
a health check, similar to what all the birds had last year, and then make her way to DBG. We know
that she was seen s.9(2)(a) recently, and you have reviewed those records, so perhaps she just
comes in to get some bloods done for those inflammatory markers.

Are you able to facilitate this? I’'m aware that SJU)DBERIAIE)] . It might be best

to get Charlie to you around the 15th of June so she is ready to go to DBG as soon as gRAUY e turns,
keeping in mind that she will need to be monitored for stress in her new environment.



Happy to hear your feedback.

out of scope

and when Te Anau brings Charlie, they can

take Stumpy and Gimpy back with them.

Thanks so much for all your help, | know that your feedback on Jimmy and Charlie was helpful,for
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
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or dataiis prohibited. If you received this email
in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of.the message and attachments. We
apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

Caution - This message and accompanying data‘may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of:.this méssage or data is prohibited. If you received this email
in error, please notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and attachments. We
apologise for the inconvenience. Thank you.

Caution - This message and aeceompanying data may contain information that is confidential or
subject to legal privilege. If yau are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this email
in error, please notifysus immediately and erase all copies of the message and attachments. We
apologise for the‘inconvenience. Thank you.



D
\\' L/,o

& & The Wildlife Hospital Dunedin
Otago Polytechnic School of Veterinary Nursing
fer @ p 195 Albany Street, Dunedin, 9010
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v
o Sp\ A
Avian Health and Behaviour Assessment
General Information
Species South Island Kaka (Nestor meridionalis)
Name Jimmy Life stage | Adult ‘ Age | 14 ‘ Sex Male
Hospital ID 200241 Band Orange L45999 (left leg)
History

A full health and behavioural assessment on this Kaka was requested by the Department of
Conservation due to some health and behaviour concerns expressed by keepers at the
captive facility where he is housed. These concerns came about'after Jimmy was used as a
sperm donor for artificial insemination.

A previous health check at Dunedin Wildlife Hospital (BWH) in 2020 was to assess his pre-
existing left wing injury as it was reported by keepers he was holding the limb more
abnormally than usual. After diagnostic testing; which included extensive blood tests as well
as x-rays, the conclusion was that the old injury was possibly causing early arthritis so long-
term anti-inflammatories (meloxicam) may need to be considered if abnormal wing posture
persisted. Once Jimmy was discharged from’hospital a patient update email from the
keepers was positive, as Jimmy was reportedly back to normal. It was deemed that the
abnormal posture may have beenh.due to a transient soft tissue strain which resolved with
rest and anti-inflammatories in hospital so vets decided that using long term metacam was
not required yet at this stage.

Jimmy was admittedte DWH again on 14" June 2023 for assessment after concerns were
raised about his health'and behaviour post Al. He spent 8 days in hospital undergoing a
thorough clinical*health evaluation as well as behavioural assessment before being
discharged tonDunedin Botanical Gardens for further, more extensive, assessment of his
generaldbehaviour as well as mobility with his pre-existing injury.

Distance Examination

The kaka, Jimmy, presented to DWH in a wooden Takahé crate which he had chewed (see
photos in appendix) during transport from Te Anau to Dunedin. He was quiet and curious on
arrival and was interested in his surroundings as well as the admitting veterinarian.
Respiration was slightly elevated after the journey but settled back to normal quickly. His
plumage appeared in good condition apart from some ruffled feathers on the previously
injured left wing which is normal for him. There was some initial concern by vets that he
might have ingested some of the painted wood from the travel crate however none was
palpated in his crop or noted on x-ray (see appendix for some recommendations re:
transporting parrots).



Physical Examination

2023

Admission weight (g) = 607g

Discharge weight (g) = 572g

Body Condition Score (BCS) = 5/9 (good)

2020
Admission weight(g) = 574g
Body Condition Score (BCS) = 5/9 (good)

Healthy weight range determined to lie between 2023 admission and discharge weights

Animal Weight & Average
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Physical Examination Results

Head All examined and found to be normal
e Bill
e Oropharynx
e Nares
e Eyes
Crop Palpated and feels normal.
Musculoskeletal Abnormality as previously described in the left wing, reduced range
e Pectoral of motion (ROM) in shoulder/elbow/carpus. No other
Musculature | abnormalities noted.
e Wings
e Llegs
e Feet
Coelom Palpated and feels normal
Vent Normal
Uropygial gland Normal
Nails Normal




Skin/feathers Normal — some ruffled feathers over left carpus/elbow/humerus
associated with old injury

Auscultation All sounds normal
e Heart
e Airsacs
Comments Apart from the obvious pre-existing wing condition Jimmy appears

to be in good health. He is in good lean body condition and is alert
and interested in his surroundings. He recovers quickly after being
handled and is quick to interact with enrichment items and explore
his hospital environment post-handling. No obvious neurological,or
gait/balance issues were noted while he was in hospital.

Initial Assessment (A) and Diagnosis (Dx)

A: Old traumatic injury

Dx: Old healed injury to left humerus with ankylosis of elbow and earpus and subsequent
reduced ROM in both of these joints as well as reduced ROM in.the shoulder. Possible
arthritis as occasionally displays behaviour consistent with\pain response (see history).
Otherwise healthy bird for his age and pre-existing condition. No concerns with behaviour at
this stage but further observation is still required.

Diagnostic Testing

X-Rays (higher resolution images at end of document)

Radiograph Findings: Pathology noted in left humerus - old healing fractures/crush injury.
Ankylosed left elbow and carpus with abnormal structure of shoulder joint. No significant
change from previous rads in Feb 2020.



Anaesthetic Procedure Physical Exam Notes: BCS of 5/9, good general feather condition,
excluding prior wing injury there were no other abnormalities noted on physical
examination. Blood taken from brachial vein for PCV, biochem, WCC, fibrinogen, PBFD PCR
and lead test, and choanal/conjunctival/cloacal swab taken for chlamydia PCR.

Anaesthetic monitoring comments:

Premed: 2mg/kg Butorphanol + 1mg/kg Midazolam IM
Premed effect: moderate

Comments: Good sedation, nice and calm prior to induction
Anaesthetic Induction: Isoflurane

Anaesthetic maintenance: Isoflurane

Reversal: 0.05mg/kg Flumazenil, Route: IM

Very good stable GA, induced and maintained on 1% iso.

Conclusions: Overall healthy bird with pre-existing conditions that do net appear to be
causing significant issues at this stage.

Laboratory Testing

20" June
Test Result Reference | Laboratory
Range

PBFD PCR negative N/A

Chlamydia PCR | negative N/A

Avian FEC Strongyle -ve N/A
Ascarid -ve
Capillaria -ve
Heterakis -ve
Coccidia-ve
Pinworm -ve
Tapeworm -ve

Enteric Screen, \Salmonella -ve N/A
Campylobacter -ve

Blood lead <0.005mg/L <0.15mg/L

Fibfinogen 6g/L 0-4g/L

eW<eCC WCC 15.4x10°/L < 20x10°/L | Dunedin Wildlife
Heterophils 13.6x10%/L (88.3%) 75-90% Hospital
Lymphocytes 1.2x10%/L (7.8%) 5-15%
Monocytes 0.6x10°/L (3.9%) <5%
Thrombocyte count: adequate and
clumped
Polychromasia: 1-5%
Haemoparasites: negative




Comments: White cell count in
normal range. Mild degenerative
change noted in some heterophils.
Vacuolisation in cytoplasm and
some degranulation. Likely
inflammation associated.

PCV 41% 35-48% x10°/L
Biochemistry AST 246 U/L Normal Dunedin Wildlife

BA 0 umol/L Anomaly Hospital (Vetscan)

CK 1772 U/L Mild

UA 0 umol/L elevation

GLU 17.0 mmol/L Anomaly

CA 2.01 mmol/L Mild

PHOS 0.94 mmol/L elevation

TP 32g/L Normal

ALB 26 g/L Normal

GLOB 7 g/L Normal

K+ 4.1 mmol/L Normal

NA+ 145 mmol/L Normal

Normal
Comments: Normal

Results within normal parrot ranges:
0 UA and BA are an anomaly’and
not concerning.

Comments Generally lab results are-all within normal limits and ranges and/or
negative for infectious disease/parasites/toxins. Mild inflammatory
change in white’cell count and mildly elevated fibrinogen result are
most likely suggestive of inflammation possibly associated with arthritis
in his injured wing. He is not showing any obvious signs of discomfort
howeverithe avian preservation reflex is likely responsible for this.

Plan

Prescribed low-dose meloxicam (1mg/kg SID) and plan to repeat bloods in a few weeks to
see if any improvement. Discharge to Dunedin Botanic Gardens (DBG) for further
behavioural and mobility assessment in large aviary.

Behavioural Observations (Hospital)

Jimmy is bright and alert and very curious of his surroundings. He interacts with logs and
other enrichment and will nibble on fruit and taste the nectar offered. He doesn’t eat
enough to maintain weight so required handling for twice daily crop tubing with kaytees
hand rearing formula while in hospital. This is normal for many patients, in particular
parrots, when in a hospital setting.



Jimmy recovers very quickly post handling for medication and food, his respiratory rate
settles quickly back to normal and he is back to being curious and investigating what might
be new in his hospital enclosure soon after being released from manual restraint. While a
certain amount of stress is normal and expected of any patient in a hospital setting, | have
no concerns with Jimmy as he adapted quickly to being in hospital. While he resents being
captured and handled for feeding and medication, which is to be expected, he shows noill
effects from this and recovers quickly, as mentioned previously. His blood tests also indicate
that he is not showing excessive amounts of stress as usually white cell count, glucose, AST
and CK levels will be significantly elevated during periods of stress. We only observed mild
elevation in some of these which is a normal mild stress response to handling.

Jimmy doesn’t show any obvious signs of discomfort in the injured wing howevefblood
results suggest there is some low grade inflammation which is most likely attributed to the
injury. Treatment trial with low dose anti-inflammatory (Metacam) given ence daily and
then repeating blood tests will help make a further assessment on this.

Behavioural Observations (Botanic Gardens)

Jimmy has been reported by SGIOI0) to be bright and alert and

behaving normally, and as she expects for a captive parrat, ‘during his stay at DBG. He has
been interacting well with a female kaka, Cleo, that shares the aviary with him. This social
interaction is normal and to expected from such a gregarious species. The display of these
types of behaviours, that we class as normal for thespecies, in a captive setting is all very
positive.

| was able to personally observe Jimmy on-12t™ July when | visited the aviaries to assess him
and repeat blood tests. He was already captured when | arrived and contained in a crate in a
quiet, stress free area prior to my.arrival. He was reasonably easy to capture from the crate
and was restrained in a standard large parrot hold by an experienced handler; senior wildlife
veterinary nurse, | took some blood from the right medial metatarsal vein
and then a metal leg hand was applied to the left leg.

Jimmy was calm for the procedure and tolerated the handling well. He recovered rapidly
post-handling fornthe blood draw and banding procedure. His respiratory rate and effort
normalised very/quickly and once he was released back into the aviary he was interacting
with the’environment and displaying normal kaka inquisitive behaviour within a few
minutes.

Once’he was back in the aviary we moved out of the service area and to the front of the
aviary to observe him from a distance. He approached the front of aviary to interact with
enrichment and wasn’t concerned that we were standing a few meters away observing him.

He was chewing on logs and behaving as | would expect a captive kaka to behave. It was
beneficial that | was also able to compare his behaviour to the other kaka in adjacent
aviaries and his behaviour is comparable. During my time observing him | did not see any
abnormal or stereotypical behaviour that is sometimes an issue in captive parrots and some
other species.



Jimmy moves around the aviary very well, is able to climb high and also able to use
strategically placed perches to climb down from a height safely.

Lastly, | have observed the capture process that BRIOID ses in the high aviaries and am
satisfied that it is calm and presents very little to no risk to the birds.

Laboratory Testing

12t July - recheck

Test Result Reference Laboratory
Range
Fibrinogen <1g/L 0-4g/L 9(2)(9)(ii)

Blood smear | Poor quality smear so unable to perform accurate count however cell
morphology appears normal compared with previous.

Comments Repeat fibrinogen blood test has returned to normal range which indicates
that the medication is working to manage the inflammation caused by
suspected arthritis in his left wing. Cell morpholegy appearing normal
supports this conclusion.

Overall Veterinary Health and Behavioural Assessment

Health:

It is my professional opinion that Jimmy is injgood health for his age and has expected mild
complications/health issues due to his pre-existing wing injury. These issues, most likely
osteoarthritis, are manageable with medication.

The repeat fibrinogen blood test'we performed on the 12/7 is back into the normal range
since we started him on low-dose meloxicam. This helps confirm that the most likely cause
of the inflammation is‘osteoarthritis. The next step with regards this is to investigate the
lowest dose possible that will provide good analgesia and anti-inflammatory effects. During
this trial and error stage we will need ongoing reports of how he is behaving and moving
and we will need to repeat blood tests every 6-8 weeks to determine whether what is being
observed.is notjust due to the avian preservation reflex. The detailed plan for this is out of
the scope of this document.

Behaviour:

Behaviourally | am happy that Jimmy displays normal captive parrot behaviour in that he is
engaged with his environment, he is curious and investigates enrichment items and
interacts with them appropriately.

Observing him at DBG | am satisfied that he is able to cope well in a large, tall aviary with his
disability. He is very adept at climbing up and down the provided perches and there is
enough foliage and strategically positioned perching provided in the aviary to help prevent
and/or interrupt a fall should something startle him, e.g. a Falcon flying overhead. | do note
the boulders on the ground of the aviary but It is my experience and observation that



parrots are extremely adaptable to these types of disabilities so | don’t have major
concerns. | have cared for and had oversite over care of other captive parrots with wing
injuries rendering them incapable of flying. One such parrot in particular is a Kea also
housed at DBG. Prior to being moved to make room for kaka at this facility he was housed in
the adjacent aviary to where Jimmy is currently housed with no issues as he had adapted
well to his disability as is usual for psittacines.

| am extremely satisfied with the level of skill and competence of ZGICHW

at DBG with regards her ability to safely capture, handle, medicate, and provide.a
good assessment of how Jimmy is doing in the aviary. She is experienced at managing
captive parrots with disabilities and modifies the aviaries accordingly to ensure they.aresafe
for the birds.

| have also observed Jimmy a few times, outside of the official visit on the42/7,"when | have
visited the DBG aviaries in a non-official capacity just on a social call, and.each time | have
been pleased with his behaviour and have no concerns about him.

| am satisfied that Jimmy is able to cope extremely well with beingcaught safely and
restrained for health assessments/blood draws/banding procedures etc. This is important as
he will require regular health checks going forward to assess the progression of his arthritis
and to check for other diseases/ailments as he gets older:

Lastly, a note on artificial insemination procedures»At around 3-4 minutes, the handling
time for the health assessment procedures we have just performed are comparable to the
handling required for semen collection which'is also around 3-4 minutes in length (pers.
Obs. AIOID) The actual handling involved in semen
collection is also much less invasive than-what is required for blood collection and banding
as it doesn’t involve head restraint‘and the bird is usually very settled during the procedure

(pers. obs. AIEOIQ ).

Based on my observation.of how quickly and well Jimmy recovered from being handled
after his blood draw and\banding procedure as well as during his stay in hospital, where he
was handled twice.daily for food and medication, combined with diagnostic testing results, |
have no hesitation in giving Jimmy a good bill of health for his age and pre-existing condition
and am also happy to give the all clear for him to be used as a donor bird, if required, for Al
in future.

s9(2)(a)










Appendix: A note on transporting psittacines:

Photos of chewed takahé crate.

Parrots can be challenging when it comes to determining howhtransport them due to their
tendency to chew. Wood is often easier to chew so they stroy it in a shorter space of
time than a plastic crate so ideally wooden crates sh N&& be painted or constructed out
of treated wood. A good example of a wooden tr oft crate are the ones that Kea
Conservation Trust uses. It is also recommend% ovide enrichment and big chunky food
items (fruit and veg) during transport to OCQ e bird’s attention. Ideally use a hard
plastic that is more difficult to chew if yo such a transport container available e.g. the
newer Takahé crates are made of tough gic material which is difficult to chew.





